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A. Statements of Members of the Board of Directors
(pursuant to article 4 par. 2 of Law 3556/2007)

The members of the Board of Directors of the Comgpaading as ELLAKTOR SA (hereinafter the Company),
with registered offices at 25 Ermou str., Kifisstdtica:

1. Anastasios Kallitsantsis, son of Parisis, Chairwitihe Board of Directors
2. Leonidas Bobolas, son of Georgios, Managing Directo

3. Dimitrios Koutras, son of Athanasios, Vice-Chairmahthe Board of Directors, appointed as per
decision of the Company’s Board of Directors

acting in our above capacity, hereby state andicorhat, to the best of our knowledge:

(a) the annual financial statements of the Companiythe Group for the year 01.01-31.12.2015, whie been
prepared in accordance with the applicable inté@nat accounting standards, fairly represent theetasand
liabilities, the equity and the statement of incoamed operating results of the Company as well ashef
companies included in the consolidation as a whmlesuant to the provisions of article 4 of Law 868007, and

(b) the annual report of the Company’s Board oebliors fairly represents the information requiredar article
4(2) of Law 3556/2007.

Kifissia, 29 March 2016

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD THE MANAGING DIRECTOR THE VICE-CHAIRMAN OF THE

OF DIRECTORS BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ANASTASIOS P. KALLITSANTSIS LEONIDAS G. BOBOLAS DINTRIOS ATH. KOUTRAS
ID Card No.Z 434814 ID Card Nax 237945 ID Card No. AE 023455
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B. Annual Report of the Board of Directors

B.1. Annual Report of the Board of Directors of ELLAKTOR SA
on the consolidated and separate financial statesmen
for the fiscal year from 1 January to 31 Decemtsrs2

This report of the Board of Directors pertains be twelve-month period of the fiscal year 2015 thatled
(01.01-31.12.2015), and provides summary finariofarmation about the annual financial statements r@sults

of ELLAKTOR SA and the ELLAKTOR Group Companies.elReport outlines the most important events which
took place during 2015, and the effect that suchness had on the financial statements, the mairs résid
certainties the Group is faced with, while it aksets out qualitative information and estimates aloture
activities. Finally, the report includes importdransactions entered into between the Company andpGand
related parties, and a Corporate Governance Statgp@rsuant to Law 3873/2010).

The companies included in the consolidation, ext@pparent company ELLAKTOR SA, are those ment@ire
note 41 of the accompanying financial statements.

This Report was prepared pursuant to article 4avf B556/2007 and accompanies the financial statenienthe
fiscal year 01.01-31.12.2015.

|. Introduction

Despite the signs of stabilisation of the Greeknecoy in 2014, for the first time after six years8® increase in
the GDP, attainment of primary surplus), the urainty at political and macroeconomic levels incezhagain in
2015. The extended negotiations with the instingioelating to the financing for Greece, the rafdwen, the
bank holiday, the imposition of capital controlsh{eh are still applicable) and the parliamentargcgbns in
September 2015 adversely affected the Greek econamgh returned to recession, with the GDP fallimg
0.2% on an annual basis, and negatively affectedddmestic activities of the Group and, in pardcuthe
construction business.

The agreement between the Greek Government armteithtors in August 2015 for an assistance programm
involving a loan of EUR 86 bhillion from the ESM (Epean Stability Mechanism) and the successful
recapitalisation of the four systemic banks in Delber 2015 mitigated the negative impact and rapenism
about the gradual stabilisation of the macroeconoarid financial environment in Greece. Howeverksris
continue, since the completion of the first evabrabof the programme, which will pertain to a seri fiscal
adjustment measures and, above all, measuresgfomgiiementation of the requisite reforms, is géhding in
late March 2016. At the same time, internationgliteh markets face increased volatility, the refigeoblem has
intensified with increased flows of refugees to €& while, lastly, the geopolitical risk is alsucrieased
(regional tensions, increase in terrorist attaeks,). Therefore, it is assessed that 2016 wikh lkfficult year for
the Greek economy.

The following significant events took place in 204% part of the overall strategy of the Group, Whiims to
strengthen its main activities both in Greece dntdad:

e The subsidiary construction company AKTOR reinfarcés international presence in Wastewater
Treatment Plants, since, being the Leader of tlmt #enture “PTARExpansion del Salitre”, with the
associated companies Aqualia Infraestructuras, ralrae of the Spanish FCC Group, and the Colombian
company CASS Constructores, was selected as sfudceégdder in the international tender for the
Design and Construction of the Extension to the t&laater Treatment Plant “El Salitre”, which serves
the capital of Colombia, Bogota, and is financedhsyWorld Bank (a bid of USD 490 million).
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e In the Concessions segment, the Hellenic Parlianagproved in December 2015 the Agreement
Amending the Provisions of the Concession Conthettveen the Ministry of Infrastructure and the
Concessionaire MOREAS S.A. (Corinth-Tripoli-KalamalMotorway), in which the HELLAKTOR
Group holds a participating interest of 71.67%)thva view to restoring the economic balance of the
project that had been disturbed by the financiaicof the recent years. The implementation datae
amendment to the Concession Contract was finatlats23 February 2016. According to the amended
agreement:

¢ the ultimate time of completion of the project dpuastion is set at late October 2016;

e a provision has been made for an extra operatignaadt by the Ministry of Infrastructure of
EUR 330 million (in current prices and providedttha respective deficit is recorded in the
project’s income statement);

e the shareholders of the concessionaire MOREAS Gndertake to pay an extra amount of
EUR 20 million for the additional binding investnign

e the maximum nominal return of the binding investirierset at 5%.

e Lastly, compensation of EUR 80 million to the Cosgienaire and of EUR 50 million to the
construction consortium was paid on the implemé&matiate of the amendment to the
contract (23 February 2016).

e Moreover, in the second half of 2015, the overdagnments by the Greek State (e.g. guaranteed receipt
from the Greek State, VAT refund) for the two otlhesjor road works in which the Group participates,
namely the Olympia Odos (Elefsina-Corinth-Patrastdviway) and the Aegean Motorway (Maliakos-
Kleidi Motorway), were executed and the recommerer@nof the construction works was scheduled.
The construction backlog of the concession projectier construction stands at EUR 235 million.

e In the Environment segment, the subsidiary HELECT-OiRcollaboration with AKTOR- completed the
implementation of the project of Design and Corttom of the Integrated System of Solid Waste
Management Plants in the Municipality of Sofia, garia, with a capacity of 410,000 tons per annum,
totally amounting to EUR 90 million.

e Also in the Environment segment, the Group, viagpecial purpose subsidiary company EPADYM SA
(shareholders in which are the subsidiary compa#l€EOR Concessions S.A. and HELECTOR S.A),
signed the first Private-Public Partnership (PPRjé field of the Environment in Greece for thejpct
“Design, Financing, Construction, Maintenance amei@tion of Infrastructures of the Integrated Waste
Management System of the Region of Western Macaedonder a PPP”, with a total estimated
investment of EUR 48 million.

e In the segment of Wind Farms, the subsidiary ELKINTECHNODOMIKI ANEMOS SA proceeds
with the implementation of its investment plan, ingvincreased in 2015 its installed capacity to
208MW, while wind farms with an additional capaaiy57MW are under construction.

As stated above, the year 2016 has begun withasertuncertainty, since the completion of the &xstluation
of the new financing program for Greece is pendihg,refugee problem is at its peak, questionsofisty and
terrorism have intensified internationally and,tligsthe international capital markets are facedhwnhcreased
volatility. Any negative developments are likelyliave an impact on the Company’s and the Groupsinkss,
their results, their financial standing and theiogpects. The Management continually assessesttfa¢ien and
its possible consequences on the Group, to enBateall necessary and possible measures and aetiertaken
in good time to minimise any negative impact.
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[l. Overview of results for 2015

The Group’s consolidated income for the fiscal y2@t5 amounted to EUR 1,533.1 million in total, giaally
decreased by 0.7% compared to EUR 1,544.5 millia20il4. At the level of individual activities, reuges in the
Construction segment and the Environment segmigtitlsi decreased by EUR 9.6 million and EUR 9.9lionil,
respectively, revenues in the Wind Farm segmenteased by EUR 8.3 million, while the turnover ireth
Concession segment remained substantially unchadgedeased by EUR 0.6 million).

Operating results for 2015 stood at EUR 28.8 millizvhich are though charged by extraordinary losgdsUR
58.3 million, which include:

a. EUR 37.2 million, due to impairment of partidipg interests in mining companies (Eldorado Gold
and Hellas Gold) in the Construction segment;

b. EUR 14.1 million, due to impairment in the wvalof property (EUR 11.8 million relating to Other
activities and EUR 2.3 million relating to Realatstdevelopment)

c. EUR 7 million due to impairment of goodwill ELPEDISON (relating to Other activities).

Not taking into account the above mentioned chargesrating results for 2015 would stand at EUR 8fillion,
as compared to respectively adjusted operatindtsesiUEUR 99.5 million for 2014.

Profit/(loss) before tax amounted to losses of EBR9 million for the Group, mainly due to the above
impairment, compared to losses of EUR 10.8 miliior2014. The Group recorded losses after tax of ROR
million as compared to losses after tax of EUR 38ilon in the previous year.

At balance sheet level, the Group’s total cash @ash equivalents as of 31.12.2015 amounted to ERR44
million compared to EUR 679.9 million on 31.12.2044d equity amounted to EUR 1,031.2 million conepaio
EUR 1,116.2 million on 31.12.2014.

Total borrowings at consolidated level amountedEtdR 1,492.2 million on 31.12.2015 compared to EUR
1,550.7 million on 31.12.2014. Out of total borrags, the amount of EUR 322.3 million correspondstort-
term and the amount of EUR 1,169.8 million to ldegn borrowings. Total borrowings include amoumntsf
parent company non-recourse debt under co-finapagdcts, amounting to EUR 630.9 million. The gegrniatio

as of 31.12.2015 for the Group was calculated &8%3 This ratio is calculated as the quotient df cerporate
debt to total employed capital (i.e. total equiyspnet debt).

The Group’s net debt as of 31.12.2015 and 31.12.,2@bpectively, is detailed in the following table

All amounts in EUR EURO GROUP
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Short term bank borrowings 322.3 275.3
Long-term bank borrowings 1,169.8 1,275.4
Total borrowings 1,492.2 1,550.7
Less: Non recourse debt 630.9 778.1
Subtotal of Corporate Debt (except non recoursésjieb 861.3 772.6
Less: Cash and cash equivaléhts 334.1 358.4
GROUP
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Net Corporate Debt/Cash 527.2 414.3
Total Group Equity 1,031.2 1,116.2
Total Capital 1,558.4 1,530.5
Gearing Ratio 0.338 0.271

(1) Restricted cash (EUR 49.9 million), time deposiver 3 months (EUR 0.5 million), bonds held tatanity (EUR 111.8 million) and
money market funds (EUR 46.3 million) have beenealdid total cash and cash equivalents for 2015 (B&B4 million), and cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, time deposis ®months and bonds held to maturity which cpaas to non recourse debt (EUR
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324.7 million in total) have been deducted. Accogll, restricted cash (EUR 72.4 million), time dsi® over 3 months (EUR 0.5
million) and bonds held to maturity (EUR 79.1 nail) have been added to total cash and cash equisdte 2014 (EUR 679.9 million),
and cash and cash equivalents, restricted cashdéposits over 3 months and bonds held to matwhitgh correspond to non recourse
debt (EUR 473.6 million in total) have been deddcte

I TI. Development of activities per segment
1. CONSTRUCTION
1.1. Important events

In the Construction segment, revenue amounted t® HUL61.3 million in 2015, marginally decreased by
approximately 0.8% compared to EUR 1,170.9 millierihe fiscal year 2014. However, please note tvhtle
the turnover in the Construction segment had irsmeéady 39.8% in Q1-2015, the project execution iratie
domestic market (public works and concession ptsjedecelerated in the next quarters, since theidity
problems faced by the Greek State resulted in paydedays that adversely affected the implementagihedule
and the cost of the projects in Greece. On therapntthe implementation of projects internatiopallas
accelerated, contributing 51% of the turnover m @onstruction segment in 2015 as compared to #22014.

Operating results in the Construction segment stabdosses of EUR 39.9 million, including, though,
extraordinary losses of EUR 37.2 million from impaént of participating interests in mining companie
Excluding this extraordinary impairment, the opE@tresults in the Construction segment for 201%lad/stand
at losses of EUR 2.7 million compared to respebtiasjusted operating profits of EUR 23.0 million the
previous year. The negatively adjusted operatisglte are due to delays in the payments for domestjects
that have entailed implementation delays and irse@a&osts of these projects, while the results fraernational
projects were not high enough to absorb the inestassts of domestic projects. Results before tioe2015
were losses of EUR 52.0 million compared to losseEUR 40.1 million in 2014. The Construction segine
recorded losses after taxes of EUR 63.5 milliorofupdjustment to the impairment in the value otipigating
interests in mining companies, the results wouldosses after taxes of EUR 26.3 million) as compdecelosses
after taxes of EUR 45.8 million in 2014.

There were limited awards of new projects in Greace2015, while, as mentioned above, delays in the
implementation of domestic projects due to paynuehays have also been recorded. Emphasis has bessdp
on implementing projects undertaken abroad, sucthe@ssolden Line Metro and the Internal Securitt@sces
(“ISF") Camp facilities in Qatar, the implementatioof road axes in Serbia, Albania and FYROM, the
implementation of the construction of Waste Wateatment Plants (WWTP) in Addis Ababa (Ethiopia)) tihe
same time, emphasis has been placed on developnks\n the segment internationally, by capitalisiihe
accumulated experience and expertise of the Gnogprtracts for projects of WWTP construction andtracts

for PV Park construction.

Therefore, within this context, AKTOR, as the LeladEthe joint venture “PTAR Expansion del Salitngith the

associated companies Aqualia Infraestructuras, mbrae of the Spanish FCC Group, as well as the Cloim
CASS Constructores, was announced as the succdsdtiér in the international tender for the Desamd

Construction of the Expansion Project for the “Blitte” Wastewater Treatment Plant, which servesdépital of
Colombia, Bogota and is financed by the World Bamith a bid of USD 490 million).

Regarding the works contracts for the constructib®V Parks, after its successful activity in Geltaly and
the Balkan countries in previous years, AKTOR bhatt out to the markets of England, Chile and Panama
2014, with considerable success. The activity cwetil in 2015 in the three above countries and wpareled to
the US. In Chile, it signed and started the impletaton of a 146MW project, in Panama, it connedtedhe
local network a 12MW project, while it is implemexg 6 projects (4RIW total) with a large construction
backlog, while in England it implemented numerougjgcts (above 150MW in total). In the 3 above ddes,
AKTOR has a significant market share, which givea great growth potential for years to come. Andigant
event in the period is the award of a 150MW projedhe State of Minnesota, USA, which startedhaténd of
the year and is expected to be completed towardsetid of 2016. Meanwhile, AKTOR participates in
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international tenders both in these countries @edrést of Latin America, Africa and the Middle Etsfurther
expand its business abroad. Under the above temBI€TOR has been announced as preferred biddeawbben
shortlisted in several projects, which is expectedresult in the signing of new contracts (e.g. Dmoan
Republic, Chile, etc.)

Following are some of the largest contracts signeAKTOR and its subsidiaries in Greece and abin&015:

1. Operation and Maintenance of the Western SectiothefEgnatia Motorway and its Vertical Axes
(2015-2018)", with a budget of approximately EUR2illion.

2. Operation and Maintenance of the Eastern SectidheoEgnatia Motorway and its Vertical Axes (2015-
2018)”, with a budget of approximately EUR 26.2lmoil.

3. Construction of Dry Slurry Stacking Site Phase 1hat area of the new mining facilities in MADEM
LAKKOS, with a budget of approximately EUR 27 noiti.

4. As a joint venture with TERNA, completion of the grpding of the electrified double track in the
Piraeus Railway station - Athens Railway Statioiit E&ction, with a budget of approximately EUR 13.6
million.

5. As a joint venture with Euro Construct Trading 9BLS construction of a section of the Bucharest-
Brasov motorway, with a budget of approximately ERBRmillion.

6. Construction of six (6) PV Parks with capacity @Whp in David / Cocle, Panama, with a budget of
USD 20.7 million.

7. Construction of one (1) PV Park with capacity o6MNp in Atacama, Chile, with a budget of USD 55
million.

8. Construction of sixteen (16) PV Parks with totgb@eity of 150MWp in Minnesota, USA, with a budget
of USD 90 million (the award took place in 2015 dhd contract was signed on 4 February 2016).

9. Construction of twenty one (21) PV Parks with tatapacity of 155MWp in England, with a budget of
EUR 120 million.

In the quarries segment (which is part of the Gmumnstruction segment), the Greek Ministry of the
Environment, Energy and Climate Change and AKTOREATave entered into the “Licensing Agreement on
Research into and Operation of the State Lignit@eVin the Vevi area in the Regional Entity of Rhari;
ratification of the agreement by the Greek Parlianie still pending though.

1.2. Outlook

The backlog of AKTOR and its subsidiaries amountedEUR 3.2 billion as of 31.12.2015. There are also
projects worth EUR 148 million signed after 31.1P.2 and projects worth EUR 253 million, the contsaaf
which are expected to be signed very soon. Duéddimited award of new projects in Greece, AKTQR s
focuses on the development of its business intemelty, putting emphasis on the Balkans and thdd\& East.
Currently, international activities contribute apgimately 51% of the income for the constructiograent (for
2015), while standing for 53% of the constructi@ckiog.

1.3. Risks and uncertainties
The prolonged uncertainty in 2015 in Greece mostfgcted the domestic construction business ofGhaup,

which traditionally contributed the most to the fitability in the construction segment. Therefotieere have
been delays in the payments for projects and inntpdementation of construction time schedulespagganied
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by increased needs for working capital and, ultelyatincreased costs. However, the situation hastest
becoming normal again since late 2015.

Any continued delay in the award of new constructojects in Greece (both public works and coricess
projects) could adversely affect the executionasfstruction backlog.

Given that the State budgets in Middle East coestare negatively affected by oil prices, thera issk that, if
the construction scope of public works in thesentoes changes (which happens in several casesGihup will

not be able to achieve the desired amendmentstadhtracts and, therefore, the profitability ol projects
could be adversely affected.

Lastly, please note that the Hellenic Competitioaminission initiated an inquiry on Greek and foreign
construction firms that are active in Greece, idiig the Group’s subsidiary AKTOR ATE, relatingpotential
breach of the competition regulations. Within thentext of the above inquiry, company officers, uuthg
AKTOR officers, have been summoned to testify. @heve inquiry has not been completed yet.

2. CONCESSIONS
2.1. Important events

Revenue from the Concessions segment in 2015 stoBdR 206.0 million, marginally down by 0.3% cormgxh
to EUR 206.6 in the previous year. Operating ph@diss) stood at EUR 58.7 million, as compared tRE6.7
million in 2014, but with approved compensationnfrehe MOREAS project amounting to EUR 11.5 million.
Earnings before tax stood at EUR 19.2 million coragao EUR 31.9 million, and net earnings afteetastood
at EUR 5.1 million compared to EUR 21 million in12D Please note that deferred tax of EUR 7.6 millias
been charged to the 2015 results due to the ingddbe tax rate change from 26% to 29%.

In the Concession segment in Greece, emphasi®deglon accelerating construction works in the ession
projects under construction. For the Corinth-Triggtdlamata Motorway, in which the Group holds a
participating interest of 71.67%, works are expgdtehave been completed by October 2016, whiletHfe two
other major concession projects in which the Grpagicipates, i.e. the Aegean Motorway (PATHE Medis —
Kleidi Section), in which it participates by 20%ndathe Elefsina-Corinth-Patra-Pyrgos-Tsakona Mo&yrwn
which it participates by 17%, the new time schedbd&t is under negotiation provides for their coatipin in the
1st quarter of 2017.

2.2. Outlook

Due to the economic stringency faced by the GraateSthere seems to be a significant room for ldgweent of
new infrastructure projects in Greece by attracpnigate funds via concessions and public-privatgnerships.
However, clarification of the political leaderstspintentions relating to the institution of Condesf?PP
projects, as well as the prioritisation and matarabf the relevant projects, are a necessary guésite.

In terms of activities abroad, the Group monitdng tmarket and assesses the participation in terfders
concession projects in countries in which it issatty active, such as Middle East countries, thé&ad®al and
Russia.

2.3. Risks and uncertainties

For projects that are already in operation, duthéopoor financial conjuncture, there is a riskwther reduction
in the traffic and, therefore, in the revenues fribi projects, even though there is an increasamgltsince the
beginning of 2015. Uncertainty at a macroeconoraieel, as well as the political leadership’s disposi to

proceed with privatisations/ new concession prsjectay lead to delays in the implementation of quajects.
There is also a risk of failure to secure the furetgiired for co-financed / self-financed projedt® to the crisis
in the greater financial sector and the capitalketz:
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3. ENVIRONMENT
3.1. Important events

The turnover of the Environment segment stood aREWU8.2 million in 2015, decreased by 7.7% compéaoed
EUR 128.1 in 2014, mainly due to the completioncofstruction contracts concluded abroad (e.g. pi®jm
Croatia and Bulgaria). Operating profit/(loss) amied to EUR 18.2 million, increased by 17.5% corapato
EUR 15.5 million for the same period last year.rifags before tax increased by about 9.5% to EUR drllion,
and net earnings after tax amounted to EUR 11.Bomjlincreased by 11.3% compared to EUR 10.1 @d42

In 2015, HELECTOR -in collaboration with AKTOR- cqheted the implementation of the project of Design,
Construction and Commissioning of the Integratesit&y of Solid Waste Management Plants in the Mpality
of Sofia, Bulgaria, with capacity of 410,000 tores annum, totally amounting to EUR 90 million.

Moreover, via EPADYM SA, a special purpose vehigghareholders in which are the subsidiaries AKTOR
Concessions SA and HELECTOR SA), it signed the Br$vate-Public Partnership in the Environmentrsegt

in Greece, by signing the Partnership Agreementthadelevant Financing Agreements for the projBesign,
Financing, Construction, Maintenance and Operatibrinfrastructure of the Integrated Waste Managdmen
System of the Region of Western Macedonia, based &PP arrangement”. The Project, which it thet firs
integrated waste management project in Greecepi®fproject at a European level, complies whike strictest
specifications laid down in the European environtakelaw and has won an international award from\hearld
Finance magazine. The Contract involves the fimamcinsurance, construction and operation of thkewviong
infrastructures: A waste treatment plant with amwai capacity of 120,000 tons, a residue landfill, waste
transfer stations 9 of which already exist, andeawironmental information and training station. Ttmeal
investment stands at EUR 48 million and is co-foethby the European Investment Bank (EUR 13 mij|itime
Urban Development Fund (Jessica) for Western Matad(EUR 13 million), the National Bank of Greece
(financing the VAT applicable on the constructiooriss of the project, standing at EUR 5.6 milliomdawith
own resources from AKTOR Concessions S.A. and HELER S.A. (EUR 17 million). At least 200 persons are
expected to be immediately employed (constructieniog - 2 years), while more than 150 permanent job
positions are expected to be created over a pefiaé years.

The project “Supply and installation of equipment the modernisation of the Mechanical Sorting loé t
Mechanical Recycling and Composting Plant in CHawias delivered in early December 2015.

3.2. Outlook

Environment remains a segment of particular intebeth in Greece and abroad. The obligation of Geei®
adapt to EU requirements regarding waste manageitienfines imposed on it for keeping illegal lafisifand
atypical and high-cost solutions adopted in absercan overall design (e.g. in the case of Trigefuse that
have to be transported for disposal in the landfilKozani) are factors that require the applicatad modern
waste management methods and hence the developfithetsector within the country.

In terms of activities abroad, HELECTOR aims atangling its operations in the greater geographiced ®f
interest, which includes, in addition to Germarng Eastern Europe and Middle East countries.

The current backlog of HELECTOR from constructiorojpcts and contracts (including those signed after
31.12.2015) stands at EUR 93 million.

3.3. Risks and uncertainties

Since May 2016, a pre-litigation investigation oftgntial transactions relating to two contracts vedste
management projects in Cyprus has been in proguager which current and former HELECTOR officeavé
been summoned to testify as withesses. At pregentGroup monitors the case and is in processsafsaig any
impact (the net book value of the Concession Righthe works contract stood on 31.12.2015 at EURB 10
million).
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It is incontestably necessary to upgrade the dameghste management infrastructure, but changethen
planning for the implementation of new waste manag® projects in Greece and the ambiguous politicl
have adversely affected the time schedule of nesjepr awarding in Greece. However, please note tthat
available funds from the NSRF 2014-2020 for wasshagement projects stand at EUR 580 million, wich
clearly less than the total necessary investmessessed at approximately EUR 1.5 billion, withooy alear
indication as to how that financing gap will be eced.

In addition, the current dire straits and the ledifiquidity from the banks have made the fundihgmfinanced
environmental projects more expensive and difficult

Finally, another major risk for the sector can 8eniified in reactions of local communities anditpis filed
with the Council of State in relation to landfiésd waste treatment plants, as well as in the tamsuming
procedures for the issue of permits and the appaivenvironmental conditions.

4, WIND FARMS

4.1. Important events

As of 31.12.2015, the total installed capacity f ENIKI TECHNODOMIKI ANEMOS and its subsidiaries v&a
208 MW, representing 14 wind farms, 1 hydro plantl & photovoltaic plant, while wind farms with tbta
capacity of 57 MW are under construction. Thereadse RES projects (mainly wind farms), with a tat@pacity
of 775 MW, at various stages of the licensing pssce

The turnover of the Wind Farm segment stood forl2@LEUR 40.1 million compared to EUR 31.7 millifor
2014, increased by 26.3% due to increased instakgracity and improved wind energy potential. Opega
profit/(loss) amounted to EUR 19.6 million, compéir®® EUR 13.1 million for the same period last year
increased by 50.5%. The operating margin (EBIT) 2005 stood at 49.0%, compared to 41.2% last year.
Earnings before tax stood at EUR 12.2 million, cared to EUR 5.3 million in 2014. Finally, earnirgfser tax
amounted to EUR 7.5 million, compared to EUR 3.8iom, up by 110.7%.

4.2. Outlook

The outlook for ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ANEMOS S.A. g still positive, the main priority being the
completion of the 57MW wind farms under constructiand the further maturation of RES projects to be
developed.

A public consultation was launched in the beginnofg2016 on the new scheme proposed for supporting
Renewable Energy Sources that is aimed at the graattiusion of RES in the market in electricity bgtailing

the minimum possible burden for the end consumemfETMEAR charges (special levies for air pollutant
reduction). The new scheme will repeal, for new RE§ects (that will sign purchase and sale agregsnafter
01.01.2016) Feed In Tariffs, since the new RESsumill be compensated on the basis of the wholedalgricity
prices (System Marginal Price) plus a Feed In Puemiwhich will be guaranteed and vary accordinghte
market data, with a view to ensuring a fair retomthe investment.

4.3. Risks and uncertainties

The uncertainty stemming from the fiscal crisis a@dession in Greece may have a negative impabusimess
activity in general, and the segment’s operatirsglts and financial position.

Despite the progress made in recent years, thedRB®ent is still facing challenges due to the cioafgd and

bureaucratic licensing procedures required fordéeelopment and operation of new projects, as aslilue to
appeals lodged with Hellenic Council of State, gugsresulting in delaying significantly and/or memting the
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implementation of projects. Moreover, any changeshe institutional framework could adversely impé&oe
Group’s operating profit/(loss) and the compangpacity to fund new RES projects.

Other significant risk sources are the lack of stidd maps, property titles and designation oflémels used to
construct the projects as public/private lands.

Finally, dependence on weather conditions which layenature, unsteady and may vary significaniyrfryear to
year, may lead to reduced electricity generatiahinoome for the segment.

5. REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT
5.1. Important events

The Group’s real estate development segment reddndeme amounting to EUR 7.2 million for 2015, qared
to EUR 6.3 million for 2014. Operating profit/(Igsstood at EUR 3.7 million compared to zero operati
profit/(loss) for 2014 and has been produced frbm ¢compensation paid by the Pallini Municipality fand
expropriation. Profit/(loss) after tax stood at EWR million compared to losses of EUR 1.4 milliar2014.

Currently, the main activity of REDS is the opewatiof “Smart Park” on the property of subsidiarylAYOU
EMPORIKI & TOURISTIKI SA”, in Yialou, Spata-AtticaDespite the decline in retail activities posted by
organised establishments, “Smart Park” figures awpd in 2015, with 100% of its surface being leabgd
renown retail companies.

5.2. Outlook

Given the circumstances, the Group has focuseatttgities on promoting the existing properties.this point,
focus has been placed on obtaining the necessansks.

5.3. Risks and uncertainties
The extended macroeconomic uncertainty in Greecg aaersely affect the consumption expenditurehef t
population and, by extension, the results of theuSmark lessees and, therefore, even though tive pnoperty

is leased, the possibility of renegotiating corntsagith the lessees cannot be excluded.

Moreover, as a result of reduced demand, therehiglarisk that delays will be seen in the develeptrof the
Group's real estate in Greece and Romania.

6. OTHER
Thermoelectric plants

The Group participates in ELPEDISON POWER througs Bubsidiary HELLENIC ENERGY &
DEVELOPMENT SA (HE&D), which operates two privatedyvned, ultra-modern CHP plants in Thessaloniki
(390 MW) and Thisvi, Viotia (421 MW).

Overall electricity production from Company plast®od at 1.14 TWh compared to 0.96 TWh in 2014h wit
highly increased production in 4Q2015, due to tlgmiicant reduction in oil and gas prices. Thenttefor
increased electricity production by ELPEDISON POW#&Nts is expected to continue through 2016 ak wel

Operating results were losses of EUR 8.5 milliompared to profits of EUR 23.9 million in 2014, migias a

result of the absence of revenues from Capacityil&bitity Certificates in FY2015. Results after &sxstood at
losses of EUR 30.6 million compared to profits &ffE1.7 million in 2014.
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Due to the extended uncertainty in the Greek ecgniongeneral and in the segment of thermal powantslin
particular, the Group recorded in the consoliddtedncial statements for 2015 impairment of gootiwfl its
participating interest in ELPEDISON POWER by EURnillion (it was charged on the operating profit§$) of
Other activities).

Casinos
Due to the economic situation, the turnover ofcbexpany HELLINIKO CASINO PARNITHAS stood at EUR
88.5 million in 2015, compared to EUR 93.3 million2014. Operating profit/(loss) stood at EUR 2.illiam in

2015 compared to EUR 3.9 million in 2014. Earnibgfore tax stood at EUR 1.5 million compared to ERIR
million in the previous fiscal year, whereas nedfjprstood at EUR 1.1 million compared to EUR 2.Blion.
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IV. Significant transactions between related partis
The most significant transactions of the Companth wélated parties within the meaning of IAS 24anel the

Company’s transactions with the following compan&ssociated companies within the meaning of ard@e of
Codified Law 2190/1920) and are presented in tHeviing table:

Amounts for year ended 2015

Sales of Income from Purchases of
goods and  participating goods and
(in thousand EUR) services interests services Receivables Liabilities
Subsidiaries
AKTOR SA 1,777 - 198 4,727 306
EL.TECH. ANEMOS SA 193 - 30 344 593
AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA 129 29,500 2,308 13,811 46,490
REDS REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT SA 20 - - 104 -
AKTOR FM SA 68 - 667 - 317
ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ENERGIAKI SA 20 - - 91 -
HELECTOR SA 167 - - 24 -
MOREAS SA 173 - - 15 -
HELLENIC QUARRIES SA 33 - - 10 -
TOMI SA 49 - - 71 -
OTHER SUBSIDIARIES 1 1 87 18
Associates
ATHENS RESORT CASINO SA - 399 - - -
OTHER ASSOCIATES - - - 1 -
Other related parties
OTHER RELATED PARTIES - - - 133 -
TOTAL SUBSIDIARIES 2,631 29,500 3,204 19,282 47,724
TOTAL ASSOCIATES & OTHERS - 399 - 135 -
Amounts for year ended 2014
Sales of Income from Purchases of
goods and participating goods and
(in thousand EUR) services interests services Receivables Liabilities
Subsidiaries
AKTOR SA 1,818 - 193 4,460 499
EL.TECH. ANEMOS SA 225 - 26 638 562
AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA 613 8,500 2,315 11 44,181
REDS REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT SA 20 - - 82 -
AKTOR FM SA 69 - 686 - 258
ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ENERGIAKI SA 21 - - 145 -
HELECTOR SA 172 - - 71 -
MOREAS SA 177 - - 14 -
HELLENIC QUARRIES SA 34 - - 3 -
TOMI SA 50 - - 16 -
PROMAS SA - PROJECT MANAGEMENT
CONSULTANTS 23 418 - - -
OTHER SUBSIDIARIES 1 5 102 18
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Sales of Income from Purchases of
goods and participating goods and
(in thousand EUR) services interests services Receivables Liabilities
Associates
ATHENS RESORT CASINO SA - 1,366 -
ASTERION SA - 140 - -
OTHER ASSOCIATES - - - 1
Other related parties
OTHER RELATED PARTIES - - - 131
TOTAL SUBSIDIARIES 3,223 8,918 3,225 5,542 45,518
TOTAL ASSOCIATES & OTHERS - 1,506 - 132 -

With regard to the above transactions in 2015fdalewing points are clarified:

Income from sales of goods and services pertainslyn® the invoicing of expenses and real estassé fees to
subsidiaries and associates of ELLAKTOR SA, whhe purchase of goods and services pertains mainly t
contracts entered into by and between the parenpany and its subsidiaries.

The Company'’s liabilities pertain mainly to contizad obligations for the maintenance of its builglifacilities
and the invoicing of expenses and contracts by ommpanies.

The Company’s receivables include mainly receivalflem the provision of services for administratiaed
technical support toward the Group’s companiessifepof office premises and the granting of loamsetiated
parties, as well as receivables from dividendsivatée.

Income from holdings pertains to dividends fromsdiaries and associates.

The fees paid to Group managers and directordwéoperiod 01.01-31.12.2015 amounted to EUR 7,4@dskdnd
for the Group, and EUR 910 thousand for the Company

No loans have been granted to BoD members or ettemmutives of the Group (including their families).

No changes have been made to transactions betwee@dmpany and related parties, which could have an
essential impact on the financial position andgédormance of the Company for the period 01.01-32015.

All transactions mentioned are arms’ length tratisas.

V. Important events after 31.12.2015

AKTOR, as part of a joint venture with the Frenadmpany SPIECAPAG, will implement the constructidrite
first section of the TAP (Trans-Adriatic Pipelinapject in Northern Greece, for the transport dfire gas from
Azerbaijan to Europe. This section of the projesttgins to the construction of a pipeline with andeter of 48
inches and a length of 180 kilometres, extendimgnfthe Greek-Turkish border to Kavala, includingibary
installations for its operation, and is expecteeéccompleted in approximately two years.

HELECTOR -as part of joint ventures- signed théofeing contracts in early 2016:

e Service concession agreement for the servicesarftipn and maintenance of the Hazardous Healthcare
Waste Incinerator, which was signed on 2 Februah62
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e A private agreement for the exercise of the opfwovided for by the Agreement as of 31/12/2010
relating to the project “Services of Support, Ofiera Maintenance and Repair of the Recycling and
Composting Plant”. This private agreement was signe10/2/2016.

This Annual Report of the Board of Directors foe tperiod from 1 January to 31 December 2015 has pested
on the Internet, abww.ellaktor.com
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a.

B.2. Explanatory Report of the Board of Directors
of ELLAKTOR SA for the fiscal year 2015,

pursuant to article 4 par. 7 and 8 of Law 3556/20Q7as in force.

The Company’s share capital amounts to EUR3182352.39, divided into 177,001,313 shares wi¢h th
face value of EUR 1.03 each. All shares are orglin&yistered, voting shares, listed for tradingttom
Athens Exchange, and specifically in the Large €laps.

There are no limitations in the Articles of Asition regarding transferring company shares, @xce
those provided by Law.

Significant direct or indirect holdings, withiine meaning of Law 3556/2007, as of 31.12.2015:

SHAREHOLDER PARTICIPATION PERCENTAGE
1. LEONIDAS G. BOBOLAS 15.007%

2. MITICA LIMITED 9.997%7)

3. WELLINGTON MANAGEMENT LLP 5.099%7)

4. DIMITRIOS P. KALLITSANTSIS 5.070%

5. ANASTASIOS P. KALLITSANTSIS 5.011%")

(%) Direct and indirect holding
(®) Also includes the percentage of MITICA PROPERTSEBS0.48%)
(®) According to official information provided by téareholder

There are no holders of shares, pursuant toigiomg in the Articles of Association, granting sjad
control rights.

There are no limitations in the Articles of Asistion regarding voting rights and the deadlines t
exercise the right to vote, except those providetddw.

There are no agreements between shareholddts,aggociated limitations in the transfer of shames
limitations in exercising voting rights that the i@pany is aware of.

There are no regulations on the appointmentraphcement of the members of the Board of Director
and on the amendment of the Articles of Associatwinich are differentiated from the ones stipulated
Codified Law 2190/1920.

The Board of Directors or certain members ofBloard of Directors are authorized to issue newesha
only as provided for by law.

The Extraordinary General Assembly of Shareholdéf12.2008 decided: (a) to cancel the program for
purchasing own shares as adopted by decision ofdhwany’s General Assembly of Shareholders of
10 December 2007 (Article 16(1) of Codified Law R18920) and (b) to approve a new treasury share
purchase plan, pursuant to article 16(1) et seG.odfified Law 2190/1920, to replace the abolishketh,p

for up to 10% as a maximum of the currently paidshpre capital of the Company, including already
acquired shares, for a period of up to 2 yeartheaminimum and maximum treasury share acquisition
price of EUR 1.03 (share face value) and EUR 15@€pectively. Said Extraordinary general Meeting
authorized the Board of Directors to proceed topghechase of treasury shares, pursuant to art€lef 1
Codified Law 2190/1920, and in accordance with Cassian Regulation 2273/2003.

In execution of the above decisions of the Genldieggtings, and in implementation of the ELLAKTOR
BoD decisions as of 21.1.2008 and 10.12.2008, 3/324treasury shares were acquired over the period
from 24.1.2008 to 31.12.2008, which represent 1.@3%e Company’s paid up share capital, for the
total acquisition value of EUR 21,166,017, at therage acquisition value of EUR 6.93 per sharerOve
the period from 01.01.2009 to 31.12.2009, 1,515,86asury shares were also acquired, representing
0.86% of the Company’s paid up share capital, Hiertbtal acquisition value of EUR 5,906,258, at the
average acquisition price of EUR 3.90 per shamalBi, the Company did not purchase treasury shares
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during the period from 01.01.2010 through 8.12.20#l6ich was the final deadline of the treasury shar
purchase plan.

The Company currently holds 4,570,034 treasuryeshaepresenting 2.58% of its paid up share capital
for the total acquisition value of EUR 27,072,2@6the average acquisition price of EUR 5.92 paresh

There are no significant agreements that haes Isggned by the Company, which come into forcarer
amended or are terminated as a result of the chartge Company’s control, following a takeover bid

There are no agreements between the Companynantbers of its Board of Directors or its personnel,
which provide for the payment of compensation i élvent of resignation or termination of employment
without reasonable grounds, or termination of teriroffice, or employment due to a takeover bid,
except as provided by Law.
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B.3. Corporate Governance Statement
(Article 2(2) of Law 3873/2010)

(a) Corporate Governance Code

ELLAKTOR implements the corporate governance ppies, as these are set out in the relevant législa
framework (article 43a(3d) of Law 2190/1920, LawlB(002 on corporate governance, article 37 of Law
3693/2008 and article 2(2) of Law 3873/2010). Thesegporate governance principles have been
incorporated in the Corporate Governance Code (basethe SEV (Hellenic Federation of Enterprises)
Corporate Governance Code, January 2011), whipghsted on the Company’s websitevw.ellaktor.com

(b) Corporate governance practices implemented byhe Company in addition to the provisions of law.

The Company has not adopted corporate governaraetiqes in addition to the relevant legislation
provisions for the year ended 2015.

(c) Description of Internal Control and Risk Managanent Systems

The Company’s Board of Directors places particéenphasis on internal control and risk management
systems for which it is responsible, aiming at alistg and managing systems which optimize risk
management efficiency. The Board of Directors sbaksponsible for identifying, assessing, meaguaird
generally managing risks, including those relatethé reliability of financial statements.

The Internal Control systems’ adequacy is monitdrgdhe Audit Committee which updates the Board of
Directors through quarterly reports on the curiatgrnal control framework, and through reportairthe
internal control department related to serious mnissues or incidents which might have significan
financial and business implications.

i. The systems and procedures for risk control andagament in relation to the submission of reports an
the preparation of individual and consolidated fficial statements, include:

e keeping, developing and implementing single acdagrdapplications and processes;

e reviewing, at regular intervals, of the accountimijcies implemented, and disclosing their results
to the competent personnel;

e the procedures which ensure that transactions @regnized in line with the International
Financial Reporting Standards;

e the existence of policies which govern accountingkbkeeping, and the procedures related to
collections, payments and other financial actigitie

e closing procedures, which include submission dead|iaccount reconciliations and verifications,
updates to competent persons and approvals;

e the implementation of single corporate reportingthbfor financial reporting purposes and
administrative reporting purposes on a quarterbisa

e role determination procedures for system users JERIE restriction of access to unauthorized
fields (authorizations), to ensure the integritd @onfidentiality of financial information;
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e the existence of policies and procedures for eammmaih, such as major deals, inventory,
payment, duty segregation procedures, etc.;

e the preparation on an annual basis by the Compdnineo consolidated and individual, per
activity/ subsidiary, budgets for the next fiscahy, to be approved by the BoD;

e the follow-up of such budgets and revision, if squired, on a quarterly basis;

e updating of the business plan per field of actifitythe next years (usually three), at least ance
year;

e determination of limits regarding Company operati@md transactions via the Company’s legal
and special representatives, pursuant to a spgmiaion of the Company’s BoD;

e ongoing training and development of personnel pg@tkand skills;

e the access control system which allows accessrsppeel and or other persons to selected work
areas, and full recording of movements.

The development of IT systems, managed by a spedrained IT Management Team (IT General
Controls), ensures the integrity and accuracy mdirfcial information. Further, appropriate policasd
procedures related to IT System Security and Ptioteare applied across the Company:

e Backup (daily-weekly-monthly-yearly)

¢ Restoration

e Server room security

e Event Record

e Management of user access to IT systems

e Frequent and mandatory change of password
e Antivirus Security

e E-mail Security

o Firewall

e Intrusion Prevention System (IPS)

o Wired-Wifi Access ldentity Services System

i. The Audit Committee evaluates the suitability leé internal Control Systems. It is set up to suppia
BoD in their duties related to financial reportimgternal control and ordinary audit supervision.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee #re following:
As regards internal control and reporting systethres Audit Committee:
e  Monitors the financial reporting process and thegdnity of the Company’s financial statements.
It also monitors any formal announcements relatinthe Company’s financial performance, and

reviews the key points of financial statements Whiontain crucial judgments and estimates on
part of the Management;
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e Supervises internal, management, procedural aatdial audits of the Company, and follows-up
the effectiveness of internal control and risk nggmaent systems of the Company. To this end,
the Audit Committee regularly reviews the Companyiternal control and risk management
systems, so as to ensure that the main risks apegy identified, managed and disclosed,;

e Reviews any conflicts of interests involved in empany’s transactions with related parties, and
submits relevant reports to the BoD.

As regards the oversight of the internal audit dipeant, the Audit Committee:

e Ensures the operating conditions of the internditalepartment are in line with the international
standards for professional implementation of irdéaudit;

e Determines the operating conditions of the Compaimternal audit department;

e Monitors and examines proper operation of the mgkaudit department, and reviews its quarterly
audit reports;

e Ensures the independence of internal audit, byqsiog to the BoD the appointment and removal
of the head of the internal audit department.

As regards the oversight of the ordinary audit fiomg the Audit Committee:

e Makes recommendations to the General Meeting,hgaBoD, in relation to the appointment, re-
appointment and revocation of the ordinary auditor;

e Reviews and monitors the ordinary auditor’'s indejeate, and the objectivity and effectiveness
of the audit process, taking into consideration tblevant Greek professional and regulatory
requirements.

The Committee should meet at least four times par o effectively perform its duties.

(d) The information required under article 10(1)(d), (f), (h), and (i) of Directive 2004/25/EC ofetfcuropean
Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 2004stated in the Explanatory Report which is includethe
Directors’ Annual Report for year from 01.01.2005311.12.2015.

(e) Proceedings of the General Meeting of Shareha@ds and powers — Shareholder rights

The General Meeting of Shareholders is the Conipasypreme decision-making body and may decide on
all significant corporate affairs, in accordancehwiaw and the Company’s Articles. The Annual Oadlin
General Meeting of Shareholders takes place ongsag within six months from the end of the pregiou
fiscal year, to approve among others the Compaarysial financial statements, decide on profit iigtion

and release the Company’s Board of Directors andans from all liability.

Decision making takes place in a voting procedur@rder to ensure the free expression of all efaider

views, whether present in person or voting via prddhe Company uses effective and cost-efficieringp
methods for shareholders or their representatives.
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A summary of the General Meeting minutes, includir@ing results on each decision of the General
Meeting, must be available on the Company’s websitgin five (5) days from the date of the General
Meeting of shareholders, also translated into Ehgli

At least the Chairman of the Company’s BoD, the &gng Director or the General Manager, as the case
may be, and the Chairmen of the BoD committeesyelsas the Internal and Ordinary Auditors, must be
present at the General Meeting of shareholders rderoto provide information on issues of their
responsibility for discussion, and on questionglarifications requested by shareholders. The @teair of

the General Meeting should allow sufficient time $hareholders to submit any queries.

The rights of shareholders are set out in the CayipaArticles and in Law 2190/1920 (on Societes
Anonyme), as in force.

Composition and function of the Company’s Boardof Directors and Committees

i. The Company’s Board of Directors, whose membersetgeted by the General Meeting, will exercise
the general administration and management of catpa@ffairs, to the best interests of the Companty a
its shareholders. The Board of Directors will detere which of its members will be executive and-nhon
executive. The number of non-executive members maype less than 1/3 of all directors. The General
Meeting will designate at least two independent imer® among the non-executive directors, in
accordance with corporate governance principles.

The roles of the Directors are set out and cleddlgumented in the Company’s Articles, the Corporate
Governance Code, and other official documents. &kez members will see to daily management
issues, while non-executive members will undertitkgut forward all corporate affairs. Independent
non-executive members will provide the Board ofddtors with impartial opinions and advice on
decision-making, to the Company’s interests angtiogection of its shareholders.

The separate powers of the Chairman of the BoD thedCompany’s Managing Director will be
expressly determined by the Board of Directors &md down in the Company’s Articles and the
Corporate Governance Code.

The Board of Directors will meet whenever neededserimposed by the provisions governing the
Company'’s operations, as set out in the Articled tre applicable legislation. The Chairman of the
Board of Directors will determine the items on #genda and invite the members to a meeting.

In case of absence or impediment, the Chairmanbeilteplaced, in the following order, by the Vice-
Chairman or, in case of absence of impediment efl#tter, by the Managing Director; in case of
absence or impediment of the Managing Director,Bbard of Directors will designate a member to act
as his replacement. Replacement as per the abalershlate solely to exercising the powers of the
Chairman of the Board of Directors in that capacity

This Board of Directors was elected by the Genkletting of the Company’s shareholders on 27 June

2014 (formed in its meeting held on the same datea five-year term of office, pursuant to law ahe
Company’s Articles, and comprises the following nhens:
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s/n Full name Position

1. Anastasios Kallitsantsis Chairman of the Board of Directors, Executive
Memhe

2. Dimitrios Koutras Vice-Chairman of the Board ofr@itors, Executive
Memhe

3. Dimitrios Kallitsantsis Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors, Executive
Memhe

4, Leonidas Bobolas Managing Director, Executive Membe

5. Maria Bobola Director, Non-Executive Member

6. Angelos Giokaris Director, Executive Member

7. Edouardos Sarantopoulos Director, Executive Member

8. loannis Tzivelis Director, Non-Executive Member

9. lordanis Aivazis Director, Non-Executive Member

10. Theodoros Pantalakis Director, Independent Non-Executive Member

11. Dimitrios Hatzigrigoriadis Director, Independent Non-Executive Member

The CVs of the members of the Board of Directore awailable on the Company’s website
(www.ellaktor.con)

ii. The General Meeting has set up an Audit Commitéeticle 37 of Law 3693/2008) which assists the
BoD in the preparation of decisions and ensuresctffe management of any conflicts of interest myri
the decision-making process.

The Audit Committee’s responsibility is to monitbinancial reporting, the effective operation of the
internal control and risk management systems, argupervise and monitor ordinary audits and issues
relating to the objectivity and independence ofleauditors (the Audit Committee tasks are detaited
sectionc of this statement).

The General Meeting of the Company’s shareholdera this Audit Committee at its meeting on 27
June 2014, and appointed the following members:

s/n Full name Position

1. Theodoros Pantalakis* Independent Non-Executive Member of the BoD
2. loannis Tzivelis Non-Executive Member of BeD

3. lordanis Aivazis Non-Executive Member of the BoD

* |t is established that Mr. Theodoros Pantalaksshadequate knowledge of accounting and auditing
issues.
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The office of the current Audit Committee membeii8 @nd simultaneously with the term of office of
the current Board of Directors.

Kifissia, 29 March 2016

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANASTASIOS P. KALLITSANTSIS
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C. Audit Report of Independent Certified Public Auditor-Accountant
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Independent Certified Auditor-Accountant’s Report

To the Shareholders of ELLAKTOR SA

Audit Report on the Corporate and Consolidated Finacial Statements

We have audited the attached corporate and coasatidinancial statements of “ELLAKTOR SA", commisof

the company and consolidated statement of finanptaition as of 31 December 2015, the company and
consolidated profit and loss and comprehensivenecstatements, statement of changes in equity asid ftow
statement for the year then ended, and a summasignoificant accounting principles and methods, atteer
explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Corporate and ©nsolidated Financial Statements

The Management is responsible for the preparatiwh fair presentation of these corporate and corstad
financial statements, in accordance with the lmtBomal Financial Reporting Standards, as adoptedhb
European Union, and for those safeguards the mamagethinks necessary to enable the preparaticorpbrate
and consolidated financial statements free of ratarsstatements whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesrporate and consolidated financial statememtdhe basis
of our audit. We conducted our audit in accordanitk the International Standards on Auditing. Thesandards
require that we comply with ethical requirementsd @lan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabsirance
whether the corporate and consolidated financé@éstents are free from any material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaidiaevidence with regard to the amounts and déscles in
the corporate and consolidated financial statemdifits procedures selected are based on the asditoigment
including the assessment of risks of material rateshents in the corporate and consolidated finhataéements,
whether due to fraud or to error. In making susct assessments, the auditor considers the safegredatied to
the preparation and fair presentation of the caf@and consolidated financial statements of tmepamy, with
the purpose of planning audit procedures apprapt@the circumstances, but not with the purposexpfessing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the companyfegards. An audit also includes the evaluationthef
appropriateness of the accounting principles antheoas applied and the reasonableness of accoussingates
made by the Management, as well as the evaluafitimecoverall presentation of the corporate andsobdated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaimedfficient and appropriate to provide a basisdur audit
opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying company and caaatedd financial statements present fairly, inraditerial
respects, the financial position of “ELLAKTOR SAha of its subsidiaries as of 31 December 2015heirt
financial performance and cash flows for the ydwmmntended in accordance with the International rieize
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EuropeamUnio

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(&) The Management Report from the Board of Dinectocludes a corporate responsibility statemeat th
contains the information required in par. 3d ofiélet 43a of Codified Law 2190/1920.

(b) We have verified the agreement and reconailiatif the Directors’ Report with the accompanyinegporate

and consolidated financial statements, under tbgigions of Articles 43a(3a), 108 and 37 of Codifleaw
2190/1920.

Athens, 31 March 2016

The Certified Public Accountant-Auditor

Dimitrios Sourbis

Institute of CPA (SOEL) Reg. No 16891
PriceWaterhouseCoopers
Audit Firm
268 Kifissias Ave, Halandri

Institute of CPA (SOEL) Reg. No 113
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D. Annual Financial Statements

Annual Financial Statements
prepared according to the International Financepdtting Standards
for the year ended 31 December 2015
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Statement of Financial Position

All amounts in EUR thousand GROUP COMPANY
Note 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 _ 31-Dec-14
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 508,414 470,450 1,669 2,429
Intangible assets 7a 68,883 70,176 - -
Concession right 7b 884,979 935,051 - -
Investment property 8 130,589 137,187 29,312 41,182
Investments in subsidiaries 9 - - 921,677 939,356
Investments in associates & joint ventures 10 137,580 157,292 34,721 34,721
Financial assets held to maturity 18 49,869 79,126 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets 12 55,047 89,336 - -
Deferred tax assets 26 73,414 71,984 - 855
Prepayments for long-term leases 13 41,719 45,499 - -
Guaranteed receipt from Greek State (IFRIC 12) 14 34,395 33,552 - -
Restricted cash 19 10,426 14,708 - -
Other non-current receivables 17 110,487 90,223 24 24
2,105,801 2,194,58! 987,40! 1,018,56
Current asset:
Inventories 16 44,818 34,853 - -
Trade and other receivables 17 1,136,030 1,079,372 21,189 7,083
Available-for-sale financial assets 12 51,683 2,002 - -
Financial assets held to maturity 18 61,919 - - -
Financial assets at fair value through profit assb| 3 3 - -
Prepayments for long-term leases 13 3,646 3,437 - -
Guaranteed receipt from Greek State (IFRIC 12) 14 128,204 117,225 - -
Derivative financial instruments 15 - 407 - -
Restricted cash 19 39,424 57,721 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 20 450,378 679,918 1,035 3,959
1,916,106 1,974,938 22,224 11,042
Total assets 4,021,905 4,169,522 1,009,627 1,029,608
EQUITY
Attributable to shareholders of the parent
Share capital 21 182,311 182,311 182,311 182,311
Share premium 21 523,847 523,847 523,847 523,847
Treasury shares 21 (27,072) (27,072) (27,072) (27,072)
Other reserves 22 220,678 192,397 55,901 55,904
Profit/ (loss) carried forward (101,457) 9,825 (5,933) 11,677
798,307 881,308 729,054 746,667
Non controlling interests 232,922 234,920 - -
Total equity 1,031,229 1,116,228 729,054 746,667
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 23 1,169,826 1,275,351 268,338 240,692
Deferred tax liabilities 26 103,407 101,047 - -
Employee retirement compensation liabilities 27 10,818 9,842 226 192
Grants 24 69,105 73,305 - -
Derivative financial instruments 15 155,637 174,817 - -
Other non-current liabilities 25 32,294 53,563 3,471 1,460
Other non-current provisions 28 134,245 130,037 180 180
1,675,333 1,817,962 272,215 242,524
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 25 962,513 898,946 8,272 12,379
Current income tax liabilities 7,436 17,788 - 2,327
Borrowings 23 322,348 275,316 - 24,400
Dividends payable 4,147 6,420 85 108
Derivative financial instruments 15 - 280 - -
Other current provisions 28 18,900 36,582 - 1,203
1,315,344 1,235,332 8,358 40,417
Total liabilities 2,990,677 3,053,294 280,573 282,941
Total equity and liabilities 4,021,905 4,169,522 1,009,627 1,029,608

The notes on pages 37 to 123 form an integralgddhtese financial statements.
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Income Statement

All amounts in EUR thousand, except for earningssbare.

Note
Revenue 5
Cost of sales 29
Gross profit
Distribution costs 29
Administrative expenses 29
Other income 30
Other profit/ (loss) 30
Operating profit/(loss)
Dividend income
Share of profit/(loss) from participating interests
accounted for under the equity method 10
Finance income 31
Financial (expenses) 31

Loss before tax
Income tax 33
Net loss for the fiscal year

Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent 34
Non controlling interests

Net profit/ (loss) per share-basic and adjusted

(in EUR) 34

The notes on pages 37 to 123 form an integralgddhtese financial statements.

GROUP COMPANY
1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
1,533,083 1,544,504 146 182
(1,401,017) (1,399,284) (160) (160)
132,066 145,221 14) 22
(3,943) (3,782) - .
(63,417) (58,832) (4,640) (4,453)
23,812 21,928 2,125 2,163
(59,688) (47,657) (29,008) (29)
28,831 56,877 (31,536) ,0B7)
- - 29,899 10,424
(7,131) 434 - -
10,698 23,155 4 13
(86,297) (91,243) (15,119) (16,356)
(53,900) (10,777) (16,752) (8,p15
(36,463) (22,498) (858) 7
(90,363) (33,275) 7(510) (8,208)
(106,071) (51,618) (17,610) (8,208)
(15,708) 18,342 - -
(90,363) (33,275) (17,610) (8,208)
(0.6152) (0.2994) (0.1021) (0.0476)
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Net loss for the fiscal year

Other comprehensive income

Note

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to prifor loss

Currency translation differences
Fair value gains/(losses) on available-for-salariirial

assets

Cash flow hedges

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and bss
Actuarial gain/(loss)

Subsidiary share capital increase expenses

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (net

of tax)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year

attributable to:

Owners of the parent
Non controlling interests

GROUP COMPANY
1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
(90,363) (33,275) 7(610) (8,208)
4,710 5,738 - -
113 65,846 - -
26,307 (50,057) - -
31,129 21,527 - -
56 (1,245) 3) (13)
17 53,9 - -
73 (3,198) 3) (13)
31,203 18,329 (3) (13)
(5860) (14,946) (17,613) (8,221)
(82,391) (18,341) (17,613) 8,221)
23,231 3,395 - -
(59,160) (14,946) (17,613) (8,221)

The notes on pages 37 to 123 form an integralgddhtese financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP
Attributable to shareholders of the parent company
Non
Share Share Other Treasury Retained controlling Total

Note capital premium reserves shares earnings Total interests equity
1 January 2014 182,311 523,847 200,198 (27,072) ,942 892,226 258,150 1,150,376
Net profit/(loss) for the year - - - - (51,618)  1(618) 18,342 (33,275)
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation differences 22 - - 5,720 - - 5720 18 5,738

Fair value gains/(losses) on

available-for-sale financial

assets & adjustment of

reclassification 22 - - 21,258 - - 21,258 (987) 220
Adjustment of reclassification

of available-for-sale reserve due

to impairment of investment in

mining companies 22 - - 45,575 - - 45,575 - 45,575
Changes in value of cash flow

hedge 22 - - (37,060) - - (37,060) (12,997) (50)05
Actuarial loss 22 - - (948) - - (948) (297) (1524
Other - - - - (1,268) (1,268) (685) (1,953)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)

for the year (net of tax) - - 34,545 - (1,268) 33,277 (14,948) 18,329
Total comprehensive

income/(loss) for the year - - 34,545 - (52,886) (18,341) 3,395 (14,946)
Transfer from/ to reserves 22 - - (40,671) - 40,67 - (57) (57)
Distribution of dividend - - - - - - (52,680) (%8B0)
Effect of change % in the

interest held in a sub-group of

ELTECH ANEMOS due to

listing on ATHEX - - (1,676) - 9,653 7,977 27,157 35,134
Effect of change in interests

held in other subsidiaries - - - - (554) (554) 0d4) (1,598)
31 December 2014 182,311 523,847 192,397 (27,072) 9,825 881,308 234,920 1,116,228
1 January 2015 182,311 523,847 192,397 (27,072) 828, 881,308 234,920 1,116,228
Net profit/(loss) for the year - - - - (106,071) 106,071) (15,708) (90,363)
Other comprehensive income

Currency translation differences 22 - - 4,737 - - 4,737 27) 4,710
Fair value gains/(losses) on

available-for-sale financial

assets 22 - - 19 - - 19 94 113
Changes in value of cash flow

hedge 22 - - 18,885 - - 18,885 7,422 26,307
Actuarial profit 22 - - 47 - - 47 9 56
Other - - - - (8) (8) 25 17
Other comprehensive

income/(loss) for the year (net

of tax) - - 23,688 - (8) 23,680 7,523 31,203
Total comprehensive

income/(loss) for the year - - 23,688 - (106,079) (82,391) 23,231 (59,160)
Transfer from/ to reserves 22 - - 4,729 - (4,729) - - -
Distribution of dividend - - - - - - (24,898) (B98)
Effect of change in %

participation in subsidiaries 22 - - (136) - (474)  (610) (332) (942)
31 December 2015 182,311 523,847 220,678 (27,072) (101,457) 798,307 232,922 1,031,229
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COMPANY
Share Share Other Treasury Retained
Note capital premium reserves shares earnings Total equity
1 January 2014 182,311 523,847 103,087 (27,072) 7,284) 754,889
Net loss for the year - - - - (8,208) (8,208)
Other comprehensive income
Actuarial loss 22 - - (13) - - (13)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for
the year (net of tax) - - (13) - - (13)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for
the year - - (13) - (8,208) (8,221)
Transfer from/ to reserves - - (47,169) - 47,169 -
31 December 2014 182,311 523,847 55,904 (27,072) 1,677 746,667
1 January 2015 182,311 523,847 55,904 (27,072) 6711, 746,667
Net loss for the year - - - - (17,610) (17,610)
Other comprehensive income
Actuarial loss 22 - - 3 - - ?3)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for
the year (net of tax) - - 3) - - )
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for
the year - - 3) - (17,610) (17,613)
31 December 2015 182,311 523,847 55,901 (27,072) 5,93B) 729,054

The notes on pages 37 to 123 form an integralgidhtese financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Note
All amounts in EUR thousand.

Operating activities
Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization 6,7,8,
Impairment of PPE, investment property, associgbés, ventures & available-
for-sale financial assets 29.30

Impairment of investment in mining companies 30
Provisions

Currency translation differences

Profit/(loss) from investing activities

Interest and related expenses 31
Impairment provisions and write-offs 30

Plus/ less working capital adjustments or relatedperating activities:
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories

Decrease/ (increase) in receivables

(Decrease)/ increase in liabilities (except borrays)

Less:

Interest and related expenses paid

Income taxes paid

Net Cash flows from Operating Activities (a)

Investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries, affiliates, joint opéions, financial assets held to
maturity and available-for-sale financial assets

Sale of subsidiaries, affiliates, joint operatiofisancial assets held to maturity
and available-for-sale financial assets

Placements of time deposits over 3 months
Liguidation of time deposits over 3 months

Purchase of tangible and intangible assets andtment properties
Proceeds from sale of tangible and intangible assed investment property

Interest received

Loans granted to related parties
Dividends received

Restricted cash reduction

Net Cash flows from investing activities (b)
Financing activities

Acquisition of participation share in subsidiarfesm/to non-controlling
interests

Proceeds from issued/utilised loans and debt issueosts
Repayment of borrowings

Proceeds from issued/utilised loans from relatatigsa
Repayment of borrowings from related parties
Repayment of financial lease liabilities (amortiaa}
Dividends paid

Tax paid on dividends

Grants returned

Restricted cash reduction
Third-party participation in the share capital ese of ELTECH ANEMOS
SA and other subsidiaries

Expenses for share capital increase of ELTECH ANEBVEA

Refund of subsidiaries’ share capital to third jeart

Net Cash flows from financing activities (c)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents of the year (a) + (b) + (c)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginnincf year 20
Exchange differences in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 20

GROUP COMPANY
1-Janto 1-Janto 1-Janto 1-Janto
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
(53,900) (10,777) (16,752) (8,215)
125,717 105,690 814 825
29,823 337 29,566 -
133, 54,158 - -
16,259 2,584 28 22
3,356 3,803 - -
(10,119) (19,384) (29,903) (10,448)
85,000 85,104 15,119 16,356
3,127 2,685 - -
(9,286) 3,371 - -
(79,598) (159,210) 44 1,049
10,702 89,441 (933) 733
(62,642) (62,571) (17,133) (7,637)
(62,079) (73,464) (2,735) (72)
33,534 21,768 (21,885) (7,387)
125(683) (30,647) (11) (532)
34,248 33,870 - 435
®) - - -
- AR3 - -
(112,711) (104,003) 1) (40)
3,330 8,690 - -
6,603 19,107 4 13
(1,236) (22,658) ) 3)
684 1,799 16,099 10,424
16,943 4,222 - -
(177,827) (46,227) 16,089 10,298
- (2,315) - -
300,546 196,875 27,545 (1,729)
(366,082) (296,991) (28,000) -
- 199 27,750 -
- - (24,400) -
(894) (932) - -
(26,661) (44,476) (23) (40)
(660) (1,916) - -
- (1,918) - -
5,635 6,868 - -
- 35,156 - -
- (2,601) - -
(78) (89) - -
(88,194) (112,140) 2,872 (1,769)
(23B6) (136,599) (2,924) 1,141
679,91t 814,90: 3,95¢ 2,81¢
2,946 1,616 - -
450,378 679,918 1,035 3,959

The notes on pages 37 to 123 form an integralgddhtese financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

The Group operates via its subsidiaries, mainlycanstructions and quarrying, real estate developraaed
management, wind power and environment, and colaressctors. The Group’s investments are detailatbie

41. The Group operates abroad in the Middle Easttcies, and more specifically in the United AramiEates,
Qatar, Kuwait, Oman and Jordan, as well as in ottmemtries, such as Germany, Italy, Cyprus, Romania
Bulgaria, Albania, Serbia, Slovenia, Croatia, BasHerzegovina, FYROM, the United Kingdom, Cameroon,
Ethiopia, Turkey, USA, Chile and Panama.

ELLAKTOR SA (the Company) was incorporated andstblished in Greece with registered and centfadesf
at 25 Ermou Str., 145 64, Kifissia, Attica.

The Company’s shares are traded on the Athens &xakange.

These financial statements were approved by thedBohDirectors on 29 March 2016 and are subjedh®
approval of the General Shareholders’ Meeting. Thae available on the company’'s website at:
www.ellaktor.com.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The basic accounting principles applied in the prafion of these financial statements are set elavb These
principles have been consistently applied to arggresented, unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated and corporate financial statesrieawve been prepared in accordance with the hiiemnal
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Iméghions of the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), as they havenbagopted by the European Union. The financiakstants
have been prepared under the historical cost cdiaverexcept for the available-for-sale financiakets at fair
value through profit and loss (including derivaty®alued at fair value.

The preparation of the financial statements unB&9 requires the use of accounting estimates audrgions
by the Management in implementing the accountinicies adopted. The areas involving extensive jueiginor
complexity, or where assumptions and estimates hawgnificant impact on the financial statements a
mentioned in Note 4.

2.1.1 Going Concern

The financial statements as of 31 December 2015separed in accordance with the International iéred
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and provide a reasonaleleentation of the financial position, profit dieds, and
cash flows of the Group, in accordance with thagple of going concern.

2.1.2. Macroeconomic conditions in Greece

Despite the signs of stabilisation of the Greeknetoy in 2014, for the first time after six years8@ increase in
the GDP, attainment of primary surplus), the uraety at political and macroeconomic levels inceszhagain in
2015. The long negotiations with the institutioe$ating to the financing for Greece, the referendtim bank
holiday, the imposition of capital controls (whicre still applicable) and the parliamentary elewian

September 2015 adversely affected the Greek econamgh returned to recession, with the GDP fallimg

0.2% on an annual basis, and negatively affecteddthmestic activities of the Group and, in particulthe

construction business.
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The agreement between the Greek Government armteithtors in August 2015 for an assistance programm
involving a loan of EUR 86 bhillion from the ESM (Epean Stability Mechanism) and the successful
recapitalisation of the four systemic banks in Delber 2015 mitigated the negative impact and rapenism
about the gradual stabilisation of the macroeconoanid financial environments in Greece. Howevesksri
continue, since the completion of the first evabrabof the programme, which will pertain to a seri fiscal
adjustment measures and, above all, measuresgfomgiiementation of the requisite reforms, is géhding in
late March 2016. At the same time, internationgliteh markets face increased volatility, the refigeoblem has
intensified with increased flows of refugees to €& while, lastly, the geopolitical risk is alsucrieased
(regional tensions, increase in terrorist attaeks,). Therefore, it is assessed that 2016 wikh lifficult year for
the Greek economy and for the Group.

The major risks that the Group might be faced wlile to its exposure in Greece include the slowee pa the
execution of works, further delays in the progressl completion of public works, the inability tocoser
receivables, and the impairment of tangible andngible assets.

Nevertheless, the Management continually evaluhisituation and its possible impact on the Greognsure
that all necessary and possible measures and si@rentaken in good time to minimize any negatiapdct on
the Group’s business.

2.2 New standards, amendments to standards and interptations

Certain new standards, amendments to standardsntergretations have been issued that are mand&ory
periods beginning during the current financial yaad subsequent years. The Group’s evaluationeoéttect of
these new standards, amendments to standardstartétations is as follows:

Standards and Interpretations effective for the curent financial year and not significantly altering the
Financial Statements of the Group and the Company

IFRIC 21 “Levies”

This interpretation sets out the accounting forollfigation to pay a levy imposed by government tisahot

income tax. The interpretation clarifies that théigating event that gives rise to a liability taypa levy (one of
the criteria for the recognition of a liability awding to IAS 37) is the activity described in thelevant
legislation that triggers the payment of the leViie interpretation could result in recognition ofibility later

than today, particularly in connection with levtbat are triggered by circumstances on a spedifie.d

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2013

The amendments set out below describe the key esanghree IFRSs following the publication of teeults of
the IASB’s 2011-13 cycle of the annual improvemenntgect.

IFRS 3 “Business combinations”

This amendment clarifies that IFRS 3 does not apgplythe accounting for the formation of any joint
arrangement under IFRS 11 in the financial statésngfithe joint arrangement itself.
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IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

The amendment clarifies that the portfolio excaptin IFRS 13 applies to all contracts (includingnno
financial contracts) within the scope of IAS 39/FR.

IAS 40 “Investment property”

The standard is amended to clarify that IAS 40 &R 3 are not mutually exclusive.

Standards and Interpretations effective for subsegent periods that have not entered into force and tht
have not been adopted earlier by the Group and thEompany

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and subsequent amendhents to IFRS 9, IFRS 7 éffective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

IFRS 9 replaces the guidance in IAS 39 which deadtls the classification and measurement of finanassets
and financial liabilities and it also includes arpected credit losses model that replaces the rieduloss
impairment model used today. IFRS 9 establishesoee mrinciple-based approach to hedge accounting an
addresses inconsistencies and weaknesses in tieatconodel in IAS 39. The Group is currently invgating the
impact of IFRS 9 on its financial statements. Theup cannot currently early adopt IFRS 9 as itfatsyet been
endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”(effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 2018)

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014. The objective efdtandard is to provide a single, comprehensivenge
recognition model for all contracts with custom&rsmprove comparability within industries, acrasdustries,
and across capital markets. It contains principleg an entity will apply to determine the measwramof
revenue and timing of when it is recognised. Thdeunlying principle is that an entity will recognisevenue to
depict the transfer of goods or services to custeraé an amount that the entity expects to beledtib in
exchange for those goods or services. The Groapriently investigating the impact of IFRS 15 amfinancial
statements. The standard has not yet been endoysbd EU.

IFRS 16 “Leases”(effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2019)

IFRS 16 has been issued in January 2016 and sdpers&S 17. The objective of the standard is tausnshat
lessees and lessors provide relevant informatianrmanner that faithfully represents those transast IFRS 16
introduces a single lessee accounting model andire=ga lessee to recognise assets and liabifdiesll leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless the tyidg asset is of low value. IFRS 16 substantiaarries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS Accordingly, a lessor continues to classifyléases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to acfoutitose two types of leases differently. The Gr@icurrently
investigating the impact of IFRS 16 on its finahsi@tements. The standard has not yet been emtloysthe EU.
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IAS 19R (Amendment) “Employee Benefits”(effective for annual periods beginning on or afteFebruary

2015)

These narrow scope amendments apply to contritaifimm employees or third parties to defined benméins
and simplify the accounting for contributions tha¢ independent of the number of years of emplegeéce, for
example, employee contributions that are calculatairding to a fixed percentage of salary.

IFRS 11 (Amendment) “Joint Arrangements” (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftedanuary

2016)

This amendment requires an investor to apply theciples of business combination accounting wheatguires
an interest in a joint operation that constitutédsusiness’.

IAS 16 and IAS 38 (Amendments) “Clarification of Aceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
(effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2016)

This amendment clarifies that the use of revenigethanethods to calculate the depreciation of aet assot
appropriate and it also clarifies that revenueesegally presumed to be an inappropriate basismfsasuring the
consumption of the economic benefits embodied im&mngible asset.

IAS 27 (Amendment) “Separate financial statements’(effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 2016)

This amendment allows entities to use the equitthoteto account for investments in subsidiariemitjeentures
and associates in their separate financial statesnaewl clarifies the definition of separate finahstatements.

IAS 1 (Amendments) “Disclosure initiative” (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2016)

These amendments clarify guidance in IAS 1 on riwditsr and aggregation, the presentation of suldpthe
structure of financial statements and the disclstdiaccounting policies.

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 (Amendments) “Investmdrentities: Applying the consolidation exception”
(effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2016)

These amendments clarify the application of thesobdation exception for investment entities aneirth
subsidiaries. The amendments have not yet beensadiby the EU.

IAS 12 (Amendments) “Recognition of Deferred Tax Asets for Unrealised LossesT{effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017)

These amendments clarify the accounting for dedetex assets for unrealised losses on debt instrtsme
measured at fair value. The amendments have naegst endorsed by the EU.

IAS 7 (Amendments) “Disclosure initiative” (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2017)

These amendments require entities to provide disods that enable users of financial statementsvaduate
changes in liabilities arising from financing adiizs. The amendments have not yet been endorsttelyU.
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Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2017 effective for annual periods beginning on or aftérebruary 2015)

The amendments set out below describe the key elsangcertain IFRSs following the publication of tfesults
of the IASB’s 2010-12 cycle of the annual improverseproject.

IFRS 2 “Share-based payment”

The amendment clarifies the definition of a ‘vegtoondition’ and separately defines ‘performancediion’
and ‘service condition’.

IFRS 3 “Business combinations”

The amendment clarifies that an obligation to pagtingent consideration which meets the definitidra
financial instrument is classified as a financiabllity or as equity, on the basis of the defimits in IAS 32
“Financial instruments: Presentation”. It also iflas that all non-equity contingent consideratidmgth
financial and non-financial, is measured at falueahrough profit or loss.

IFRS 8 “Operating segments”

The amendment requires disclosure of the judgmemasle by management in aggregating operating
segments.

IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

The amendment clarifies that the standard doesemobve the ability to measure short-term receivalled
payables at invoice amounts in cases where thecingbaot discounting is immaterial.

IAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment” and IAS 38tangible assets”

Both standards are amended to clarify how the grasging amount and the accumulated depreciatien a
treated where an entity uses the revaluation model.

IAS 24 “Related party disclosures”

The standard is amended to include, as a relatagl, @ entity that provides key management persbnn
services to the reporting entity or to the pardrihe reporting entity.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2016)
The amendments set out below describe the key esandgour IFRSs.

IFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and distnred operations”

The amendment clarifies that, when an asset (qodial group) is reclassified from ‘held for sale’*held for
distribution’, or vice versathis does not constitute a change to a planlefaadistribution, and does not have
to be accounted for as such.

IFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures”

The amendment adds specific guidance to help mamafedetermine whether the terms of an arrangemeent
service a financial assathich has been transferred constitute continumglvement and clarifies that the
additional disclosure required by the amendmentd-RS 7, ‘Disclosure — Offsetting financial assatxd
financial liabilities’ is not specifically requirei@r all interim periods, unless required by IAS 34
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IAS 19 “Employee benefits”

The amendment clarifies that, when determiningdiseount rate for post-employment benefit obligadioit
is the currency that the liabilities are denomidatethat is important, and not the country whéeytarise.

IAS 34 “Interim financial reporting”

The amendment clarifies what is meant by the refarén the standard to ‘information disclosed elsenw in
the interim financial report’.

2.3 Consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are economic entities in which theugrexercises control on their operation. The Grexgrcises
control on a company, when it is exposed or hadstsigver variable performances from its participatin the
company, and has the capacity to affect those prafioces through the power it exercises on the compkhe
existence and effect of voting rights that can ker@sed or converted are also taken into accaudibtument
that the Group is in control of the economic entifthere may also be control in cases where theinplid the
share capital with voting rights is less than 5@t the Group is able to exercise control overfihancial and
business policies on a de facto basis. There ifacte control where the number of voting rightschbly the
Group, in relation to the number and allocationtted rights held by other shareholders, enable tfeugsto
exercise control over the financial and businesigips.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the datemvcontrol over them is acquired and cease tmbsotidated
from the date when control no longer exists.

The unions of businesses are accounted for usagatuisition method. Acquisition cost is calculiaées the fair
value of the assets assigned, of obligations uaklent or in place, and of the equity instrumentsddsas of the
date of transaction. The acquisition cost inclutthesfair value of the assets or liabilities arisfngm contingent
consideration arrangements. The individual as$iatslities and contingent liabilities that are aggd during a
business combination are valued initially at tHair values at the acquisition date. The group geces a non-
controlling participation in the subsidiary, if graither in the fair value, or in the value of @feare of the non-
controlling participation in the net position ofetcompany acquired. The Group recognizes non-dbngo
interests in proportion to the subsidiary’s equiitiie acquisition costs are posted in profit and Exsincurred.

In a business combination achieved in stages,dheirer shall remeasure its equity interest presiiptield in the
acquiree at fair value at the acquisition dateraedgnize any gain or loss in income.

Any contingent consideration to be paid by the @raurecognized initially at fair value at the aisifion date.
Any changes in fair value of contingent consideratihat qualify for classification as an assetiability are
recognized in accordance with IAS 39 either in prof loss or as effect on other comprehensive rimeoA
contingent consideration recognized as equity tsexalued and its subsequent settlement is aceddat within
equity.

When the sum of (a) the cost of acquisition, (I8) @mount recognized as non-controlling interestis(ajpthe fair
value at the acquisition date of the Group's shiithe combination is achieved in stages, is gnettian the net
assets acquired, the excess is recognized as dbdéittie above sum is less than the fair valughef net assets
acquired, the difference is recognized directlpiafit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealga&ids on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminateget if the transaction provides indication of amment of the
transferred asset. The accounting principles oftlissidiaries have been amended so as to be ioroubyf with

the ones adopted by the Group. In the parent cop'p&tatement of Financial Position, subsidiaries\alued at
cost less impairment.
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(b) Changes to holdings in subsidiaries withowsslof control

Any transactions with minority shareholders havimg effect on the control exercised by the Grouprdhe
subsidiary are measured and recorded as equitgatdans, i.e. they are handled in the same wathais
followed for transactions with key Group sharehaddd he difference between the price paid and éhevant
share acquired in the book value of the subsidsaeyuity is deducted from equity. Any profit ordaaising from
the sale to majority shareholders is also posteuequity.

(c) Sale of / loss of control over subsidiary

As soon as the Group ceases to exercise contral subsidiary, the remaining percentage is measatrdair
value, and any differences are posted in resuliss&juently, this asset is classified as an agsooidinancial
asset, its acquisition value being that fair vallre.addition, any amounts previously recorded unG¢hner
Comprehensive Income will be accounted for as endhse of sale of a subsidiary, and therefore thay be
accounted for in profit or loss.

(d) Associates

Associates are economic entities on which the Goaupexercise significant influence but not “cofffravhich is
generally the case when the Group holds a percerttegveen 20% and 50% of a company’s voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for ukmgdquity method. In accordance with the equityhmet an
investment in an associate is recognized initiathacquisition cost and the book value increasedeoreases in
order for the investor's share to be recognizethénassociate’s profit or loss following the dafeaoquisition.
The “Investments in associates” account also ireduthe goodwill resulting on acquisition (reduced dmy
impairment losses).

In case of sale of a holding in an associate orclwlhe Group continues, however, to exercise somf
influence, only the portion of amounts previousbsted directly in Other Comprehensive Income wéllgmsted
in results.

Following the acquisition, the Group’s share in ti@ns or losses of associates is recognized innteme
statement, while the share of changes in Other Celmemsive Income following the acquisition is remiagd in
Other Comprehensive Income. Accumulated changeoviollg the acquisition affect the book value of
investments in associates with a respective adprstiof the present value of the investment. WhenGhoup's
share in the losses of an associate is equal gerlghan the carrying amount of the investment,Gheup does
not recognize any further losses, unless it hasagiteed for liabilities or made payments on belodlthe
associate.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet dateewkimhe is evidence of impairment of investmemts i
associates. If any investment must be impaired@tmup calculates the amount of impairment as tfierdnce
between the recoverable amount of the investmehttamook value.

Unrealized profits from transactions between theup and its associates are eliminated accorditiget@roup’s
percentage ownership in the associates. Unrealizesks are eliminated, except if the transacticoviges
indications of impairment of the transferred as$éte accounting principles of affiliates have beeljusted in
order to be in conformity to the ones adopted leyGmoup. In the parent company’s balance sheaiciadss are
valued at cost less impairment.

(43) / (127)



ELLAKTOR SA
‘ ELLAKTOR Annual Financial statements in line with IFRS
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2015

(e) Joint Arrangements

According to IFRS 11, the types of joint arrangetaexre reduced to two: joint operations and joaritures. The
classification depends on the rights and obligatiohthe parties with regard to the agreement akdst into
account the structure and legal form of the agre¢émihe terms agreed upon by the parties and, where
appropriate, other facts and circumstances.

Joint operationsare the joint agreements where the parties (fj@atits), which have joint control, have rights on
the assets and obligations for the liabilities tietpto the arrangement. The participants shalbaat for the
assets and liabilities (as well as the revenuesapdnses) relating to their interest in the jojnération.

Joint venturesre the joint agreements where the parties (vergyrwhich have joint control on the agreements,
have rights to the net assets of the arrangemémtseT undertakings are accounted for under theyemgthod
(proportional consolidation is no longer allowed).

Under IAS 31, the Group accounted for the jointeagnents in which it participated by using the prapoate
consolidation method. Exceptions were those whiehewnactive on the date of first IFRS adoptionysere not
important, which were consolidated using the eqoigthod. These agreements, following the implentiemtapf
IFRS 11, will continue be consolidated by the Groupler the equity method until their final clearanc

The key joint agreements where the Group partiegpaertain to the execution of construction comgrétmrough
jointly controlled vehicles. These joint arrangetseare classified as joint operations because thgal form
offers the parties immediate rights to assets aalklesrthem liable for the liabilities. AccordinglteRS 11, the
Group accounts for assets, liabilities, revenue exygenses based on its share in the joint opegatidate 41c
presents in detail the share in the joint operatimithe Group.

The Group has classified in joint ventures the camigs shown in note 41b (together with the asses)an
which the participating parties have rights in tted assets of the companies and are thus consalithgt using
the equity method in accordance with IAS 28.

The Statement of Financial Position of the paremgany does not include joint arrangements.

2.4 Segment reporting

Reports by segment are prepared in line with ttierial financial reports provided to the Chairmame
Managing Director and other executives of the BoafrdDirectors, who are mainly responsible for decis

making. The key persons responsible for decisiokimgaundertake to establish a strategy, allocateurces and
evaluate the performance of each business segment.
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2.5 Foreign exchange conversions

(@) Functional and presentation currency

The items in the financial statements of the Greugompanies are measured in the currency of thmapyi
economic environment in which the Group operatesdional currency). The consolidated financiatestaents
are reported in Euros, which is the presentatioreagy of the Group.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Currency transactions are translated into the fonat currency using the exchange rates prevadirthe dates of
the transactions. Profits and losses from curredrenyslation differences that arise from the setfiehof such
transactions during the financial year and fromttheslation of monetary items into foreign excheuag current
rates applicable on the balance sheet date aredesto profit and loss, except where they aresfiemed directly
to Other comprehensive income due to being rel@eadsh flow hedges and net investment hedges.

Any changes to the fair value of financial secastin foreign currency designated as availablesdte are broken
down into currency translation differences fromharmge to the net value of the security and othangbs due to
book value. Currency translation differences aletdd from profit and loss, and other differencesteansferred
to other comprehensive income.

Currency translation differences from non-monettmns that are valued at their fair value are adersid as part
of their fair value and are thus treated similddyfair value differences. Currency translatiorfefiénces in non-
financial assets and liabilities, such as sharassdied as available for sale are included in O@@mprehensive
Income.

(c) Group Companies

The results and financial position of all groupities (none of which has the currency of a hypéatidnary
economy) that have a functional currency differénetm the presentation currency are translated th®
presentation currency as follows:

i) The assets and liabilities are converted usingates in effect at the balance sheet date;

ii) The income and expenses are converted using thageveates of the period (except if the average
rate is not the reasonable approach of the acctmalilmpact of the rates in effect at the datesief t
transactions, in which case income and expensearerted using the rates in effect at the dates
of the transactions) and

iii) Any differences arising from this process are pbstader other comprehensive income and are
transferred to the income statement upon dispdghkese companies.

Foreign exchange differences arising from the cmsiga of the net investment in a foreign comparsyyall as
of the borrowing characterized as hedging of thiestment are posted under Other Comprehensivaninco
Upon disposal of a foreign company in part or iroleh accumulated exchange differences are traesféor the
income statement of the period as profit or lossiltang from the sale.

Gains and changes to fair value from the acquisitibforeign companies are deemed to be assettiadnilities
of the foreign company and are measured at theccyrrate applicable on the balance sheet datereudting
foreign exchange differences are recorded in Qtbeprehensive income.

2.6 Investment property

Properties held under long-lasting leases or dagains or both and are not used by Group compaaies
classified as investments in property. Investmeoperty includes privately owned plots and buildings well as
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properties under construction which are erectedeoeloped with a view to being used as investmespgrty in
the future.

Investment property is recognized initially at ¢astluding the relevant direct acquisition andrbaing costs.
Borrowing costs relating to acquisition or constime of investment property are capitalized to imeestment
cost for the duration of the acquisition or constian and are no longer capitalized when the figadet is
completed or stops to be constructed. After initedognition, investments in property are valueatct, less
depreciation and any impairment (note 2.11). Inwesit buildings are amortized based on their estichaseful
life which is 40 years; however historic non refahed buildings are amortized in 20 years.

Subsequent expenditure is added to the carryingeval the property only if it is probable that fieueconomic
benefits related to such property will flow to t8eoup and their cost can be reliably measured. r€pair and
maintenance cost is booked in the results when isucdeurred.

If an investment in property is modified to an a$ee own use, then it is classified in tangiblsets. Also, when
there is a change in use of the investment promasiyenced by commencement of development withew w0
sale, it is classified as inventories.

Property held by the parent company and leasedmopanies in the Group are classified as investmients
property in the financial statements of the Compang as tangible fixed assets in the consolidatezh€ial
statements.

2.7 Leases

€)) Group Company as lessee

Leases where the lessor retains substantiallyhallrisks and rewards of ownership are classifiedmsating
leases. Operating lease expense is recognize im¢cbme statement proportionally during the Igaeséod and
includes any restoration cost of the property dtsalause is included in the leasing contract.

Leases of fixed assets where all the risks andndsnaf ownership are maintained by the Group aaesified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalizeiedeases inception at the lower of the fair valti¢he leased
property and the present value of the minimum lgesanents. Each lease payment is apportioned bettiee
reduction of the liability and the finance chargetisat a fixed interest rate on the remaining faianliability is

achieved.} The respective lease liabilities, neffindnce charges, are included in borrowings. Thg pf the
finance charge relating to finance leases is reeegnin the income statement over the lease. Fa®skts
acquired through finance leases are depreciataettioeshorter of their useful life and the leasente

(b) Group Company as lessor

The Group leases assets only through operatinggeded@perating lease income is recognized in thenmec
statement of each period proportionally duringgbkedod of the lease.

2.8 Prepayments for long-term leases

Prepayments for long-term leases include Groupvabkes from various debtors and mainly relatesiceivables
of the subsidiaries:

(a) from prepayment of rents to property lessors;
(b) from payments for the completion of constructiaf Motorist Service Stations, which are showrthair

construction cost less depreciation. Their deptiecisstarts as soon as they are completed and rfeadyse and
is carried out using the straight line method dyitime concession contract;
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(c) from payments for the lease of property (fotast, plot) on which wind farms will be installéar the entire
term of their operation. An accumulated expensdl leaannually calculated as from the entry int@@gion of
the wind farm, based on its useful life.

29 Property, Plant and Equipment

Fixed assets are reported in the financial statésnanacquisition cost minus accumulated depreciatind
possible impairment (note 2.11). Acquisition costlides all expenditure directly attributable te #icquisition
of the fixed assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s ngrgfinount or recognized as a separate asset, a¥papte,
only when it is probable that future economic bésefssociated with the item will flow to the Groapd the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The repait maintenance cost is recorded in the results veueh is
incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of otheraofgible assets is calculated using the straigbtrethod over
their useful life as follows:

- Buildings 2C-4C  vyear:
- Mechanical equipment (except wind farms and PV gark 5-10 vyears
- Mechanical equipment for wind farms, PV parks agdrb power

plant (subject to Law 4254/2014) 27 years
- Mechanical equipment for wind farms, PV parks (gninto

operation following 01.01.201- 20 years
- Transportation equipme 5-9 year:
- Other equipme! 5-1C vyear:

The residual values and useful economic life of RRESubject to reassessment at least at eacttbalheet date.

The useful life of the wind farms and the hydro powlant that had been already operating for less 1.2 years
was increased in 2014 from 20 to 27 years, duedevan-year extension to the operating contraatemubaw
4254/2014.

PPE under construction include fixed assets unagrstouction that are shown at their cost. PPE under
construction are not depreciated until the fixeseass completed and enters in operation.

When the book values of tangible assets exceed rémmdverable value, the difference (impairmentpasted in
the income statement as expense (note 2.11).

Upon the sale of tangible assets, any differentedmn the proceeds and the depreciable amountasded as
profit or loss in the results.

Financial assets concerning the construction oétasare being capitalized for the period needed thm
completion of the construction. An asset fulfillitlie requirements is an asset necessarily requirisignificant
period of preparation for the use it is intendeddofor its sale. All other financial expenses egeognized in the
income statement.
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2.10 Intangible assets
(@ Goodwill

Goodwill arises from acquisition of subsidiarieslas the difference between the sum of the acdurisjirice, the
amount of non-controlling interests in the acquicednpany and the fair value of any prior partidipgtinterest
in the acquired company as on the acquisition datethe fair value of the recognisable net asddatsecacquired
subsidiary. Goodwill arising from acquisitions afbsidiaries is recognized in intangible assets.dBabis not
depreciable and is tested for impairment annuallygven more frequently if the circumstances inigaossible
impairment, and recognized at cost, less any impait losses. Goodwill losses cannot be reversed.

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating unitsifopairment testing. Allocation is made to thosetsimir cash
generating unit groups which are expected to befrefn the business combinations which created gabdind
is recognized in line with the operating segment.

Profit and losses from the disposal of an undemtaknclude the book value of the goodwill of thedartaking
sold.

Negative goodwill is written off in profit and logsote 2.11).
(b) Software

Software licenses are valued at acquisition cast teepreciation. Depreciation is accounted for with straight
line method during the useful lives which vary frano 3 years.

(c) Concession right

Concession rights are valued at the acquisitiont, dess depreciation. Depreciation is carried osing the
straight line method during the Concession conffaate 2.25).

(d) User licenses

User licenses means the generation licenses fowith@ farms and PV parks; they are measured atisitign
cost less depreciation. Depreciation is carriedfaun the date of entry in operation of the windnia and PV
parks, using the straight line method, during thusieful life, which is 27 years for projects thatvla entered in
operation before 1 January 2014 and 20 years farprejects. User licences are subject to impairntesting
when certain events or changes in the circumstaindésate that the carrying value may not be recalvie (note
2.11).

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets with an indefinite useful life are not dejméed, and are subject to impairment testing oaranual basis,
and when certain events or changes to the circumressasuggest that their carrying value may noebewerable.
Assets that are depreciated are subject to impairmedit when indications exist that their bookueals not
recoverable. Impairment loss is recognized forahmunt by which the fixed asset's carrying valueeess its
recoverable value. The recoverable value is thadnigpetween fair value, reduced by the cost reduioe the
disposal, and the value in use (current value sh diows anticipated to be generated based on Hreagement's
estimates of future financial and operating coodg). For the calculation of impairment lossesessre
classified in the minimum cash generating unitsy Aon-financial assets, apart from goodwill, whitive been
impaired are reassessed for possible impairmentsal/on each balance sheet date.
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2.12 Financial Assets

2.12.1 Classification

The financial instruments of the Group have beessified to the following categories accordinghe bbjective
for which each investment was undertaken. The Mamegmt makes the decisions on classification atainit
recognition.

(&) Financial instruments valued at fair value thgh the income statement

This class comprises financial assets held foriigadDerivatives are classified as held for tradiegcept when
they are designated as hedges. Assets falling uhidecategory are recorded in the current aséétgy are held
for trading purposes or are expected to be soldinvit2 months from the balance sheet date.

(b) Borrowings and receivables

These include non-derivative financial assets \iiited or predefined payments which are not tradeddtive

markets. They are included in current assets, ¢Xoepnaturities greater than 12 months after thkamce sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assetsovdngs and receivables are included in the traate other
receivables account in the Statement of Finan@aitien.

(c) Financial assets held to maturity

Financial assets held to maturity are non-derieatissets with fixed or determined payments andifgpec
maturity, which the Group management intends toianid position to hold until maturity. Should troup sell
a significant portion of financial assets held tatumity, the entire portfolio of assets classifiagl such are
reclassified under available-for-sale financialeassFinancial assets held to maturity are postedon-current
assets, with the exception of assets whose mafarigss than 12 months from the date of the firdmeport, in
which case they are classified under current assets

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets

These include non-derivative financial assets d@hateither designated as such or cannot be includaly of the
previous categories. They are included in non-cdri@ssets unless management intends to disposkeof t
investment within 12 months of the balance shett.da

2.12.2 Recognition and Measurement

The purchase and sales of investments are recéodexh the trade-date, which is the date on whiwh Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investmargsinitially recognized at their fair value, plegpenses
directly related to the transaction, with the extmap of those assets, regarding expenses direeliyed to the
transaction, which are valued at their fair valbeotigh profit and loss. Financial assets valuefaiatvalue
through profit and loss are initially recognizedfat value, and transaction expenses are recogjiizessults in
the period they were incurred. Investments areieéited when the right in cash flows from investrseshds or
is transferred and the Group has transferred eceéll risks and benefits attached to ownership.

Subsequently, financial assets held for sale arasored at fair value and the relative gains oreessom
changes to fair value are recorded in Other congrgille income till those assets are sold or detggnas
impaired. Upon sale or when assets are charaatesizémpaired, the gains or losses are transféortite income
statement. Impairment losses recognized in remdtg not be reversed through profit and loss.
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Borrowings and receivables, as well as financiaktsheld to maturity are recognized initially @t fvalue and
are measured subsequently at net book cost basthé effective rate method.

The realized and unrealized profits or lossesmgiiom changes in the fair value of financial assehich are
valued at fair value through the income statememetrecognized in the profit and loss of the pedadng which
they occur.

The fair values of financial assets that are traiedctive markets are defined by their prices. Ron-traded
assets, fair values are defined with the use ofiatEdn techniques such as analysis of recent tctinsa,
comparative items that are traded and discountsial ftaws.

2.12.3 Offsetting of financial receivables and liabilities

Financial receivables and liabilities are offset ghe net amount is presented in the Statementir@nEial
position only where the Group or Company holdslégal right to do so and intends to offset themaociear
basis between them or to retrieve the financiateesd offset the liability at the same time.

2.12.4 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet datenthette is objective evidence that a financiatbesa group
of financial assets is impaired. In the case ofitggsecurities classified as available for salesignificant or

prolonged decline in the fair value of the secubigow its cost is considered as an indicator ttatsecurities are
impaired. If impairment is demonstrated, accumuldtss in equity which is the difference betweea tost of

acquisition and the fair value shall be carriedrdeeresults. Impairment losses of equity instrutegecognized
in the income statement are not reversed throughintbome statement. Reversal of security impairmang

recognized in profit or loss if the increase in fhie value of these items can be correlated objelgtto a certain

event that took place after recognition of impaintriess in profit or loss.

In case of objective indications that financialeassheld to maturity and presented at net bookisitigm value
have been impaired, the amount of impairment lessalculated as the difference between their aagryalue
and the current value of estimated future cashdl¢except for future losses from credit risks net incurred),
discounted at the initial effective rate. Impairmiasses of financial assets held to maturity asted in results.

The impairment test for receivables is describebite 2.15.

2.13 Financial derivatives

Group companies evaluate, on a case by case lasisnaking of financial derivative contracts to yedhe
exposure to rate fluctuations connected to longriean agreements.

Upon commencement of a transaction, the Group lestab the relation between the hedging instrumants
hedged assets, as well as the risk managemerdggtriat take various hedging actions. This procedheikides
the linking of all derivatives used as hedges tec#jt assets and liabilities or specific commitrserr
prospective transactions. Furthermore, when stadimedge and thereafter, the extent to which thevatives
used in hedging transactions are effective in elating fluctuations to the market value or cashvfioof the
hedged assets.
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The fair values of derivatives used for hedgingppsges are disclosed in note 15. Changes to the fRash
hedging reserve under Other comprehensive incomealiaclosed in note 22. The total fair value of died
derivatives is classified under non-current asset®ong-term liabilities when the remaining hedgesset has a
maturity over 12 months, or under current asseshort-term liabilities when the residual matutythe hedged
asset is less than 12 months. Derivatives helttdodle are classified under current assets or shortdiabilities.

Cash flow hedge
Derivative assets are initially recognized at failue as of the date of the relevant agreement.

The portion of change to the derivative’s fair \ealoonsidered effective and meeting the cash flodgimg
criteria is recognised in Other Comprehensive IneoRrofit or loss associated with the non-effecpeetion of
change is directly recognized in the Income Statgmender “Financial income” or “Financial experises

The cumulative amount posted under Equity is tiemefl in the Income Statement to the periods ovecwthe
hedged asset has affected period profit or lo§3®s profits or losses associated with the effegiogion of the
hedging of floating rate swaps is recognized in lthmome Statement under “Financial income” or “[icial
expenses”. However, when a prospective transastidme hedged results in the recognition of a noasfcial
asset (such as reserves or fixed assets), themgaignd losses previously posted in equity amesfesred from
Equity and are accounted for at the original cdstuzh asset. These amounts are ultimately chameesults
through the cost of sales in the case of researesthrough depreciation in the case of tangibdetas

When a hedging instrument matures or is sold, aznadn hedging relation no longer meets the critefribedge
accounting, the cumulative profits or losses po$tetthat time under Equity remain in Equity and egeognized
when the prospective transaction is ultimately @dsh the Income Statement. When a prospectiveddion is
no longer expected to be made, the cumulative tgrofilosses posted under Equity are directly feared to the
Income Statement under “Other operating profit§)ts

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of acquisitimst and net realisable value. The cost is caledlasing the
weighted average cost method. The cost of end ptsdand semi-finished inventories includes costiedign,
materials, average working cost and a proportioth@fgeneral cost of production.

Investments in properties to which a constructitidgtes aiming at a future sale are re-classifisdnventories at
book value at the balance sheet date. From noweynwill be calculated at the lowest value betwiéencost and
net realisable value. Financial expenses are ihitded in the acquisition cost of inventories. Tet realizable
value is estimated based on the stock’s curreesgaiice, within the framework of ordinary businessvities,
less any possible selling expenses, wherever saakeaconcurs.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fatue and subsequently measured at amortized sogj the
effective interest method, except if the discountcome is not important, less provision for impann A
provision for impairment of trade receivables itabished when there is objective evidence thatGhaup will

not be able to collect all of the amounts due, etiog to the original terms of receivables.

Trade and other receivables comprise of commepeipérs and notes payable.
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Serious problems that the customer encountergpdbsibility of bankruptcy or financial reorganizatiand the
inability of scheduled payments considered to hidence that the receivable value must be impaifad.amount
of the provision is the difference between the tssarrying value and the present value of estahdtiture cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest ratke BBmount of the provision is recognized as an resgpén the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, theuat of impairment decreases and the decreasédean
objectively related to an event taking place afte® impairment is recognised, the reversal of rasmgl
impairment loss is recognised in profit/(loss).

2.16 Restricted cash

Restricted cash are cash equivalents not readdifadnle for use. These cash equivalents may neisbd by the
Group until a certain point of time or event isalead or occurs in the future. In the cases whesteicted cash is
expected to be used within one year from the datheostatement of financial position, these aessified as a
short-term asset. However, if they are not expetdelge used within one year from the date of tiatestent of
financial position, they are classified as a loag asset.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, sight depand short-term investments of up to 3 montith high
liquidity and low risk.

2.18 Share capital

The share capital includes the Company’s ordinhgres. Whenever, any Group company purchases sbiares
the Company (Own shares), the consideration paiteducted from equity attributable to the Groupislity
holders until the shares are cancelled or dispoet@ihe profit or loss from the sale of own sharesecognized
directly to equity.

Direct expenses for the issue of shares appeaf gty relevant income tax benefit, to the reductdequity.
2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair valugst of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings argssquently
stated at net book cost, using the effective isterate method. Any difference between the procéeds of
transaction costs) and the redemption value isgrized in the income statement over the periodhef t
borrowings using the effective interest rate method

Any borrowing expenses paid upon execution of nesdit agreements are recognized as borrowing ergens
provided that part or all of the new credit linewghdrawn. In this case, they are recorded asréuborrowing
expenses until withdrawal is made. If the new bemgs are not used, in part or in all, these expsrare
included in prepaid expenses and are recognizpobiit or loss during the useful life of the relew&redit line.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilitiedass the Group has an unconditional right to dséttlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the ala sheet date.
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2.20 Current and deferred taxation

Income tax for the fiscal year comprises currert deferred taxation. Tax is recognised in the ineatatement,
unless relevant to amounts recognised in Other ogimemsive income or directly in equity. In this €atx is
also recognized in Other comprehensive income oty gespectively.

Income tax on profit is calculated in accordancthlie tax legislation established as of the baaieet date in
the countries where the Group operates, and isgréoed as expense in the period during which pnoéis
generated. The management regularly evaluates #dsescwhere the applicable tax legislation requires
interpretation. Where necessary, estimates are foadee amounts expected to be paid to tax autbsri

Deferred income tax is determined using the ligbifhethod on temporary differences arising betwnentax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrgimpunts, as shown in the financial statements. déferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises framtial recognition of an asset or liability in atisaction, other
than a business combination, that at the time e@fithnsaction affects neither the accounting otdlkable gains
or losses. Deferred tax is determined using thedtes and laws in force as of the date of theroalaheet, and
expected to be in force when the deferred tax vabées will be due or deferred tax liabilities Wik repaid.

Deferred tax receivables are recognized to thenéxtat there could be future taxable gains tothegemporary
difference that gives rise to the deferred taxiketdes.

Deferred tax receivables and liabilities are offsdy if the offsetting of tax receivables and lldies is permitted
by law, and provided that deferred tax receivabled liabilities are determined by the same tax@itthto the
tax paying entity or different entities, and théeimtion has been expressed to proceed to settlcloyewny of
offset.

2.21 Employee benefits
(a) Post-employment benefits

The employee benefits after their retirement ineldéfined contribution programs and defined bemeéigrams.
The Group participates in various pension plangnieats are defined by Greek law and the funds’legiguns.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defia specific amount to a pension to be receiveahiymployee
when he retires, which usually depends on one gerfaxtors such as age, years of service and ¢dazllary.

A defined contribution scheme is a pension planeunehich the Group makes fixed payments to a sépégal
entity. The Group has no legal obligation to paytfer contributions if the fund does not have sidfit assets to
pay to all employees the benefits relating to erygdoservice in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays Bbutions to public social security funds on a matedy basis.
The Group has no obligation other than paying distigbutions. The contributions are recognized ta$f sosts
when the debt arises. Prepaid contributions aregrézed as an asset if there is a cash refund lplitysor
offsetting against future debts.

The liability that is reported in the balance sheih respect to defined benefit schemes is thegirevalue of the
liability for the defined benefit on the balanceeshdate, less the fair value of the scheme’s sis§ae defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by anepdndent actuary using the projected unit credihate The
present value of the defined benefit obligatiomésermined by discounting future cash flows atscalint rate
equal to the rate of long-term investment grad@a@te bonds that have a maturity approximatelhaktpthe
pension plan.
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The current service cost of the defined benefiesuh that is recognised in the income statemenaiari®s and
wages reflects the increase in the defined bepéfigation resulting from an employee’s servicethie current
period, benefit changes, cut-backs and settlemdihis.recognised prior service cost is directly ggised in
profit/(loss).

Net interest cost is assessed as the net amoumedrethe obligation for the defined benefit scheme the fair
value of the assets of the scheme on the prepayintergst rate.

Actuarial gains or losses arising from experiergjegstments and changes in actuarial assumptionsharged or
credited to Other comprehensive income in the plariovhich they arise.

Past service costs are recognized immediatelyeiintome statement.

(b) Employment termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employmetgrisinated before the normal retirement date, logrwan

employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchamgihése benefits. The Group recognizes these iteaéthe

earliest of the following dates: (a) when the Greap no longer withdraw the offer of such beneéitsj b) when
the Company recognizes restructuring costs fallirihin the scope of IAS 37 and includes the paymat
termination benefits. In the case of an offer méml@ncourage voluntary redundancy, retirement lisnafe

calculated based on the number of employees expéataccept the offer. When such termination béseifie

deemed payable in periods that exceed 12 months thhe Balance Sheet date, then they must be ditebuar

their current value.

In case of employment termination where the nunsb@mployees to use such benefits cannot be detednthe
benefits are disclosed as contingent liability, &ng not accounted for.

2.22  Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, outstagditigations, unaudited years, gross motorwayntegiance
and other cases are recognized when an actual degedsumed commitment exists as a result of pasitg,
when settlement of such commitment will likely reéguan outflow of resources, and when the requinedunt
can be reliably estimated.

When concession contracts (note 2.25) include threcessionaire’s contractual obligation to maintie
infrastructure at a certain service level or restihre infrastructure to a certain state beforevdshig it to the
conceder at the end of the concession period, tfeigs as concessionaire, acknowledges and valuss th
obligation under IAS 37.

Provisions are recognized on a discounted basis Weeffect of the time value of money is sigrfit, using a
pre-tax rate which reflects current market assestsnef the time value of money and the risk spedidi the
liability. When provisions are discounted, the g®se in provisions due to the lapse of time isgeized as a
financial expense. Provisions are reviewed on eath of financial statements and if an outflowwnids to settle
the obligation is unlikely, they are reversed ia thcome statement.
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2.23 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the delitor collectable price, after deduction of arscdunts.

The Group recognises revenue when this can béheliaeasured and it is probable that the economnefits of
the transaction will flow to the Group.

Revenue mainly comes from technical projects, to#s, operating leases or sale of property, gdaiterand sale
of energy, waste management, production and tradeasrying products.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized wherGroup has transferred material risks and thendsvof
ownership to the purchaser.

Income and profit from construction contracts ageognised in accordance with IAS 11, as describexote
2.24, while income from concession agreementsadsgeised in accordance with IFRIC 12, as describatbte
2.25.

Revenue from operating leases is recognized irirtb@me statement using the straight line methodnduthe
lease period. When the Group provides incentivatstolients, the cost of these incentives is reiegd through
the lease period with the straight line method d&dely of the income from the lease.

Revenue from the provision of services and reatesnanagement are recorded in the period duririghvthe
services are rendered, based on the stage of coonpdd the service in relation to total servicese provided.

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basisguthe effective rate method. In case of impairmef
borrowings and receivables, interest income is geized using the rate which discounts future flofes
impairment purposes.

In the case where the Group acts as a represemtétiis the commission and not the gross revehat is
accounted for as revenue.

Dividends are accounted for as income when thd t@heceive payment is established.

2.24  Contracts for projects under construction

A construction contract is a contract specificalggotiated for the construction of an asset orrabtoation of
assets that are closely interrelated or interdegmnioh terms of their design, technology and fuorctor their
ultimate purpose or use.

Expenses associated with construction contracteeamgnized in the period in which they are incdrre

When the result of a construction contract canmotdiiably assessed, only the expenses incurrecpcted to
be collected are recognized as income from theraomnt

When the result of a construction contract candbiably assessed, such contract’'s income and ezpemil be
recognized during the term of contract as incona: expenses, respectively. The Group uses the pgagmeiof
completion method to estimate the appropriate amofinincome and expense to be recognized for aaicert
period. The stage of completion is calculated basethe expenses which have been incurred up tbalesnce
sheet date compared to the total estimated expdosesch contract. If it is possible that the taast of the
contract will exceed total income, then anticipdtestes are directly recognized in profit and Bs&xpenses.

In order to determine the cost incurred by the ehthe period, any expenses relating to futuregaskluded in

the contract are exempted and presented as wgmtogress. The total cost incurred and recognizeditprioss
for each contract is compared with sequential icestill the end of the fiscal year.

(55) / (127)



ELLAKTOR SA
‘ ELLAKTOR Annual Financial statements in line with IFRS
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2015

Where the expenses incurred plus the net profgs(lesses) recognized exceed the sequential irsjoibe
occurring difference is presented as a receivabla ftonstruction contract customers in the accétirade and
other receivables”. When the sequential invoiceseed the realized expenses plus the net profis (Esses)
recognized, the balance is presented as a lialbdlitsards construction contract customers in th@acc“Trade
and other payables”.

2.25 Service Concession Arrangements

With regard to Service Concession Arrangements &hear public sector body contracts with a privgierator
for the provision of services, the Group applieRIIE 12, provided that the following two conditioase met:

a) the grantor controls or determines which sessibe operator should provide to whom and at whiite, and

b) the grantor controls any other significant ietgs in the infrastructure upon completion of th@oession
arrangement period.

In accordance with IFRIC 12, such infrastructures rgot recognized as tangible assets of the opetaib as a
Financing Contribution of the State under finaneissets (financial asset model), and/ or as a GsiweRight
under intangible assets (intangible asset modepedding on the contractually agreed terms.

i) Guaranteed receipt from grantor (Financial Assabdel)

As an operator, the Group recognizes a financisgtas the extent that it has an unconditional reattial right to
receive cash or another financial asset from thatgr for the construction services.

In the case of service concession contracts, teeatqr has the unconditional right to receive dashe grantor
contractually guarantees to pay the operator:

a) specified or determinable amounts, or

b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts receifreth users of the public service and specific aiedainable
amounts provided for in the Service Concessionracht

The financial assets resulting from the applicatbh~RIC 12 are recorded in the Statement of FirerPosition
as “Guaranteed receipt from grantor” and recognaeghamortised cost based on the effective rathadealso
deducting any impairment losses. The effective imtqual to the average weighted capital costhferoperator,
unless otherwise stipulated in the Concession aontr

i) Concession Right (Intangible Asset Model)

As an operator, the Group recognises an intangibdet to the extent that it receives a right (keg¢rio charge
users of the public service. The right to chargeraief a public service does not constitute ansamed right to
collect cash, since the amounts collected depenghether the public uses such service.

Intangible assets resulting from the applicatiomF&IC 12 are recorded under Intangible AssetsiinStatement

of Financial Position, analysed as a “ConcessioghRiand valued at acquisition cost less depremiati
Depreciation is carried out using the straight limethod during the Concession contract.
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iii) Guaranteed receipt from grantor and Concessiight (Mixed Model)

When the service concession contract anticipatas tthe operator will be remunerated for the comsion
services partly with a financial asset and partithwan intangible asset, the Group recognises eastponent of
its remuneration separately, according to the aljGuaranteed receipt from grantor and ConcessightRi

The Group recognises and accounts for the reveandscosts associated with the construction or wgga
services in accordance with 1AS 11 (note 2.24)leviévenues and costs associated with operatimicesrare
recognized and accounted for in accordance with18%note 2.23).

2.26 Distribution of dividends

The distribution of dividends to equity holderstbé& parent company is recognized as liability whestribution
is approved by the General Meeting of the sharedeld

2.27 Grants

Government grants are recognized at their fairevavhere there is a reasonable assurance thatahewill be
received and the Group will comply with all stipield conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferredracognized in the income statement to match th@mthe
costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants regarding the purchase of fisséta or the construction of projects are includddng term
liabilities as deferred state grants and are reigegnas income through profit and loss using thaigt line
method according to the asset expected useful life.

Grants received to finance Concession contractprasented in accordance with IFRIC 12 as a regludt the
Guaranteed receipt from grantor (note 2.25).

2.28 Available-for-sale non-current assets

Non-current assets are classified as availablesdte-assets and stated at the lower of carryinguatrand fair
value less costs to sell if their carrying amountestimated to be recovered by the Group througiala
transaction rather than through their use.

2.29 Trade and other liabilities

Trade liabilities are usually obligations to makeyment for products or services obtained durindoperance of
typical commercial activity by suppliers. The acotsupayable are classified as short-term liabditiE the
payment is due within not more than one year. if tliey are classified as long-term liabilitiesadle liabilities
are recognized initially at fair value and are nuead subsequently at net book cost by the useecéffiective rate
method.

2.30 Reclassifications and rounding of items

The amounts disclosed in these financial statemese been rounded to EUR thousand. Any differeticat
may occur are due to these roundings.

Previous year amounts indicated below have bedassfied so that the Statement of Financial Pasitf the
Group as of 31.12.2014 is comparable to the StatepfeFinancial Position and the Cash Flow Statdnasrof
31.12.2015. More specifically:

e an amount of EUR 935,051 thousand has been mowedlIfitangible assets to Concession rights;
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e an amount of EUR 23,577 thousand has been moved Trade and other receivables to Prepayments
for long-term leases (EUR 21,521 thousand to Namec assets and EUR 2,055 thousand to Current
assets);

e an amount of EUR 47,701 thousand has been movadDeferred tax assets to Deferred tax liabilities;

e Restricted cash of EUR 14,708 thousand has betass#ted from Current assets to Non-current assets

e an amount of EUR 6,868 thousand has been reckadgifim Investing activities to Financing activitie
in the Cash flow statement;

e an amount of EUR 1,616 thousand has been reckdd$ifim Foreign exchange differences in Operating
activities to Foreign exchange differences in Casth cash equivalents;

e impairment of tangible assets and investment ptgpeas been moved from costs to accumulated
depreciation and amortisation.

Moreover, notes have been reclassified for comjl#sapurposes. The above reclassifications do affect
equity or results.

3 Financial risk management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group is exposed to various financial riskghsais market risks (currency, interest rate rigk),ecredit risk,
and liquidity risk. Financial risks are associateith the following financial instruments: accountceivable,
cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable aedliathilities and debt liabilities.

Risk management is monitored by the finance diwisiand more specifically by the central Financial
Management Division of the Group, and is determibgdlirectives, guidelines and rules approved leyBbard

of Directors with regard to rate risk, credit riske use of derivative and non-derivative instrutegand the
short-term investment of cash.

€)) Market Risk

Market risk is related to the business sectorsgaudjraphical areas in which the Group operatescatidely, the
Group is exposed to risk from the change in theditmms prevailing in the countries where the candion
segment is active, due to the change in the vafusumencies and the factors affecting borrowingtsocand
foreign exchange rates. The Group’s departmentglasely monitoring the trends in the individual nk&ts in
which it operates and plan actions for prompt afiicient adaptation to the individual markets’ new
circumstances.

i) Foreign currency risk

The Group has been active in foreign countries,timas the Middle East and the Balkans (RomanialgBria,
Albania, etc.). With respect to its activities imetMiddle East, the Group is exposed to foreigrharge risk
relating mainly to the exchange rates of local encies (e.g. QAR, RON, etc.) and the US Dollar +oEu
exchange rate. It should be clarified that the arge rates of certain currencies (mainly local engies in
Middle East countries) are linked to the US DolRroceeds are made in local currency and in USaboknd
despite the fact that the larger portion of thet emsl expenses are made in the same currencyeigriagxchange
risk exists for the remaining part. Foreign exclangk, where it is considered to be significand avorthy of
being hedged, is hedged by the use of derivatimgaial contracts. These derivatives are pricedeit fhir values
and are recognized as a receivable or a liabilithé financial statements.
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Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk as ofL32015 mainly results from the following currerscie
(amounts denominated in EUR):

All amounts in EUR thousand.

31-Dec-15
%) (CAD) (RSD) (MKD) (ALL) (£)
Receivables 24,125 - 1,412 - 5,730 270
Borrowings (3,129) - (3,005) - (4,908) -
Liabilities (315) - (9,732) (8,230) (16,629) (9,644
Available-for-sale financial
assets - 41,668
31-Dec-14
%) (CAD) (RSD) (MKD) (ALL) (£)
Receivables 10,639 - - - - 1,172
Borrowings (2,147) - (2,993) - -
Liabilities (23,472) - - - (13,518) (2,556)

Available-for-sale financial
assets - 77,342

Sensitivity analysis to exchange rate changes

The table below presents variations in Group pradita result of potential changes to floating erglarates,
maintaining all other variables unchanged.

Impact on profit/(loss)
for the fiscal year

2015 2014
Exchange rate appreciated
by 5% vis-a-vis the Euro (784) (3,012)
Exchange rate depreciated
by 5% vis-a-vis the Euro 784 3,012

ii) Cash flow risk and risk arising from fair valebange due to a change in interest rates

The Group holds significant interest-bearing assetsprising sight deposits, short-term bank depasiid bonds
of the European Investment Bank. The Group is eaghds risk from fluctuations of interest rates, niaiarising

from bank loans. The Group is exposed to floatimegriest rates prevailing in the market, which dffeath the

financial position and the cash flows. Cost of dehly increase as a result of these changes thatingréosses or
it can decrease on the occurrence of unexpectattseve should be noted that the fluctuation ireest rates in
recent years has been caused primarily by thedrera spreads due to the lack of liquidity in @reek banking
market and the estimated risk of Greek companies,t@ a lesser extent by the change to the baseegitrates
(e.g. Euribor).
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As regards long-term borrowings, the Group’s Mamagyat systematically and constantly monitors interate
fluctuations and assesses the need to take relpeaitions to hedge risks, when and if necessarthe context
of risk offsetting, Group companies may enter ies¢iswap contracts and other derivatives.

A significant part of the Group’s loans are sigineith floating rates and the largest part of Groapnis is in
Euros. As a consequence interest rate risk is pitynaderived from the fluctuations of Euro interesttes and
secondly from the interest rate fluctuations oreotturrencies in which bank loans exist (e.g. Qaitgal, etc).

The Group constantly monitors interest rate tremdswell as the duration and nature of subsidiafieancing
needs. Decisions on loan terms as well as theiopléetween variable and fixed interest rate anesictered
separately on a case by case basis.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis of Group Borrowngs

A reasonable and possible interest rate changedyty five base points (0.25% increase/decreasajdiead to
a decrease / increase in profit before tax for 2@ll5ther variables being equal, by EUR 1.96uamd (2014
EUR 2,041 thousand). It should be noted that tleeeafientioned change in earnings before tax is lzdtmlion
the floating rate loan balances at year end ang dotinclude the positive effect of interest in@from cash
deposits and cash equivalents.

At a parent company level, a reasonable and pessgilérest rate change by twenty five base poidi8506
increase/decrease) would lead to the decreasedaige in profit before tax for 2015, all other ghtes being
equal, by EUR 671 thousand (2014: EUR 663 thousdhdhould be noted that the aforementioned change
earnings before tax is calculated on the floatiag toan balances at year end and does not inthedpositive
effect of interest income from cash deposits arsth @mjuivalents.

(iii) Price risk

The Group is exposed to the risk relating to thetflation of the fair value of its available-folesdinancial
assets which can affect the financial statemeistsekevant gains or losses from fair value adjustmevill be
recorded as an reserve under equity until thesstsaage sold or designated as impaired. It shoalddinted out
that, if the closing price of ELDORADO GOLD on 32/2015 was increased by 5%, the available-for-sale
reserves would be increased by EUR 2,1 million, iditdvas reduced by 5%, profit/ (loss) for theayavould be
reduced by EUR 2,1 million. (31.12.2014: EUR 3.8ion).

(b) Credit Risk

The Group has developed policies in order to enthaetransactions are conducted with customesufficient

credit rating. Due to the conditions prevailingtie market, the conclusion of new contracts andptioeedures
for monitoring work progress, invoicing and coliects are subject to much stricter audit. The Grbap been
monitoring its debtors’ balances very carefullydamhere receivables with credit risk are identifititey are
assessed in accordance with established policidspamcedures and an appropriate impairment pravigo
formed. In public works, certifications are closetpnitored and requests for additional works aedgp, with a
view to limiting the risk of failure to collect retvables.

Cash and cash equivalents, investments and filaterizative contracts potentially involve credihk as well. In
such cases, the risk may arise from counterpaitiyréato fulfil their obligations towards the Groufm order to
manage this credit risk, the Group sets limitshte degree of exposure for each financial institytivithin the
scope of the policies of the Board of Directors.
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(c) Liquidity risk

Given the current crisis of the Greek State andGheek financial sector, the liquidity risk is haghand the
management of cash flows is urgent. To manageidhéality risk, the Group budgets and regularly ntors its
cash flows and ensures that cash on hand is al&iliaisluding the options of intra-company loans amused
credit lines to meet its needs (e.g. financingrauotee letters, etc).

During recent years, the Group has been refinaniésngorrowings in order to better manage its liityi The
Group’s short-term borrowings on 31.12.2015 amatitteEUR 322.3 million, compared to EUR 275.3 roifli

on 31.12.2014.

Group liquidity is regularly monitored by the Mamagent. The table below presents an analysis détbep and
Company financial liability maturities as of 31 [@eaber 2015 and 2014 respectively:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP

Trade and other payables
Finance lease liabilities
Financial derivatives
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Finance lease liabilities
Financial derivatives

Borrowings

COMPANY

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

31 December 2015

MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Within 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 5 years Over 5 yes Total
691,647 908 1,695 185 694,435
- 623 366 - 990
18,952 18,286 45,602 76,142 158,982
381,353 125,299 420,044 896,953 1,823,649
1,091,952 145,117 467,707 973,280 2,678,056
31 December 2014
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Within 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 5 years Over 5 yea Total
613,254 609 5,357 249 619,469

968 624 991 - 2,582

17,706 17,815 47,304 96,355 179,182
339,209 186,329 500,954 908,718 1,935,209
971,137 205,377 554,606 1,005,322 2,736,442

31 December 2015
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Within 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 5 years Over 5 yea Total

7,868 - - 3,471 11,339

7,619 15,630 67,827 257,073 348,148

15,487 15,630 67,827 260,543 359,487
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31 December 2014

MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Within 1 year 1to 2 years 2to 5 years Over 5 yes Total

Trade and other payables 11,727 - 221 1,239 13,186
Borrowings 24,852 18,412 89,755 212,324 345,344
36,579 18,412 89,976 213,563 358,530

The above amounts are presented in the contractaldiscounted cash flows and therefore are natalgnt to
the respective amounts shown in the financial states with respect to Supplier and other liab#itiEinancial
lease commitments, Financial derivatives, and Loans

The Trade and Other liabilities breakdown is exekiof Advances from customers, Advances from djega
leases, Amounts due to customers for contract veor#f,Social security and other taxes.

3.2 Cash management

Capital management is aiming in the safeguard ef ¢bntinuity of operations of Group companies, the
achievement of its developing plans along with @oaredit rating

To evaluate the Group’s creditworthiness, the Gsbiet Debt should be evaluated (i.e. total long) strort-term
loans with banks less cash and cash equivalerdg)ever excluding non-recourse debt and respectied and
cash equivalents connected to the financing of seHinanced projects.

The Group’s net debt as of 31.12.2015 and 31.12.2@kpectively, is detailed in the following table

All amounts in EUR EURO

Short term bank borrowings

Long-term bank borrowings

Total borrowings

Less: Non recourse debt

Subtotal of Corporate Debt (except non recoursésjieb
Less: Cash and cash equivaléhts

Net Corporate Debt/Cash

Total Group Equity

Total Capital

Gearing Ratio

Cash and cash equivalefitsare determined as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

Plus:
Restricted cash
Time deposits over 3 months
Bonds held to maturity
Mutual funds

GROUP
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
322.3 275.3
1,169.8 1,275.4
1,492.2 1,550.7
630.9 778.1
861.3 772.6
334.1 358.4
527.2 414.3
1,031.2 1,116.2
1,558.4 1,530.5
0.338 0.271
GROUP
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
450.4 679.9
49.9 72.4
0.5 0.5
111.8 79.1
46.3 -
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GROUP

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, timesis over 3 months,
mutual funds and bonds held to maturity correspumtth non-recourse
loans of companies executing self-financed projects

324.7 473.6

Cash and cash equivalent? 334.1 358.4

The gearing ratio as of 31.12.2015 for the Groupaiulated at 33.8% (31.12.2014: at 27.1%). Thiforis
calculated as the quotient of net debt to totalleymal capital (i.e. total equity plus net debt).

At parent level, total borrowing as of 31.12.201ocanted to EUR 268.3 million (31.12.2014: EUR 265.1
million) and pertains only to long-term borrowin(l.12.2014: long-term borrowings of EUR 240.7 ioill and
short-term borrowings of EUR 24.4 million).

3.3 Fair value estimation

The financial instruments carried at fair valu¢hat balance sheet date are classified under tlwnviol levels, in
accordance with the valuation method:

- Level 1: for assets and liabilities traded inaative market and whose fair value is determinedhieyquoted
prices (unadjusted) of identical assets or liab#it

- Level 2: for assets and liabilities whose failueais determined by factors related to market,dgitaer directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is derifeain prices).

- Level 3: for assets and liabilities whose failueais not based on observable market data, bugisly based on
internal estimates.

The table below presents a comparison of the cagryalues of the Group's financial assets andliliegsi at
amortized cost and their fair values:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP Book value Fair value
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14

Financial Assets

Financial assets held to maturity 111,788 79,126 113,199 80,773

Financial liabilities

Long-term & short-term borrowings 1,492,174 1,560, 1,491,369 1,544,917

COMPANY Book value Fair value
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14

Financial liabilities
Long-term & short-term borrowings 268,338 265,092 268,338 265,092

The fair values of short-term trade receivables tade and other payables approximate their bodlkesa The

fair value of long-term receivables amounts to EWR2,707 thousand (book value stands at EUR 110,487
thousand). The fair values of loans and long-tezoeivables are estimated based on the discountec foash
flows by using discount rates that reflect the entloan interest rate and are included in faingdlierarchy level

3.
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The table below presents the Group’s financial tasaed liabilities measured at fair value as ofCBcember
2015 and 31 December 2014.

GROUP 31 December 2015
HIERARCHY
LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 TOTAL

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit avss| 3 - 3
Available-for-sale financial assets 47,419 46,310 93,729
Financial liabilities

Derivatives used for hedging - 155,637 155,637

31 December 2014
HIERARCHY
LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 TOTAL

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit aogs| 3 - 3
Available-for-sale financial assets 79,867 - 79,867
Derivatives - Warrants 407 - 407
Financial liabilities

Derivatives used for hedging - 175,097 175,097

The fair value of financial assets traded on aatimey markets (e.g. derivatives, equities, bomdgual funds),
is determined on the basis of the published priceslable at the balance sheet date. An “activeheyomarket
exists where there are readily available and relyufavised prices, which are published by a stexghange, a
broker, a sector, rating agency or supervisingrisgdion. These financial tools are included irelel. This level
includes mainly the Group investment in a gold reigeoup, which is listed on the Toronto Stock Exgeand
has been classified as an available-for-sale fiahasset.

The fair value of financial assets traded on activeney markets (e.g. derivatives traded outsideravative
market) are determined by measurement methods Ipaisedrily on available information on transactiarasried
out on active markets and using less the estinmtete by the economic entity. These financial taotsincluded
in level 2.

Available-for-sale financial assets totally amongtio EUR 13,001 thousand relating to participatirtgrests in
companies not listed on active markets are shownsttand not at fair value.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments of thélanagement

Estimates and judgments are continuously evaluateare based on historic data and expectationfitiore
events, as considered reasonable under the ciranoest.

4.1 Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

Annual financial statements along with the accomppannotes and reports may involve certain judgmeantd
calculations that refer to future events regardipgrations, developments, and financial performawicéhe
Company and the Group. Despite the fact that seshraptions and calculations are based on the lbasthye
knowledge of the Company's and the Group's managemih regard to current conditions and actiomg t
actual results may eventually differ from calcudag and assumptions taken into consideration imptiparation
of the Company's and the Group's annual finanti@¢sents.
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Assessments and assumptions that involve imparitnbf causing future material adjustments toahsets’ and
liabilities’ book values:

(a) Estimates regarding the accounting conductosfstruction projects according to IAS 11 “Constiioct
Contracts”

(i)

(ii)

Realization of income from construction contracisdd on estimation of the percentage completion of
the project.

For the estimation of the percentage completiothefconstruction projects in progress according to
which the Group recognizes income from constructommtracts, the Management estimates the
expected expenses to be made until the completitregrojects.

Requests for compensation for additional work maelgond the contractual agreement.

The Group’s Management estimates the amount toebeived for additional work and recognizes
income based on the percentage of completion @gdserit considers that the collection of this antoun
is probable based on the customer’s orders.

(b) Provisions

(i)

(ii)

Provisions for heavy maintenance

Based on the obligations deriving from the Cona@s§iontract for the Contractor, ATTIKI ODOS SA
forms a provision for heavy maintenance so thathtbavy maintenance costs are equally allocated
across fiscal years. This action is aimed to maiintg an excellent state of the projects on a daily
basis, so as to provide high-level services tontbéorway users, on the one hand, and to delivariag
project to the client after having implemented andured the necessary quality of pavements and the
modernisation of the obsolete systems by modeimtdogical systems.

The initial provision for heavy maintenance in n2id@7, based on the experience in the project
available until then, was revised in 2012, on thsid of better expertise in the motorway operating
conditions, which is proven by researches and studarried out by external consultants on a regular
basis, on the one hand, and which is based oretheced traffic due to the economic crisis resultmg
reduced need for maintenance, on the other hand.

The company monitors the project and the independexasurements (e.g. by the NTUA for the
pavement) and will revise its estimates, if necgssa

Income tax

Estimates are required in determining the provismmincome tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determipatis uncertain. Where the final tax outcome oféhe
matters is different from the amounts that wergialty recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the gkmiowhich such determination is made.

The Group recognises deferred tax on the provisiamadifferences, taking into account the applieab
tax provisions and assessing the future gains haduture liabilities from taxes. The best possible
estimates of the Management relating to the evwlutf tax results of the Group companies in the
immediate future are taken into account in recaggisleferred tax assets, as well as in assessaig th
recoverability.

(c) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments not listedan active market is determined using valuaticethods
which require using assumptions and judgments. Ghaup makes assumptions based mostly on current
market conditions in the preparation of financtatesments.

(e) Impairment of tangible assets and investmeopgrty

Tangible assets and investment property are ilyiti@lcongized at cost and subsequently depreciated
their useful lives. The Group assesses at eachtiegpgeriod whether there is evidence of impairtnen
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tangible assets and investment property. Impairnesting is based on market data and the managsment
estimates of future financial and operating condsi During the impairment testing process, theagament
works with independent appraisers.

(f) Goodwill

Where goodwill is incurred, the impairment of ilye is carried out on an annual basis or whengges of
impairment are available, by comparing the boolueadf each cash-generating unit, including thevesie
goodwill, against the respective recoverable amoGmnbup Management makes estimates to determine the
recoverable amount, which include key assumptieteting to the period of estimated cash flows, ¢ash
flows, the development rate of cash flows and theealint rate. The assumptions are disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements in accordancle thiz relevant provisions of IAS 36.

(9) Impairment test on subsidiaries and associates

The parent company tests for impairment the vali@soinvestments in subsidiaries and associatgs, b
comparing the recoverable amount of each investifieathigher of the value-in-use and the fair vdkes
selling costs) against its book value. The Manageémeakes estimates to determine the recoverablai@mo
by applying a methodology similar to that applieats goodwill impairment testing, in order to detare the
present value of the expected future cash flowts&ubsidiary or associate.

4.2 Considerable judgments of the Management on the afipation of the accounting
principles

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 39 to detemnivhen an available-for-sale financial asset és)ais
impaired. This process requires significant judgntgnthe Group that evaluatester alia, the length of time for
which a financial instrument presents a fair vdle®ow the acquisition cost and the amount of tisedteal value.
Also, when it comes to non-listed shares, othetofacare also considered, which are relevant toetizmomic
situation and prospects of the company in whichithestment has been made, such as informatiorhen t
industry, possible technological changes, and aioer@ and financing cash flows.
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5 Segment reporting

On 31 December 2015 the Group was mainly operatilsggbusiness segments:

Construction & Quarries
Real estate development
Concessions

Wind farms

Environment

Other activities

The Chairman, the CEO and other executive memifettseoBoard of Directors are the persons respoadin
making business decisions. Having determined thexating segments, the above persons review thenaite
financial reports to evaluate the Company’s andu@® performance and to make decisions regardimgl fu
allocation. The Board of Directors uses varioutedia to evaluate Group activities, which vary degirg on the
nature, the maturity and special attributes of efiell, having regard to any risks, current caskedseand
information about products and markets.

All amounts in EUR thousand.

The results for each segment for 2015 are as fellow

Construction Real estate Wind

Note & Quarries  development  Concessions  farms  Environment Other Total
Total gross revenue per segment 1,170,660 7,190 6,320 40,066 121,499 362 1,546,080
Intra-group revenue (9,327) - (285) - (3,291) (94) (12,997)
Net revenue 1,161,333 7,190 206,018 40,066 118,208 268 1,533,083
Operating profit/(loss) (39,881) 3,673 58,679 199 18,177 (31,467) 28,831
Share of profit/(loss) from participating
interests accounted for under the equity
method 10 (441) 25 505 - (135) (7,085) (7,131)
Finance income 31 1,924 96 7,363 433 878 4 10,698
Finance (expenses) 31 (13,554) (2,404) (47,320) 7,87@) (2,297) (12,850) (86,297)
Profit/(Loss) before tax (51,952) 1,390 19,227 220 16,623 (51,398) (53,900)
Income tax 33 (11,563) 38 (14,095) (4,715) (5,357)  (772) (36,463)
Net profit/ (Ioss) (63,515) 1,428 5,132 7,496 1862  (52,170) (90,363)

The results for each segment for 2014 are as fstlow

Construction Real estate Wind

Note & Quarries  development Concessions  farms  Environment Other Total
Total gross revenue per segment 1,180,387 6,312 6,880 31,719 129,459 1,536 1,556,299
Intra-group revenue (9,465) - (279) - (1,370) 681 (11,795)
Net revenue 1,170,922 6,312 206,608 31,719 128,090 855 1,544,504
Operating profit/(loss) (31,163) a7 66,663 13,85 15,472 (7,130) 56,877
Share of profit/(loss) from participating
interests accounted for under the equity
method 10 (281) (81) 273 (22) (44) 589 434
Finance income 31 3,167 154 17,152 810 1,857 16 3,158
Finance (expenses) 31 (11,789) (2,506) (52,145) 8,490) (2,110) (14,194) (91,243)
Profit/(Loss) before tax (40,067) (2,450) 31,942 382 15,175 (20,719) (10,777)
Income tax 33 (5,712) 1,019 (10,942)  (1,784) ()05 (27) (22,498)
Net profit/ (loss) (45,778) (1,431) 21,000 3,558 0,123 (20,747) (33,275)

Other information per segment through profit areklas of 31 December 2015 is:
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Construction Real estate Wind
Note & Quarries development Concessions  farms Environment Other Total
Depreciation of PPE 6 (38,387) (16) (2,134) (9)865 (3,637) (695) (54.732)
Amortisation of intangible assets 7a, 7b (737) 1) (69,775) (426) (2,479) - (73,417)
Depreciation of investment property 8 - (1,085) - - - (182) (1,267)
Impairment _Ta, (37,174) (2,251) (8,099)  (1,173) - (18,800) (67,497)
Amortization of grants 24 148 - 211 1,802 1,539 - 3,700
Other information per segment through profit areklas of 31 December 2014 is:
Construction Real estate Wind
Note & Quarries development Concessions  farms Environment Other Total
Depreciation of PPE 6 (21,121) (19) (1,895) (9)253 (3,669) (712)  (36,669)
Amortisation of intangible assets 7a, 7b (558) 1) (67,861) (469) (2,447) (1) (71,338)
Depreciation of investment property 8 - (1,199) - - - (181) (1,381)
7a, 29,
Impairment 30 (54,158) (20) - - (42) (275)  (54,495)
Amortization of grants 24 168 - 211 2,326 993 - 3,698
Inter-segment transfers and transactions are dastieat arms’ length.
Assets and liabilities of segments as of 31 Decer2b&5 are as follows:
Construction Real estate Wind
Note & Quarries development Concessions  farms Environment Other Total
Assets (less Investments in associates) 1,495,546 144,304 1,690,576 326,544 180,938 46,41%,884,325
Investments in associates 10 2,145 - 46,975 - 4,164 84,296 137,580
Total Assets 1,497,692 144,304 1,737,551 326,544 185,103 130,712021,905
Liabilities 1,152,710 41,817 1,267,964 205,484 75,734 246,968,990,677
6,
Investments in PPE, intangible assets, and  7a,
investment property 7b, 8 51,964 18 23,442 34,074 3,277 1 112,776
Prepayments for long-term leases 13 58 - - - 9 - 67
Assets and liabilities of segments as of 31 Decer2b&4 are as follows:
Construction Real estate Wind
Note & Quarries development Concessions  farms Environment Other Total
Assets (less Investments in associates) 1,449,937 143,957 1,850,572 322,818 182,249 62,69%,012,230
Investments in associates 10 2,745 - 45,979 5,558 4,294 98,716 157,292
Total Assets 1,452,682 143,957 1,896,551 328,376 186,543 161,418169,522
Liabilities 1,050,385 42,259 1,419,278 214,407 85,380 241,588,053,294
Investments in PPE, intangible assets, and 6, 7a,
investment property 7b, 8 34,478 118 27,038 38,130 2,664 41 102,471
Prepayments for long-term leases 13 589 - - 3 9 - 601

The Group has also expanded its activities abrovggarticular, it operates abroad in the Gulf cost and more
specifically in the United Arab Emirates, Qatardalordan, as well as in other countries, such am@wy, Italy,
Cyprus, Romania, Bulgaria, Albania, Serbia, Turkéypatia, Bosnia-Herzegovina, FYROM, Slovenia, &dit
Kingdom, Panama, Chile, Ethiopia and the USA. Ta#aknue is allocated per region as follows:
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1-Jan to
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Greece 874,801 972,182
Gulf countries — Middle East 302,603 221,019
Other countries abroad 355,680 351,303
1,533,083 1,544,504

Non-current assets, save investments in assoeiatepint ventures, financial assets and defeagddceivables,
are allocated per region as follows:

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Greece 1,517,629 1,567,980
Gulf countries — Middle East 45,656 16,186
Other countries abroad 71,298 74,197
1,634,583 1,658,363

Out of the revenue made in Greece, the amount d® B89,373 thousand for 2015 and the amount of EUR
536,319 thousand for 2014 come from the Stateydticy Public Utility Companies, Municipalities, etc
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6 Property, plant and equipment

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP
Mechanical
Land & Transportation ~ Mechanical eq“'pme"t Furniture PPE under
buildings equipment equipment of wind & other construction
farms and equipment
Cost Note PV parks Total
1 January 2014 149,459 46,598 277,200 247,062 33,6 17,603 771,617
Currency translation differences 153 112 652 - 654 (141) 1,429
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary 878 43 927 599 92 - 2,899
Additions except for finance leases 93 4,253 19,97 59 3,842 47,695 75,916
Addition under finance lease - - - 66 - - 66
Sales (3,530) (1,939) (3,991) - 40 (111) (9,531)
Write-off - (154) (506) - (56) - (717)
Potential provision for landscape restoration by
companies from the wind project segment - - - (180) - R (180)
Reclassification from Mechanical Equipment in
Land &Buildings 765 - - (765) - - -
31 December 2014 147,818 48,913 294,255 247,200 ,2688 65,045 841,498
1 January 2015 147,818 48,913 294,255 247,200 68,2 65,045 841,498
Currency translation differences 322 320 1,280 ) (32 847 1,247 3,984
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary 166 - - 103 18 - 12,493
Additions except for finance leases 10,298 2,957 1,926 15 2,827 62,384 90,458
Sales (446) (2,554) (7,051) - (1,045) 1) (11,098)
Write-off (143) (64) (2,135) - (62) - (2,405)
Potential provision for landscape restoration by
companies from the wind project segment - - - 316 - - 316
Reclassification from intangible assets due to
goodwill allocation - - 454 R - R 454
Reclassification from PPE under construction to
Mechanical equipment and Land & buildings 6,825 - 30,874 49,273 - (86,972) -
31 December 2015 164,840 49,571 329,652 309,082 ,8540 41,704 935,700
Accumulated Amortization
1 January 2014 (34,017) (33,497) (199,997) (44,y60 (29,164) - (341,435)
Currency translation differences 91) (58) (425) (582) - (1,156)
Depreciation for the year 29 (3,483) (3,882) (28)5 (9,785) (2,924) - (36,669)
Reclassification to Mechanical equipment (141) - - 141 - - -
Sales 1,436 1,552 4,320 - 353 - 7,661
Write-off - 148 350 - 54 - 552
31 December 2014 (36,295) (35,737) (212,348) (64)4 (32,264) - (371.048)
1 January 2015 (36,295) (35,737) (212,348) (5404  (32,264) - (371.048)
Currency translation differences (197) (144) (886) 5 (608) - (1,829)
Depreciation for the year 29 (5,288) (4,332) (884 (10,591) (3,052) - (54.732)
Impairment 29 (8,896) - - - - (906) (9,802)
Sales 406 2,445 5,800 - 585 - 9,237
Write-off 4 64 757 - 62 - 888
31 December 2015 (50,266) (37,703) (238,144) (80)9 (35,277) (906)  (427,286)
Net book value as of 31 December 2014 111,523 18,17 81,907 192,796 6,003 65,045 470,450
Net book value as of 31 December 2015 114,574 58,8 91,508 244,092 5,574 40,798 508,414

Out of the additions to PPE under constructionZ0t5, EUR 33,406 thousand pertain to the ‘Orthdldind
‘Magoula Kazakou Extension’ wind farms, which starttheir operation within 2015, as well as the Kgjio’

wind farm, which is expected to enter in operatiathin the first half of 2017. The reclassificat®from PPE
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under construction to Mechanical equipment of wiaans and PV parks, amounting to EUR 49,273 thadisan
pertain to the ‘Ortholithi’ and ‘Magoula Kazakou teérsion’ wind farms.

The EUR 28,361 thousand balance of additions in Bfter construction pertains mostly to the constvacof
mechanical equipment (TBMs) and facilities for hiags human resources for the Katar metro project.
Reclassifications to Mechanical equipment and Lamd buildings amounting to EUR 30,874 thousand Bd&
6,825 thousand, respectively, pertain to a patti@fbove.

The major part of the balance of PPE under constrycwhich amounts to EUR 40,798 thousand, pest&in

wind farms.

Leased assets included in above data under firldeasing:

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Mechanical Mechanical
Transportation ~ Mechanical equipment Transportation  Mechanical equipment
equipment equipment of wind Total equipment equipment of wind Total
quip quip farms and quip quip farms and
PV parks PV parks
Cost — Capitalised financial
leases 250 4,270 4,111 8,631 250 4,270 4,111 18,63
Accumulated Amortization (250) (3,749) (882) (438 (250) (739) (4,279)
Net book value 521 3,229 3,751 3,372 4,35
COMPANY
Furniture &
Land & Mechanical other
Note  buildings equipment equipment Total
Cost
1 January 2014 3,217 82 1,809 5,109
Additions except for finance leases - 40 40
Write-off - - (4) (4)
31 December 2014 3,217 82 1,845 5,144
1 January 2015 3,217 82 1,845 5,144
Additions except for finance leases - - 1 1
31 December 2015 3,217 82 1,845 5,145
Accumulated Amortization
1 January 2014 (817) (69) (1,760) (2,647)
Depreciation for the year 29 (48) 4) (20) (73)
Write-off - - 4 4
31 December 2014 (866) (73) (1,777) (2,716)
1 January 2015 (866) (73) 1,777) (2,716)
Depreciation for the year 29 (48) 4) (20) (63)
Impairment 29 (697) - - (697)
31 December 2015 (1,611) (78) (1,787) (3,476)
Net book value as of 31 December 2014 2,351 9 68 429
Net book value as of 31 December 2015 1,606 5 58 ,669

The impairment of PPE which the Group presente@dh5 in Land and buildings amounted to EUR 8,896
thousand at Group level and EUR 697 thousand apaagnlevel, and pertained to the Group’s officdding on
25 Ermou Street in N. Kifissia. The total impairrhealculated for this building is EUR 11,035 thougaThe
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difference with regard to the above amounts, EURB2 thousand for the Group and EUR 10,338 thous$and
the company, is incorporated into the amount ofinkestment property impairment of note 8.

The recoverable amount of the above asset wasladubased on the fair value determined by usimg t
discounted cash flow method. The exit yield ratehef period that was used was 8% and the discatatwas

11%.

There are no encumbrances on fixed assets, exarepipieliminary mortgage registration as loanatelial on the
parent company’s property located at 25 Ermou Kifissia.

7 Intangible assets & Concession right

7a Intangible assets

All amounts in EUR thousand.
GROUP

Cost

1 January 2014

Currency translation differences

Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary

Additions

Sales

Write-off

Due to the change of the consolidation method from
Full consolidation to Equity

31 December 2014

1 January 2015

Currency translation differences

Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary

Additions

Sales

Write-off

Reclassification to Property, plant and equipmer d
to goodwill finalisation

31 December 2015

Accumulated Amortization

1 January 2014

Currency translation differences
Depreciation for the year

Sales

Write-off

31 December 2014

1 January 2015

Currency translation differences
Depreciation for the year
Impairment

Sales

Write-off

31 December 2015

Net book value as of 31 December 2014

Net book value as of 31 December 2015

Software Goodwill User Other Total
licenses
4,507 43,318 29,986 2,549 80,360
66 - - - 65
- 454 - - 45
578 - - 118 696
@) - (1,195) - (1,196)
(230) - - @) (237)
- - (1,662) - (1,662)
4,920 43,771 27,129 2,661 78,481
4,920 43,771 27,129 2,661 78,481
115 1) - - 114
- - - 684 468
237 - - 16 253
(54) - - - (54)
(27) - - e (29)
- (454) - - (454)
5,191 43,316 27,129 3,358 78,995
(4,251) - (1,961) (1,159) (7,371)
47) - - - 47)
(303) - (798) 1) (1,002
1 - - - 1
215 - - - 215
(4,386) - (2,758) (1,160) (8,304)
(4,386) - (2,758) (1,160) (8,304)
(87) (1) - - (88)
(317) - (725) (257) [0:0)3]
- - (500) - (500)
50 - - - 50
27 - - 2 29
(4,713) 1) (3,984) (1,415) (a8n
534 43,771 4,371 1,501 70,176
478 43,315 3,145 1,943 68,882
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The decrease observed in the User license duriaglthmonth period of 2014, amounting to EUR 1,662
thousand, is due to the change of the consolidatiethod of the company POUNENTIS SA (which was sold
the 2nd quarter of 2015) from Full consolidatiorthe Equity method, and the decrease by EUR 1i83sand
due to the sale of subsidiary ANEMOS ATALANTIS SAthe third quarter of 2014.

Upon completion of the PPA, the goodwill of EUR 48iwusand that was incurred in 2014 was allocated t
Mechanical equipment in PPE (note 6). More spadific this amount is broken down: (a) EUR 17 thouk#o
goodwill which arose from the consolidation of GREEOOD PANAMA which was consolidated in Q2 2014
by BIOSAR HOLDINGS LTD with an investment cost amting to EUR 0.7 thousand and (b) EUR 437
thousand to goodwill which arose from the acquisitof STERILISATION S.A. which was consolidated @4
2014 by HELECTOR S.A. with an investment cost antimgnto EUR 1,265 thousand.

The parent company has no intangible assets.

Goodwill impairment test

Goodwill concerns mainly the construction and giearsegment, which has been defined as the casnageny
unit (CGU) for the impairment test carried out. §gpodwill amounts to EUR 41,8 million.

The recoverable amount of this cash-generating wag determined based on the value-in-use methbd. T
value-in-use was calculated by using cash flowdases that were based on the budget approved bgdéarent,
three years of provisions, which were then progatéo perpetuity.

The main assumptions used by Management in thaillesiin of the cash flow forecasts in the conteixtha
annual goodwill impairment test, are the following:
e The budgetary margins of the operating profit (EBN) were calculated based on the actual historical
data of the past years, adjusted in order to tatikeaccount the anticipated changes in profitahilit

e With regard to the working capital, Management wasrely based on historical data;
e For the projection of cash flows into perpetuitygesio growth rate was used for the specific CGU;

e The discount rate (net of tax) for the GCU was 9%4..2

Based on the results of the impairment test on 8tebhber 2015, the recoverable amount of the abasike-c
generating unit is greater than the book valueamnd consequence there were no impairment lossektion to
the above goodwill.

Impairment testing of wind farm licenses

Intangible assets with a finite useful life reldate user licences in the segment of renewable ensogyces,
mainly wind farms, for which the Group performedpimirment testing due to changes to the schedulingeo
projects. The book value of these intangible asstatsds at EUR 15.6 million.

The recoverable amounts of the above intangibletaissere determined using the value-in-use metfibé.
value-in-use was calculated by using cash flowdasts that were based on the budget approved budéament
and the forecasts up to the end of the usefuldlifeach intangible asset, according to the relegantract with
the competent authority.

The basic assumptions used by Management in tleellaibn of the cash flow forecasts in the contefxthe
annual impairment test for the value of intangédsets, are as follows:

e Discount rate (net of tax): from 7.30% to 10.15%
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e Forecast sales: Income from wind farms in operat@mained stable throughout the period, given that
there are agreements for specific selling pricethefenergy generated, as well as agreements kath t
wind power turbine suppliers for guaranteed 15-ysaformance.

The revenues from farms under licensing or constrm@re estimated by the Management.

e Budgetary profit margins: The budgetary operatingfip margins (EBITDA) were calculated based on
the actual historical data of the past years, takilso into account the decreased maintenance foosts

the licenses related to new farms.

e With regard to the working capital, the Managenrefied entirely on historical data.

Based on the impairment test results, the recole@bount as of 31 December 2015 of the user leéncthe
wind farm of the subsidiary company EOLOS MAKEDOMNI/AA was calculated at an amount lower by EUR
500 thousand than the book value of that intangétiset. This decrease is mainly due to the chamgket

execution scheduling of the project.

Based on the results from the impairment testGhmup impaired the value of the user licence ofghiesidiary
EOLOS MAKEDONIAS SA by EUR 500 thousand, whichrisluded in Other profit/(loss) (note 30).

7b Concession right

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP

Cost

1 January 2014
Additions

Write-off

31 December 2014

1 January 2015
Additions
31 December 2015

Accumulated Amortization
1 January 2014
Depreciation for the year
Write-off

31 December 2014

1 January 2015
Depreciation for the year
31 December 2015

Net book value as of 31 December 2014

Net book value as of 31 December 2015

Concession right

1,331,772
25,756
(6)

1,357,521

1,357,521
22,046
1,379,567

(352,235)
(70,236)
2

(422,470)

(422,470)
(72,118)

(494,587)

935,051

884,979

The Concession right mainly comes from the subsidiampanies ATTIKI ODOS SA and MOREAS SA. The
former has undertaken the financing, constructiwch @eration of the 65km long closed motorway casegk of
two sections, the Elefsina-Stavros-Spata Free Axvemd the Western Ymittos Avenue. The term of {herating
contract extends to 2024 and the Concession righbevdepreciated during that period.
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MOREAS SA has undertaken the construction, operatiad exploitation for 30 years (until 2038) of tberinth-
Tripoli-Kalamata motorway. According to IFRIC 12Service Concession Arrangements, the constructishis
divided into two components, a financial asset base the guaranteed amount and an intangible &ss¢he
remainder. In accordance with IAS 38, the intargyiset is amortised over the period in which éxisected to

be available for use by the Concessionaire (30syedihe Amendment to the Concession Arrangement of
MOREAS S.A. was ratified by the Parliament, the Adh@ment enters into force on 23/2/2016 and the
construction period is expected to be until 25/00& The amendment mainly includes the potentiditichal
operating subsidy from the State in case of a dramffic during the operation period.

Additions to Concession Arrangements for the curpamiod relating mostly to MOREAS SA include Addits
from capitalised interest of EUR 15,054 thousarid{3.2014: EUR 14,950 thousand).

8 Investment property

All amounts in EUR thousand. Note GROUP COMPANY
Cost

1 January 2014 189,086 63,433
Currency translation differences (52) -
Additions 103

Sales (690) -
31 December 2014 188,446 63,433
1 January 2015 188,446 63,433
Currency translation differences (179) -
Additions 18 -
31 December 2015 188,286 63,433

Accumulated Amortization

1 January 2014 (49,879) (21,500)
Currency translation differences 1 -
Depreciation for the year 29 (1,381) (752)
31 December 2014 (51,259) (22,252)
1 January 2015 (51,259) (22,252)
Depreciation for the year 29 (1,267) (751)
Impairment 30 (6,171) (11,119)
Reversal of prior impairment provision 30 1,000 -
31 December 2015 (57,697) (34,121)
Net book value as of 31 December 2014 137,187 41,182
Net book value as of 31 December 2015 130,589 29,312

The income from rents for FY 2015 amount for thewrto EUR 6.828 thousand (2014: EUR 6,835 thoysand
Direct operating costs that pertain to investmanpprty generating income from rents for the Graapount to
EUR 1,839 thousand (2014: EUR 1,778 thousand).

There are no liens on the investment propertieth@fGroup, with the exception of the propertiesabsidiary
YIALOU EMPORIKI & TOURISTIKI SA, and specifically bilding blocks OTE71 and OTE72, at location
Yialou, Spata, Attica, where mortgage number 2938%.04.2011 has been taken out, for EUR 42 millias,
collateral to Bond Loan Agreement as of 28.02.20A1preliminary mortgage has been registered on the
properties of subsidiary KANTZA EMPORIKI SA, and jrarticular on the company’s properties in the “Keah
Estate, amounting to a total of approximately EUWR6Imillion, to secure the Bond Loan Agreement@#2014
amounting to EUR 10.4 million.
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Due to the decreasing trend in property values@tmip proceeded with an impairment test of thestwments in
properties.

The remaining amount of the impairment which is E&JIR71 thousand at Group level, comes from:

(a) impairment of parent company properties totatiyounting to EUR 2,921 thousand (EUR 11,119 thodised
company level). The major part of that impairmesates to the building of the Group headquarte@5aErmou
Str., Kifissia, by EUR 2,139 thousand (EUR 10,388utsand at company level), as cited in note 6;

(b) impairment of properties belonging to Groupsdiaries in Romania, by EUR 2,662 thousand,;

(c) impairment of properties belonging to Groupssdiaries in Greece, by EUR 588 thousand.

The reversal of a past impairment of property ofRELJ000 thousand is due to the increase in thevdire of
that property due to increased completeness.

The fair values and the valuation techniques usethkir determination are presented in the follayiable:

Country Segment Property Category | Fair Value (in Assessment method Value determination data
thousands of
EUR)
Greece Other Office Buildings 2,308Discounted cash flow Discount rate/ Capital exit yield at
method end of period/ Market rent
Greece Other Land area 3,20(Real estate market method, Price of sq.m.
Residual value method
Greece Other Office Buildings 4,926Discounted cash flow Discount rate/ Capital exit yield at
method end of period/ Market rent
Greece Real estate Land areas 9,000 Real estate market methodl, Price of sq.m.
development Residual value method
Greece Real estate Building 1,500 | Real estate market method, Price of sq.m.
development Residual value method
Greece Real estate Land area 39,000 Residual value method Price of sq.m.
development
Greece Real estate Commercial park 55,000 Discounted cash flow Discount rate/ Capital exit yield at
development method end of period/ Market rent
Romania| Real estate Land areas 13,104 Real estate market metho Price of sq.m.
development

Total 128,037

The fair value was determined by an independerdreat certified appraiser, member of the body ofifted
appraisers. The determination of the fair valuglassified at level 2 of the determination of feaues.
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9

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Investments in subsidiaries

The change to the book value of the parent comganyestments to consolidated undertakings waslks\s:

COMPANY

Note 33 pec-15 31-Dec-14
At beginning of year 939,356 939,099
Additions- increase in investment cost 110 (532)
(Disposals) - (275)
(Company dissolution) (40) -
(Impairment) 30 (17,750) -
At year end 921,677 939,356

The decrease of investments in subsidiaries by EWUR50 thousand pertains to the impairment of thesigliary
HELLENIC ENERGY & DEVELOPMENT SA due to impairmenf the participating interest of the latter in a
company in the energy segment (ELPEDISON SA). Timewmt of EUR 40 thousand in the Dissolution item

pertains to the dissolution of the subsidiary SMARSRT LTD in the 4th quarter of 2015.

In the financial year 2014, the decrease of investsin subsidiaries by EUR 275 thousand represkatsale of
subsidiary PROMAS SA which was sold to third partie the second quarter of 2014 with no significafifect
on company level and with loss of EUR 575 thousain@roup level.

Subsidiaries with a significant percentage of nonantrolling interests

The following tables present summary financial infation about subsidiaries in which non-controllinterests
have a significant percentage (Note 41a).

Summary Statement of Financial Position

ELLINIKI
TECHNODOMIKI
ATTIKI ODOS SA* MOREAS SA* ANEMOS S.A* VEAL SA*
59.25% 59.25% 71.67% 71.67% 64.50% 64.50% 47.22% 722%
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Non-current assets 417,125 482,922 541,942 §40,2 287,709 266,427 23,836 24,371
Current assets 269,708 397,541 177,396 153,871 35,571 56,763 17,108 21,667
Total assets 686,833 880,463 719,337 694,165 3,30 323,190 40,944 46,038
Non-current liabilities 262,401 394,180 659,234 680,700 168,763 170,860 9,601 10,335
Current liabilities 51,537 81,779 171,138 136,57 28,730 34,156 13,720 21,106
Total liabilities 313,938 475,959 830,372 817%7 197,493 205,017 23,321 31,441
Equity 372,895 404,504 (111,035) (123,110) 125,7 118,173 17,623 14,598
corresponding to:
Non controlling interests 151,956 164,837 (31,456) (34,877) 44,654 41,951 9,301 7,705
Summary Statement of Comprehensive Income
ELLINIKI
TECHNODOMIKI
ATTIKI ODOS SA* MOREAS SA* ANEMOS S.A* VEAL SA*
1-Jan 1-Jan 1-Jan 1-Jan

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-181-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Sales 162,779 159,668 36,337 54,817 37,161 29,198 16,109 15,274
Net profit / (loss) for the
fiscal year 29,211 38,933 (13,897) (8,827) 7,502 ,658 3,026 3,769
Other comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year (net
of tax) 250 (2,461) 25,973  (43,579) 112 (15) - -
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ELLINIKI
TECHNODOMIKI
ATTIKI ODOS SA* MOREAS SA* ANEMOS S.A.* VEAL SA*
1-Jan 1-Jan 1-Jan 1-Jan
31-Dec-15  31-Dec-14  31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-1531-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14

Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year 29,461 36,472 12,075 815) 7,614 3,635 3,026 3,769

Profit / (loss) for the financial
year attributable to non-
controlling interests 11,904 15,865 (3,937) (2,501) 2,663 774 1,597 1,989

Dividends attributable to non-
controlling interests 24,871 46,355 - - - - - (¢i9]0]

Summary Statement of Cash Flows
ELLINIKI
TECHNODOMIKI
ATTIKI ODOS SA* MOREAS SA* ANEMOS S.A* VEAL SA*

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14

Total inflows/(outflows)
from operating activities 55,428 60,398 32,003 728, 14,177 14,875 4,254 1,863

Total inflows/(outflows)
from investing activities (15,722) 65,879 (22,p61 (24,273) (24,617) (34,494) 853 603

Total inflows/(outflows)
from financing activities (209,788) (246,948) - 1(858) (7,105) 39,532 (7,950) (17)

Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and
cash equivalents (170,081) (120,671) 9,942 (7,174) (17,545) 19,913 (2,843) 1,244

* Data before eliminations with the larger Group

10 Investments in associates & joint ventures

All amounts in EUR thousand. GROUP COMPANY

Note 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
At beginning of year 157,292 165,005 34,721 34,871
Additions new 346 778 - -
Additions- increase in investment cost 76 - - -
(Disposals) (5,589) (4,155) - (150)
(Impairment) 30 (6,984) (275) - -
Share in profit/ loss (after taxes) (7,131) 434 - -
Other changes to Other comprehensive income 501 (5,999) - -
Transfer from/to subsidiaries (8) 2,041
Dissolution of joint ventures (922) (536) - -
At year end 137,580 157,292 34,721 34,721

REGENCY CASINO MONT PARNES SA and DILAVERIS SA arensolidated through their parent companies
ATHENS RESORT CASINO SA and PEIRA SA, respectivelhich are associates of the Group.

In the current year, Disposals relate to POUNEN$Fsand ANEMODOMIKI SA that were transferred to thir

parties without any significant result for the Good'he major part of the impairment of EUR 6,984uand
relates to impairment of the Group’s participatinggrest in ELPEDISON SA.
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Impairment of the value of ELPEDISON SA

Due to the recent developments, mainly relatinthéochanges to the compensation mechanisms, whicluged
the negative results of ELPEDISON SA, in combimatwith the expected changes in the electricity raadnd
the regulatory framework, the Group performed aigampairment test on that investment. The impantnest
was carried out in accordance with IAS 36 and wasel on a relevant test performed by the Manageofent
ELPEDISON SA. According to the data of the teststcdlows were discounted in order to determine the
company’s value based on the Management’s estinodttee future course of the company and of theketar
Those estimates were mostly based on the recemiapemwents, the company’s course in 2015, the esdect
changes to the regulatory framework and the busipks of the Company. The estimated future cashsfiwere
discounted by using the average weighted capitl (809%) as determined based on current markatatat risk
factors. The impairment test resulted in the abueationed impairment of EUR 6,984 thousand.

The tables below present summary financial inforomabn the most significant associates of the Grdups
information includes the amounts shown on the fim@rstatements of the following associates, wiiakie been
amended to reflect fair value adjustments and absig accounting policies.

Summary Statement of Financial Position
AEGEAN MOTORWAY

SA GEFYRA SA ELPEDISON SA
20.00% 20.00% 22.02% 22.02% 22.73% 22.73%

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-181-Dec-14
Non-current assets 501,618 438,863 340,209 353,827 336,445 361,313
Current assets 102,537 97,175 42,982 39,944 1%3,8 125,525
Total assets 604,155 536,038 383,192 393,771 0,3 486,838
Non-current liabilities 437,286 426,121 252,855 9366 21,021 12,480
Current liabilities 117,828 62,958 18,710 17,646 353,988 329,785
Total liabilities 555,114 489,078 271,565 287,452 375,009 342,265
Equity 49,041 46,960 111,626 106,319 115,313 943,

Agreement on summary financial statements
AEGEAN MOTORWAY

SA GEFYRA SA ELPEDISON SA

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Company'’s equity as of 1
January 46,960 69,957 106,319 105,730 144,573 ,832
Net profit / (loss) for the fiscal
year - - 4,560 2,013 (30,600) 1,717
Other comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year (net
of tax) 2,081 (22,998) 748 (1,424) 25 3
Other changes - - - - 1,315 -
Company’s equity as of 31
December 49,041 46,960 111,626 106,319 115,313 4,578
% patrticipation in associates &
IV 20.00% 20.00% 22.02% 22.02% 22.73% 22.73%
Group’s participation in the
equity of associates & joint
ventures 9,808 9,392 24,585 23,416 26,211 32,861
Goodwill - - 3,086 3,086 8,500 15,364
Investments in associates and
joint ventures 9,808 9,392 27,671 26,502 34,711 8,225
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Summary Statement of Comprehensive Income
AEGEAN MOTORWAY

SA GEFYRA SA ELPEDISON SA
1-Jan 1-Jan 1-Jan

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-1 31-Dec-14
Sales 121,585 142,365 33,636 32,936 194,958 7861,
Net profit/ (loss) for the fiscal
veal - - 4,560 2,013 (30,600) 1,717
Other comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year (net
of tax) 2,081 (22,998) 748 (1,424) 1,340 3
Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the year 2,081 (22,998) 5,307 958 (29,260) 1,720

Non-significant associates and joint ventures

2015 2014
Accumulated nominal value of non-significant asates & joint
ventures 65,390 73,172
Group ratio in:
Net profit/ (loss) for the fiscal year (1,180) (400)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year @néix) (86) (1,087)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (1,266) (1,487)

11 Joint operations consolidated as a joint operation

The following amounts represent the share of ppeits in joint operations and specifically in thesets and
liabilities as well as revenues and expenses thefdese amounts are included in the Statementiran€ial
Position as well as in the Group’s Income Staterfmyears 2015 and 2014:

All amounts in EUR thousand. 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Receivables
Non-current assets 48,664 22,101
Current assets 598,345 499,881
647,008 521,982
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities 24,633 49,837
Current liabilities 634,566 484,317
659,200 534,154
Equity (12,191) (12,172)
Income 417,007 311,568
(Expenses) (413,914) (299,455)
Profit / (loss) after tax 3,093 12,113

The joint operations in the above table do notuidelthose in the share capital of which the Graantigipates by
100%.
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12 Available-for-sale financial assets

GROUP
All amounts in EUR thousand. 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
At beginning of year 91,339 77,000
Additions new 84,142
Additions- increase in investment cost 3,030 6,701
(Disposals) (26,935) (3,987)
Impairment (45,040) (8,645)
Adjustment at fair value through Other comprehemsiv
income: increase/(decrease) 195 20,271
At year end 106,730 91,339
Non-current assets 55,047 89,336
Current assets 51,683 2,002
106,730 91,339
Available-for-sale financial assets include thédaing:
GROUP
Listed securities: 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Shares — Greece (in EUR) 5,438 2,069
Shares — Foreign countries (in CAD) 41,668 77,342
Shares — Abroad (in EURO) 312 455
Non-listed securities:
Shares — Greece (in EUR) 13,001 11,472
Money Market Funds - International (in EUR) 46,310
106,730 91,339

The parent company does not have any availablséterfinancial assets.

As of 31.12.2015, the amount shown in “Additionsvheelate by EUR 63,758 thousand to the purchadewf
risk mutual funds and by EUR 20,384 thousand topilrehase of bank shares. The latter amount insl&déR
12,883 thousand relating to the adjustment awine at the acquisition of bank shares (note 30).

The amount in “Additions - Increase of participaticost” mainly comes from the increase of the pgwdting
interest in OLYMPIA ODOS SA by EUR 1,530 thousad.(2.2014: EUR 6,381 thousand).

The amount of EUR 45,040 thousand in the line “limpant” mainly pertains by EUR 37,174 thousand
31.12.2014: EUR 8,583 thousand) to the further impent of the shares in mining companies (Notev@@greas
the “Fair value adjustment through Other comprelvensicome” in the comparable data for 31.12.20&4nhy
pertains to the same investment (amount of EUR &P fhousand). The remaining amount of EUR 7,866
thousand pertains to impairment of the value okbsrares.

“Disposals” include the sales of a part of the mlfunds and the bank shares mentioned above, amgun
EUR 17,430 thousand and EUR 9,504 thousand, ragplctin the same line, “Disposals” of EUR 3,987
thousand as at 31.12.2014 pertain to the saleavéslhneld by the subsidiary company ATTIKI ODOS SA.

The fair value of non-listed securities is detemuirby discounting anticipated future cash flowsseobon the
market interest rate, and the required return gestments of similar risk; the value of mutual fansl based on
the net asset value of each fund.
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13 Prepayments for long-term leases

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
At beginning of year 48,936 51,929
Additions 67 601
(Write-off) (17) -
(Depreciation and amortisation) (3,621) (3,594)
At year end 45,365 48,936
Non-current assets 41,719 45,499
Current assets 3,646 3,437
45,365 48,936

An amount of EUR 40,024 thousand (2014: EUR 42 8&fusand) from Prepayments for long-term leases
pertains to the construction costs of car serviegions for which the Group has concluded operatéase
agreements with third parties and which are deatediduring the concession arrangement.

A smaller amount of EUR 1,944 thousand (2014: EUR .2 thousand) pertains to the lease of forest fanthe
installation of Wind Farms at locations Ag. Dynakefallonia, Achladokambos- Argolida, Asprovounidan
Ortholithi- Trizinia, Mount Lyrkio- Arkadia, Mali Mdi- Molai, Lakonia, Lampousa and Vromosykia-Triain

Magoula- Alexandroupoli, and of one photovoltaimfaat location Lekana-Argolida. This amount is degated
during the term of lease of the forest land.

14 Guaranteed receipt from Greek State (IFRIC 12)

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Balance on  Increase of Unwind of Balance on
31/12/2013 receivables discount 31/12/2014
Assets
Guaranteed receipt from Greek State (IFRIC 12) Ay 17,714 5,150 150,776
Total 127,913 17,714 5,150 150,776
Balance
Balance on Increase of Unwind of on
31/12/2014  receivables discount 31/12/2015
Assets
Guaranteed receipt from Greek State (IFRIC 12) , 15D 6,835 4,987 162,599
Total 150,776 6,835 4,987 162,599
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Non-current assets 34,395 33,552
Current assets 128,204 117,225

162,599 150,776

The guaranteed receipt from the Greek State carelspto MOREAS SA by EUR 157,285 thousand and
EPADYM SA by EUR 5,314 thousand. The latter engdgebke design, financing, construction and operetiof
infrastructure of the Integrated Waste Managemeystedn of the Region of Western Macedonia with PPP.
DIADYMA SA will be the Contracting Authority of th@roject. The total investment amounts to approtetga
48 million euro. The project is co-financed by tBeropean Investment Bank with approximately EUR 13
million, the Western Macedonia Urban Developmemd-(through Jessica) with approximately EUR 13ionill
-thus contributing to the absorption of NSRF fumdsch would otherwise remain unused-, the Natidwhk of
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Greece with EUR 5.6 million corresponding to th@ject construction VAT, and AKTOR Concessions and
HELECTOR with own funds of EUR 17 million.

The unwind of discount is included in the finaneedame / (expenses) in the line Interest income.

15 Derivative financial instruments
All amounts in EUR thousand.

Of the amounts presented in the following table, thajor part, namely an amount of EUR 152,255 thodis
(31.12.2014: EUR 171,907 thousand) corresponds@REAS SA.

GROUP

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Current assets
Warrants - 407
Total - 407
Non-current liabilities
Interest rate swaps for cash flow hedging 155,637 174,817
Total 155,637 174,817
Current liabilities
Interest rate swaps for cash flow hedging - 55
Forward foreign exchange swaps for cash flow heglgin - 225
Total - 280
Total liabilities 155,637 175,097
Details of interest rate swaps
Notional value of interest rate swaps 399,226 7,280
Nominal value of forward foreign exchange swapsdeign
currencies) - 6,400
Fixed Rate 1.73%-4.9% 1.73%-4.9%
Floating rate Euribor Euribor

The fair value of the derivative used to hedge disli changes is classified in non-current asseterwthe
remaining life of the hedged item is more than Ighths.

The cash flow hedge portion deemed ineffective mmbgnised in the Income Statement correspondsatit p
amounting to EUR 1,719 thousand for 2015 and te lmounting to EUR 2.525 thousand for 2014 (nofe 31
Profit or loss from interest rate swaps recognigsedash flow hedge reserves under Equity as of 8teimber
2015 will be recognised through profit and lossuffte repayment of loans.

The parent company holds no financial derivatives.

(83) / (127)



ELLAKTOR SA
Annual Financial statements in line with IFRS
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2015

‘ ELLAKTOR

16 Inventories

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Raw materials 24,738 16,260
Finished products 13,134 12,807
Production in progress 732 1,163
Prepayment for inventories purchase 192 -
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Other 7,086 5,091
Total 45,883 35,321
Less: Provisions for obsolete, slow-moving or
damaged inventory:
Raw materials 5 5
Finished products 1,060 463
1,065 468
Net realisable value 44,818 34,853

The greatest part of the inventory belongs to canigsaof the Constructions & Quarries segment. |ées
amounting to EUR 226 thousand were written off dgrthe fiscal year 2015, while an additional pransof

EUR 823 thousand was formed.

The Parent holds no inventory.

17 Receivables

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP COMPANY

Note 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Trade 451,716 368,941 134 345
Trade receivables — Related parties 38 39,946 17,653 1,126 1,170
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables ©2) (35,118) - -
Trade Receivables - Net 463,151 351,476 1,260 15,5
Amounts due from construction contracts 300,623 3,83 - -
Income tax prepayment 3,151 1,729 - -
Loans to related parties 38 68,064 65,211 201 223
Time deposits over 3 months 489 484 - -
Other receivables 409,082 415,951 1,662 1,087
Other receivables -Related parties 38 15,495 13,659 18,091 4,282
Less: Provision for impairment of other
receivables (13,538) (12,767) - -
Total 1,246,517 1,169,595 21,213 7,107
Non-current assets 110,487 90,223 24 24
Current assets 1,136,030 1,079,372 21,189 7,083

1,246,517 1,169,595 21,213 7,107
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The account “Other Receivables” is broken dowro#lews:

GROUP COMPANY

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15  31-Dec-14
Receivables from joint operations/joint ventures ,58% 134,713 - -
Sundry debtors 156,113 107,026 24 28
Greek State (prepaid and withholding taxes) & docia
security 79,051 77,566 1,332 1,025
Accrued income 3,439 4,121 146 -
Prepaid expenses 21,256 18,552 159 34
Prepayments to suppliers/creditors 57,003 63,750 - -
Cheques (postdated) receivable 7,664 10,222 - -

409,082 415,951 1,662 1,087

Loans to related parties are granted at an arm{gtteand bear mostly floating interest rate.

The movement of provision for impairment of tradeeivables is presented in the following table:

GROUP
Balance as of 1 January 2014 40,837
Provision for impairment 3,172
Write-off of receivables during the year (8,897)
Currency translation differences 7
Balance as of 31 December 2014 35,118
Provision for impairment 1,014
Write-off of receivables during the year (7,531)
Currency translation differences (8)
Change in present value (82)
Balance as of 31 December 2015 28,512

The change to provision for impairment of otherieables is presented in the following table:

GROUP
Balance as of 1 January 2014 12,160
Provision for impairment 842
Unused provisions reversed (235)
Balance as of 31 December 2014 12,767
Provision for impairment 895
Unused provisions reversed a7)
Discount (108)
Balance as of 31 December 2015 13,538

Impairment provisions for Trade and Other receigabilo not relate to receivables from related parfigne
parent company has not formed any provision foraimpent.

The ageing analysis for Trade balances as of 3mber 2015 is as follows:
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Not overdue and not impaired
Overdue:

3 - 6 months

6 months to 1 year

Over 1 year

Less: Provision for impairment of
receivables

Trade Receivables - Net

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14

293,727 171,272 666 657

28,832 33,579 81 105

27,247 27,331 156 146

141,856 154,411 357 607
491,662 386,594 1,260 1,515
(28,512) (35,118) - -
463,151 351,476 1,260 1,515

The amount of Trade receivables that are overdwenfore than 1 year include retention receivable for
construction projects amounting to EUR 32,050 thodson 31.12.2015 and EUR 17,618 thousand on

31.12.2014.

Receivables are analyzed in the following curresicie

EUR
KUWAIT DINAR (KWD)

US DOLLAR ($)

ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON)
BRITISH POUND (£)

SERBIAN DINAR (RSD)
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES
DIRHAM (AED)

QATAR RIYAL (QAR)
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN)
ALBANIAN LEK (ALL)

CHILEAN PESO (CLP)
OTHER CURRENCIES

18 Financial assets held to maturity

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Financial assets held to maturity include the foilm:

Listed securities - bonds
EIB bond at 3.875%, maturity on 15.10.2016

EFSF bond at 1.25% maturity on 22.01.2019

EIB bond at 0,5%, maturity on 15.09.2017
EIB bond at 2,875%, maturity on 15.07.2016

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
845,138 840,819 21,213 7,107
21,073 46,529 - -
38,533 14,858 - -
19,272 17,877 - -
17,622 6,618 - -
9,648 3,672 - -
14,781 7,061 - -
265,973 215,223 - -
1,343 4,986 - R
8,422 8,493 - R
BOSNIA-HERZEGOVINA MARK (BAM) 1,747 13 - -
1,532 2,004 - -
1,432 1,541 - R
1,246,517 1,169,595 21,213 7,107
GROUP
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
52,326 54,014
25,109 25,112
24,760 -
9,593 -
111,788 79,126

Total
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The change in financial assets held to maturifyrésented in the table below:

At beginning of year
Additions

(Maturities)

(Premium amortisation)
At year end
Non-current assets
Current assets

Total

GROUP
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14

79,126 80,328
49,957 25,115

(15,215) (24,609)
(2,081) (1,708)

111,788 79,126
49,869 79,126
61,919

111,788 79,126

The total financial assets held to maturity incluEldR 96,961 thousand (31.12.2014: EUR 73,717 thad)sa
belonging to ATTIKI ODOS SA and EUR 14,826 thousgBd.12.2014: EUR 5,409 thousand) to AKTOR

CONCESSIONS SA.

The amortisation of the bond premium of EUR 2,0B&usand (31.12.2014: EUR 1,708 thousand) has been
recognised in the Income Statement for the ye#hv@rine “Finance income’.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at 31.1P523 up to the carrying value of such financiadeds.
Financial assets held to maturity are denominateduro. The parent Company has no financial asetsto

maturity.

19 Restricted cash

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Non-current assets 10,426 14,708
Current assets 39,424 57,721
49,850 72,429

The major part of restricted cash comes from ATTGDOS SA by EUR 12,278 thousand (31.12.2014: EUR
24,303 thousand), from ELTECH ANEMOS SA by EUR %, 2housand (31.12.2014: EUR 18,819 thousand),
from AKTOR SA by EUR 13,442 thousand (31.12.201WRE14,769 thousand), and from YIALOU SA by EUR
9,061 thousand (31.12.2014: EUR 6,604 thousand).

Restricted cash is denominated in the followingencies:

GROUP
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14

EUR 34,332 59,617
ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON) 12,131 9,368
QATAR RIYAL (QAR) 1,721 3,027
ALBANIAN LEK (ALL) 1,628
OTHER CURRENCIES 37 415

49,850 72,429

Restricted cash in cases of self- or co-financegjepts (e.g. Attica Tollway, wind farms, environnten
management projects, etc) concerns accounts uséltefoepayment of short-term installments of l¢é@gn loans
or reserve accounts. Also, these may concern bapésits which are used as collateral for the issmian Letters

(87) / (127)



ELLAKTOR SA
‘ ELLAKTOR Annual Financial statements in line with IFRS

for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2015

of Guarantee by international credit institutiomstt are highly rated by International Firms as vadl cash
collaterals for the receipt of grants.

The parent company has no restricted cash.

20 Cash and cash equivalents

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Cash in hand 2,838 2,332 - 1
Sight deposits 347,121 316,362 1,035 3,958
Time deposits 100,419 361,224
Total 450,378 679,918 1,035 3,959

The balance of cash and cash equivalents at a latatsal level corresponds primarily to ATTIKI ODGSA by
EUR 184,433 thousand (31.12.2014: EUR 354,514 thud)s to AKTOR SA joint ventures by EUR 46,934

thousand (31.12.2014: EUR 50,647 thousand), to ARTSA by EUR 42,955 thousand (31.12.2014: EUR 69,856

thousand) and to MOREAS SA by EUR 31,009 thous8idl@.2014: EUR 21,066 thousand).

The balance of Time deposits at a consolidated reesponds primarily to ATTIKI ODOS SA by EUR 882
thousand (31.12.2014: EUR 322,250 thousand).

The decrease in cash and cash equivalents sebis iyeair is mainly due to the extraordinary repayined bank
borrowings by ATTIKI ODOS SA and the acquisition afailable-for-sale financial assets, as well aaritial
assets held to maturity by Group subsidiaries.

The following table shows the rates of depositsgoedit rating class by Standard & Poor (S&P).

Sight and time deposits %

Financial Institution Rating (S&P) 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
AA- 13.9% 0.8%
A 4.5% 1.3%
A- 0.7% 3.6%
BBB 7.0% -
CCC+ - 87.2%
SD (Selective Default) 51.0% -
NR (Not rated) 22.9% 7.1%
TOTAL 100.0% 100.0%

Approximately 51% of the sight and time depositshef Company are kept as of 31.12.2015 (31.12.281.2%)
with the Greek systemically important banks wittvlor no credit rating, due to the Greek sovereigbtdrisis. It
should be pointed out, however, that these bank®rcthe largest part of total credit facilities tiggs of
guarantee, loans, etc.) granted to the Group.

Not rated financial institutions includmter alia, subsidiaries and branches of Greek banks abroad.

The time deposit interest rates are determined agotiations with selected banking institutiorsséd on
Euribor rates and are dependent on the periodvesiment (e.g. week, month etc).
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Cash and cash equivalents are analysed in thevialipcurrencies:

GROUP
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
EUR 402,006 633,908
US DOLLAR ($) 2,568 562
ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON) 10,004 9,038
BRITISH POUND (£) 4,153 5,259
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM
(AED) 418 5111
QATAR RIYAL (QAR) 27,222 22,014
CHILEAN PESO (CLP) 991 2,500
ETHIOPIAN BIRR (ETB) 2,339 -
OTHER CURRENCIES 677 1,527
450,378 679,918

Cash and cash equivalents of the parent compargxaressed in euros.

21 Share Capital & Premium Reserve

All amounts in EUR, save the number of shares

COMPANY
Treasury
Number of Shares Share capital Share premium shares Total
1 January 2014 172,431,279 182,311 523,847 (27,072) 679,086
31 December 2014 172,431,279 182,311 523,847 (Z3,07 679,086
1 January 2015 172,431,279 182,311 523,847 (27,072) 679,086
31 December 2015 172,431,279 182,311 523,847 (23,07 679,086

The Company currently holds 4,570,034 treasuryeshaepresenting 2.58% of its paid up share capiathe
total acquisition value of EUR 27,072,275, at thesrage acquisition price of EUR 5.92 per share. The
Company’s share capital amounts to EUR 182,3113852ljvided into 177,001,313 shares with the fealeie of

EUR 1.03 each.
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22 Other reserves

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP
Statutory Special Untaxed Available for FX differences Changes in Actuarial Other Total
reserves reserves reserves sale reserves reserves value of cash profit/(los reserves
flow hedge S) reserves
1 January 2014 48,462 112,798 127,926 (66,974) 46)3 (54,346) (623) 39,298 200,198
Currency translation
differences - 5,720 5,720
Effect of change % in the
interest held in a sub-group of
ELTECH ANEMOS due to
listing on ATHEX (281) (1,401) - 6 (1,676)
Transfer from/to retained
earnings 5,510 6,611 (52,785) - (7)(40,671)
Changes in value of available-
for-sale financial assets / Cash
flow hedge - 21,258 (37,060) - - (15,802)
Adjustment of reclassification
due to impairment of
investment in mining
companies - 45,575 - - - - 45575
Reclassification (75,141) - - - - 75,141
Actuarial loss - - (948) (948)
31 December 2014 53,691 118,008 (141) (621) 08)4 (1,565) 114,432 192,397
Currency translation
differences - 4,737 4,737
Effect of change in %
participation in subsidiaries 6 (142) (136)
Transfer to retained earnings 4,729 - - 4,729
Changes in value of available-
for-sale financial assets / Cash
flow hedge - 19 18,885 18,904
Actuarial profit - 47 - 47
31 December 2015 58,420 118,014 (122) 3,973 @n5 (1,518) 114,432 220,678

Of the increase by EUR 18,885 thousand observe@aish flow hedging reserves for the 12-month peadbd
2015, the amount of EUR 581 thousand is due to Geamsociates. Associates contributed to the inereBEUR
4,737 thousand in the foreign currency translateserve by the amount of EUR 170 thousand. FolZhmonth
period of 2014, associates contributed by EUR 4 b8 sand to the decrease of EUR 37,060 thousatigein
cash flow hedging reserve, and by EUR 155 thouganihe increase of EUR 5,720 thousand in the foreig

exchange difference reserve.

In the first 12-month period of 2014, the prolongkstrease in the fair value of the Group’s investinie mining
companies, as included in available-for-sale fim@rassets, constituted an objective indication this financial
asset was impaired. For this reason, accumulatsse$oof EUR 45,575 thousand was reclassified fioen t
Available for Sale Reserves to Other Losses inltfteme Statement. Moreover, an amount of EUR 8,583
thousand was charged to the Income Statement fot @0e to further impairment (note 12), thus insieg the
total burden on the results to EUR 54,158 thougaatk 30).

(90) / (127)



‘ ELLAKTOR

ELLAKTOR SA

Annual Financial statements in line with IFRS
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2015

COMPANY

1 January 2014
Reclassification

Transfer to retained earnings
Actuarial loss

31 December 2014

1 January 2015

Actuarial loss

31 December 2015

Statutory Special Untaxed Actuarial Other reserves Total
reserves reserves reserves profit/(loss)
reserves
18,260 30,691 50,248 (22) 3,910 083,
- 3,079 (3,079) - - -
- (47,169) - (47,169)
- (13) (13)
18,260 33,770 (35) 3,910 55,904
18,260 33,770 (35) 3,910 55,904
- (€)] ()
18,260 33,770 (38) 3,910 55,901

(a) Statutory reserves

The provisions of Articles 44 and 45 of CodifiedAd.2190/1920 regulate the way the legal reserveriméd and
used, as follows: At least 5% of each year's actbabk) net earnings must be withheld to form dustey
reserve, until the statutory reserve’s accumularedunt equals at least 1/3 of the share capitadnidfecision of
the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders, theutry reserve may be used to cover losses, lardfore
may not be used for any other purpose.

(b) Special reserves

Reserves of this category have been created upnsiate of the Ordinary General Meeting in past gedo not
have any specific designation and may thereforadeel for any purpose, upon decision of the Ordizeyeral

Meeting.

(c) Untaxed reserves

In FY2014, untaxed reserves of EUR 75,141 thousdr@roup level and EUR 3,079 thousand on comparel,le
which do not fall within the scope of article 70{1& Law 4172/2013 were transferred to Other reserand
Special reserves, respectively, and the tax lighiilas been fully paid up.

23 Borrowings

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Long-term borrowings
Bank borrowings

Finance lease liabilities
Bond loan

From related parties

Other

Total long-term borrowings

Short-term borrowing

Bank overdrafts

Bank borrowings

Bond loan

Finance lease liabilities 575 893
From related parties

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
215,569 336,455 - -
958 1,534 - R
953,298 937,174 224,488 224,592
- - 43,850 16,100
- 189 - -
1,169,826 1,275,351 2388 240,692
445 63 - -
215,289 177,329 - -
106,039 96,356 - -
- 342 - 24,400
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GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Other - 333 -
Total short-term borrowings 322,348 275,316 - 2400
Total borrowings 1,492,174 1,550,667 268,338 2680

In early 2015 the Group refinanced the long-terankof the parent ELLAKTOR SA (EUR 227.5 milliomda
AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA (EUR 170 million) ensuring theailability of additional capital of EUR 102.5
million for the financing of the Group’s future iestments. Moreover, in the 12-month period in 2€H&
subsidiary company ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ANEMOS SAcontractually agreed approved long-term
funding of EUR 31.3 million for the completion ofimd farms under construction, as well as the reifdnag of
existing long-term borrowings of EUR 43.8 milliofihe subsidiary AKTOR SA proceeded with refinancirfigts
long-term loans amounting to EUR 78.8 million.

The decrease seen in the Group’s long-term borigsiim due to the extraordinary repayment of lodnSTa IKI|
ODOS SA.

The variance noticed in the line ‘Short-term loémgelated parties’ of the parent company , i.eLEKTOR,
mainly concerns the reclassification of loans freimrt-term to long-term, as these were refinanced.

The total borrowings include amounts from subortdidanon-recourse debt amounting to a total of E3R,%
million (31.12.2014: EUR 778.1 million) from consé®n companies, and specifically a sum of EUR 108.3
million (31.12.2014: EUR 256.9 million) from ATTIKDODOS SA, EUR 522.6 million (31.12.2014: EUR 521.2
million) from MOREAS SA.

Exposure to changes in interest rates and the datepricing the contracts are presented in tleviang table:

GROUP

FIXED FLOATING RATE

6-12
RATE up to 6 months months Total

31 December 2014
Total borrowings 381,798 807,639 8,739 1,198,176
Effect of interest rate swaps 352,491 - - 352,491

734,288 807,639 8,739 1,550,667
31 December 2015
Total borrowings 364,620 782,244 5,436 1,152,300
Effect of interest rate swaps 339,874 - - 339,874

704,494 782,244 5,436 1,492,174
COMPANY

FLOATING RATE

up to 6 months Total
31 December 2014
Total borrowings 265,092 265,092

265,092 265,092
31 December 2015
Total borrowings 268,338 268,338
268,338 268,338

The maturities of long-term borrowings are as falo
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GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Between 1 and 2 years 79,800 132,447 4,396 4,574
Between 2 to 5 years 312,907 380,858 39,491 54,523
Over 5 years 777,119 762,046 224,451 181,595
1,169,826 1,275,351 268,338 240,692

Out of total borrowings, the amount of EUR 364 .@iom represents fixed or regularly revised ratars mainly
for cofinanced/ self-financed projects at the agereate of 4.87% (compared to EUR 381.8 milliothataverage
rate of 5.05% for 2014), while the additional amboh EUR 339.9 million is subject to rate risk héuty
(includes loan hedge and spread) at the averag@f#&.00% (compared to EUR 352.5 million at therage rate
of 5.99% for 2014). All other borrowings, amountitggEUR 787.7 million (compared to EUR 816.4 mitli;m
2014) are floating rate loans (e.g. loans in EURjlor plus spread).

Group borrowings are denominated in the followingencies:

GROUP

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
EUR 1,360,083 1,507,770
US DOLLAR ($) 3,129 2,147
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES
DIRHAM (AED) - 2
QATAR RIYAL (QAR) 126,895 35,423
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN) - 4,348
ALBANIAN LEK (ALL) 2,067 977

1,492,174 1,550,667

All Company borrowings are expressed in Euros.

In addition, on 31.12.2015, ELLAKTOR had issued pamy guarantees amounting to EUR 247.5 million
(31.12.2014: EUR 254.5 million) for the benefitammpanies in which it holds an interest, mainlgtsure bank
credit lines or credit from suppliers. For collaisrprovided to secure loans see notes 6 and 8.

Finance lease liabilities, which are presentedhénabove tables, are analyzed as follows:

GROUP

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Finance lease liabilities — minimum lease payments
Under 1 year 623 968
1-5 years 990 1,614
Total 1,613 2,582
Less: Future finance costs of finance lease
liabilities (79) (155)
Present value of finance lease liabilities 1,533 2,427

The present value of finance lease liabilitiesnalgzed below:

GROUP
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Under 1 year 575 893
1-5 years 958 1,534
Total 1,533 2,427

The parent company has no finance lease liabilities
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24  Grants

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP

Note 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
At beginning of year 73,305 78,253
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary - 669
Additions - 2,869
Transfer to income statement (Other income-
expenses) 30 (3,700) (3,698)
Refunds (499) (4,788)
At year end 69,105 73,305

The most important grants included in the balarfc®1dl2.2015 are the following:

i)  The amount of EUR 49,487 thousand (31.12.2014: BWR64 thousand) for grants received by ELLINIKI
TECHNODOMIKI ANEMOS SA under investment and deveilmnt laws for the construction of Wind
Farms in Kefalonia, Mytilini, Alexandroupoli, Lak@nand Argolida. The grant percentage ranges fro% 2
to 40% of each investment’s budget.

ii) The amount of EUR 7,724 thousand (31.12.2014: EUR3thousand) for grant received by subsidiary
VEAL SA under OPCE for the construction of a co-getion power plant using biogas from the Ano
Liosia landfill. The grant amount covers 40% of theestment’s budget.

iii) The amount of EUR 2,334 thousand (31.12.2014: EL832thousand) for grant received by subsidiary
HELECTOR from the European Commission for the depelent of power plants using pioneering
methods, such as secondary fuel gasification (GaeBand Polystabilat programs) and anaerobicdlige
of organic waste (biogas program). The grant amogmesents approximately 55% of the budgetedfoost
the development of said power plants.

iv) The amount of EUR 1,754 thousand (31.12.2014: EL838lthousand) for grant received by subsidiary
ANEMOS ALKYONIS SA under OPCE for the constructioha 6.30 MW Wind Farm in the Municipality
of Kissamos, in the Prefecture of Chania. The gowent grant amount covers 30% of the investment'’s
budget.

v) The amount of EUR 1,601 thousand (31.12.2014: EL8®3l thousand) for grant received by subsidiary
AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA-ARCHITECH SA for the developthand operation of a public parking with
total capacity of 958 parking spaces in the Murdlifp of Thessaloniki, area of YMCA junction.

vi) The amount of EUR 1,425 thousand (31.12.2014: EL8R6lthousand) for grant received by subsidiary
AIFORIKI DODEKANISSOU SA under OPCE regarding prcie'Wind power utilisation for the power
generation in the islands of Rhodes (3.0 MW), Kh§ (MW) and Patmos (1.2 MW)". The government grant
amount covers 30% of the investment’s budget.

For 2015, Returns of EUR 499 thousand relate tosthsidiary HELECTOR S.A. For 2014, Additions of EU
2,869 thousand come, in their entirety, from ELIKINTECHNODOMIKI ANEMOS S.A. and relate to (a) EUR
1,611 thousand for the Wind Farm in Mali Madi, Mal&unicipality; and (b) EUR 1,258 thousand for th¥
Park at the Lekana location, Prefecture of Argolifihe returns amounting to EUR 4,788 thousand edsoe
from this subsidiary.

The parent Company has no grant balances.

(94) / (127)



ELLAKTOR SA
Annual Financial statements in line with IFRS
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2015

‘ ELLAKTOR

25 Trade and other payables
All amounts in EUR thousand.

The Company’s liabilities from trade activities diree of interest.

GROUP COMPANY
Note 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Trade payables 264,719 271,656 63 585
Accrued expenses 58,284 39,352 1,351 120
Social security and other taxes 40,913 37,038 404 652
Amounts due to construction contracts 51,697 34,73 - -
Prepayments for operating leases 1,003 1,145 - -
Other liabilities 568,249 559,748 6,051 7,463
Total liabilities — Related parties 38 9,942 8,837 3,874 5,018
Total 994,807 952,509 11,743 13,839
Non-current 32,294 53,563 3,471 1,460
Current 962,513 898,946 8,272 12,379
Total 994,807 952,509 11,743 13,839
“Other Liabilities” is analyzed as follows:
GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Advances from customers 206,759 260,123 5,659 0677,
Sundry creditors 184,148 128,871 - -
Amounts due to contractors 109,186 88,893 327 269
Amounts due to Joint Operations 51,851 58,350 - -
Fees payable for services provided and employee
fees payable 16,306 23,511 65 127
568,249 559,748 6,051 7,463
Total payables are denominated in the followingenries:
GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
EUR 651,391 614,096 11,743 13,839
US DOLLAR ($) 13,952 27,025 - -
ROMANIA NEW LEU (RON) 25,234 15,315 - -
BRITISH POUND (£) 6,062 8,033 - -
SERBIAN DINAR (RSD) 31,882 33,104 - -
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM (AED) 12,370 12,461 - -
QATAR RIYAL (QAR) 228,787 214,278 - -
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN) 700 5,187 - -
ALBANIAN LEK (ALL) 7,336 7,873 - -
BOSNIA-HERZEGOVINA MARK (BAM) 1,378 884 - -
FYROM DINAR (MKD) 8,556 11,595 - -
CHILEAN PESO (CLP) 3,612 1,149 - -
ETHIOPIAN BIRR (ETB) 2,539 - - -
OTHER CURRENCIES 1,007 1,511 - -
994,807 952,509 11,743 13,839

(95) / (127)



ELLAKTOR SA

‘ ELLAKTOR Annual Financial statements in line with IFRS
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2015

26 Deferred taxation
All amounts in EUR thousand.
Deferred tax receivables and liabilities are conspéed when there is an applicable legal right tomensate the

current tax receivables against the current tailliees and when the deferred income taxes invoheesame tax
authority. The offset amounts for the Group areftfiewing:

GROUP 31-Dec-15  31-Dec-14
Deferred tax liabilities: 103,407 101,047
103,407 101,047

Deferred tax receivables: 73,414 71,984
73,414 71,984

29,994 29,063

Total change in deferred income tax is presentémibe

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14

Balance at beginning of year 29,063 52,229
Debit/ (credit) through profit and loss (3,686) 6,237)
Other comprehensive income (debit)/ credit 3,799 16,983)
Acquisition/ disposal of subsidiary 836 7
Currency translation differences (18) 46
Balance at end of year 29,994 29,063

Changes in deferred tax receivables and liabilidesng the year, without taking into account offieg of
balances with the same tax authority, are theiotig:

Deferred tax liabilities:

Accelerated Construction Other Total
tax contracts

depreciation
1 January 2014 140,451 24,958 5,961 171,370
Income statement debit/(credit) (10,973) 18,440 583) 4,883
Currency translation differences (5) - - (5)
31 December 2014 129,472 43,398 3,377 176,248
1 January 2015 129,472 43,398 3,377 176,248
Income statement debit/(credit) 6,143 3,359 (732) , 768
Equity debit/(credit) - - 117 117
Acquisition/ absorption of subsidiary 836 - - 836
Currency translation differences (18) - - (18)
31 December 2015 136,433 46,757 2,762 185,951
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Deferred tax receivables:

Provisio  Accelerate Tax losses Changes in  Actuarial Constructio Provisio Other Total
ns d tax value of cash  profit/(los n contracts ns for
depreciati flow hedge s) reserves heavy
on mainten
ance
1 January 2014 851 19,413 3,120 26,005 352 27,923 048 11,003 119,140
Income statement debit/(credit) (845) 1,919 14,606 - - (4,280) 683 (964) 11,120
Other comprehensive income debit/
(credit) - 1 - 15,867 438 - - 677 16,983
Acquisition/ absorption of
subsidiar - (6) - - - - - (1) Q)]
Currency translation differences - - (51) - - (51)
31 December 2014 6 21,328 17,674 41,872 790 23,643 31,156 10,715 147,184
1 January 2015 6 21,328 17,674 41,872 790 23,643 1594 10,715 147,184
Income statement debit/(credit) - 8,786 850 1) - 2,587) 4,243 1,164 12,455
Other comprehensive income debit/
(credit) - - - (3,889) 132 - - 75 (3,682)
31 December 2015 6 30,114 18,525 37,981 923 21,055 35,399 11,954 155,958
The offset amounts for the Company are the follgwin
COMPANY
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Deferred tax liabilities: - -
Deferred tax receivables:
Recoverable after 12 months - 855
- 855
- (855)
Total change in deferred income tax is presentémibe
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Balance at beginning of year (855) (852)
Debit/ (credit) through profit and loss 858 2
Other comprehensive income (debit)/ credit (3) (5)
Balance at end of year - (855)

Changes in deferred tax receivables and liabilidesng the year, without taking into account offiegy of

balances with the same tax authority, are theiotig:

Deferred tax liabilities:

Other Total
1 January 2014 818 818
Income statement debit/(credit) (62) (62)
31 December 2014 756 756
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1 January 2015
Income statement debit/(credit)
31 December 2015

Deferred tax receivables:

1 January 2014

Income statement debit/(credit)

Other comprehensive income debit/ (credit)
31 December 2014

1 January 2015

Income statement debit/(credit)

Other comprehensive income debit/ (credit)
31 December 2015

27 Employee retirement compensation liabilities

All amounts in EUR thousand.

The amounts recognised in the Statement of FinBRosition are the following:

Liabilities in the Statement of Financial
Position for:
Retirement benefits

Total

The amounts recognised in the Income Statemerthar®llowing:

Income statement charge for:
Retirement benefits

Total

The amounts reported in the Statement of Finafmaltion are:

Present value of non-financed liabilities

Liability in Statement of Financial
Position

Other Total
756 756
84 84
840 840
Accelerated tax Other Actuarial Total
depreciation profit/(loss)
reserves
1,604 59 7 1,670
(62) (2 - (64)
- - 5 5
1,542 57 12 1,611
1,542 57 12 1,611
(788) 15 - (774)
- - 3 3
754 72 15 840
GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
10,818 9,842 226 192
10,818 9,842 226 192
GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
2,221 1,975 41 27
2,221 1,975 41 27
GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
10,818 9,842 226 192
10,818 9,842 226 192
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The amounts reported in the Income Statement are:

Current employment cost
Financial cost

Past service cost
Cut-down losses

Total included in employee benefits

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
1,546 1,094 22 6
186 256 4 5
- (72) - -
490 698 15 16
2,221 1,975 14 27

Change to liabilities as presented in the BalareeS§is as follows:

Opening balance
Acquisition of subsidiary
Indemnities paid

Actuarial (profit)/loss charged to Statement

of Comprehensive Income
Total debit/ (credit) to results
Closing balance

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
9,842 7,752 192 152
- 39 - -
(1,326) (1,608) (22) (6)
80 1,684 6 18
2,221 1,975 41 7 2
10,818 9,842 226 192

The main actuarial assumptions used for accourgimposes for the consolidated figures and the cogipa

figures, are the following:

Discount rate

Future salary raises

! Average annual long-term inflation = 2%

2 Average annual long-term inflation = 2.5%

GROUP
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
2.00% 1.90%
0.00% by 2016
2% + 0.5% and 2.50%
=2.5% afterwards

The average weighted duration of pension benefite8i5 years for the consolidated figures and 19e2Bs for

the company figures.

Analysis of expected maturity of non-discountedgiem benefits:

Under one year
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 to 5 years
Over 5 years

Total

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
241 200 20 14
19 102 8 -
168 67 - -
15,434 13,945 272 237
15,862 14,314 299 251

The sensitivity analysis of pension benefit fronarges in the main assumptions are:
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GROUP COMPANY
Effect on retirement benefits in FY 2015
Increase in Decrease in Increase in  Decrease
Change in the the the the in the
assumption by assumption assumption assumption assumption
Discount rate 0.50% -5.22% 5.22% -4.00% 4.00%
Payroll change rate 0.50% 5.17% -5.17% 3.96% 969.

Actuarial (profit)/loss recognised in the Statemeih€omprehensive Income are:

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
(Profit)/loss from the change in financial
assumptions (98) 1,245 ) 20
Net (profit)/ loss 178 439 8 (2)
Total 80 1,684 6 18
28 Provisions
All amounts in EUR thousand.
GROUP COMPANY
Provision for Provision Other Total Provision Other Total
heavy for provisions for provisions
maintenance  unaudited unaudited
years years
1 January 2014 117,203 2,240 47,478 166,921 180 543, 3,722
Additional provisions for fiscal
year 6,022 - 4,766 10,788 - - -
Unused provisions reversed - - (319) (319) - - -
Currency translation
differences - - 769 769 - - -
Used provisions for fiscal year (3,396) - (8,144]11,540) - (2,339) (2,339)
31 December 2014 119,829 2,240 44,550 166,619 180 1,203 1,383
1 January 2015 119,829 2,240 44,550 166,619 180 203, 1,383
Additional provisions for fiscal
year 6,022 - 17,365 23,387 - - -
Currency translation
differences - - 936 936 - - -
Used provisions for fiscal year (3,788) (29) (33P7 (37,796) - (1,203) (1,203)
31 December 2015 122,063 2,211 28,871 153,146 180 - 180
GROUP COMPANY
Analysis of total provisions: 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Non-current 134,245 130,037 180 180
Current 18,900 36,582 - 1,203
Total 153,146 166,619 180 1,383
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Other provisions as of 31 December 2014 includaraount of EUR 28,371 thousand, which pertain taigion
for future inability of partners to honor commitnermbroad in which we participate together in atjoienture,
which was used in the current fiscal year agairsteR/ables from joint ventures, due to settleméte liability

with corresponding receivables.

Other provisions as of 31.12.2015 relate to paanigks within the context of the Group activities

29
All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP

Expenses per category

1-Jan to 31-Dec-15

1-Jan to 31-Dec-14

Note Cost of sales

Employee benefits 32 214,577

Inventories used 401,941
Depreciation of
tangible assets
Impairment of

PPE 6 673

52,712

Depreciation of
intangible assets
Depreciation of
investment
property 8 934
Repair and

maintenance

expenses of

7a, 7b 73,036

Distribution
costs

865

tangible assets
Operating lease
rents

Subcontractor fees
Other third party
fees

Other

Total

16,106

44,529
341,056

184,066
71,388

460

1,665
944

Administrative
expenses

Total

21,842 237,285

205 402,146
2,015 54,732

9,128  (9,802)

380 73,417

333 1,267

251 16,358

1,748 46,736
16 341,072

19,495
8,003

205,226
80,335

Cost of sales

Distribution
costs

5,328 899
387,292

35,093

71,263

1,003

25,750

29,565 464

354,676

208,415
80,829

1,317
1,082

Administrative

expenses Total

19,713 226,010

- 135 387,427

15 1,561 36,669

74 71,338

378 1,381

4 687 26,441

1,773
- 102

,8031
354,778

24,620 234,352
9,789 91,700

1,401,017

3,943

63,417 1,468,377

1,399,284 3,782

58,832 1,461,898

COMPANY

1-Jan to 31-Dec-15

1-Jan to 31-Dec-14

Note

Employee benefits 32
Depreciation of tangible
assets 6

Impairment of PPE 6

Depreciation of

investment property 8
Repair and maintenance
expenses of tangible

assets

Third party fees
Other

Cost of sales

Administrative
expenses

- 727
- 63
- 697

- 751

160 1,432
- 921

Total
727
63
697

751

48
1,592
921

Cost of sales

Administrative
expenses

- 699
- 73

- 752

160 1,938

- 959

Total
699

73

752

33
2,098
959

Total

160 4,640

4,800

160 4,453

4,613
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30 Other income and Other profit/ (loss)

All amounts in EUR thousand. Note

Other income
Income from participations & securities
Amortisation of grants received 24

Rents

Revenues from concession of rights (for concession
companies)

Remuneration from participation in joint operatifoisit
ventures

Other
Total other income
Other profit/ (loss)

Profits/(losses) from the sale of financial assategorized as
available for sale & other financial assets

Adjustment at fair value from day 1 of trading @mshares 12
Loss from disposal of subsidiaries

Profit /(loss) from disposal of Associates

Loss from the sale and write-off of tangible assets

Loss from disposal of investment property

Impairment of subsidiaries 9
Impairment of associates 10
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 12
Impairment of investment in mining companies 12
Impairment of investment property 8

Impairment provisions and receivables written off

Extraordinary levy on the turnover of RES compaifiesv
4093/2012)

Compensations based on the concession agreement
Other profit/ (loss)
Total other profit/ (loss)

Total

GROUP COMPANY
1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
3,570 40 - B
3,700 3,698 - -
6,153 6,317 2,125 2,163
666 557 - -
7,841 6,311
1,882 - - -
23,812 21,928 2,125 2,163
(7)665 511 - -
12,883 - - -
(286) (909) -
(3) 580 - 10
(92) (16) - -
- (227) - -

- - (17,750) -
(6,984) (275) - -
(7,866) (62) - -

(37,174) (54,158) - -
(5,171) - (11,119) -
(3,127) (2,685) - -
- (1,131) - -
- 9,780 - -
(4,203) 458 (139) (39)
(59,688) (47,657) (2908) (29)
(35,876) (25,729) (26,883) 2,134

In the 12-month period of 2014, the amount of EUR158 charged Other income/expenses as a restlieof
impairment of the investment held in mining comganclassified as Available-for-Sale Financial Asg@tote
22). The charge due to further impairment of inmesit in mining companies in the 12-month perio2015

amounts to 37,174 thousand (note 12).
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31 Finance income/(expenses)

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Finance income
Interest income
Total financial income

Financial expenses

Interest expenses related to bank borrowings
Interest expenses related to financial
leases (74) (106)

Interest expenses

Finance cost of provision for heavy
maintenance of ATTIKI ODOS SA

Other financial expenses

Net gains/(losses) from the translation of
borrowings

Profit/ (loss) from interest rate swaps to hedge

cash flows — Transfer from reserve

Total financial expenses

32 Employee benefits

All amounts in EUR thousand.

Wages and salaries

Social security expenses
Cost of defined benefit plans
Other employee benefits

Total

33 Income tax

GROUP COMPANY
1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
10,698 23,155 4 13
10,698 23,155 4 13

(84,92  (84,998)

(15,119) (16,356)

(85,000) (85,104) (15,119) 856)
(2,941) (3,083) - -
(2,941) (3,083) - -
(75) (531) - -
1,719 (2,525) - -
1,643 (3,056) - -
(86,297) (91,243) (1591 (16,356)
GROUP COMPANY
1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
183,185 174,926 562 550
35,230 35,687 104 105
2,221 1,975 41 27
16,649 13,422 20 16
237,285 226,010 727 699

Law 4334/16.07.2015 relating to urgent arrangemémtghe negotiations and the conclusion of an exgent
with the European Stability Mechanism (ESM) wasspdson 16.07.2015. According to the new law, tlv@rnme
tax rate for legal entities is increased from 26729%, and the prepayment of income tax is incib&san 80%
to 100%, effective from the financial year of 20The negative effect from the recalculation of defd taxes for
the Group and the Company on the income tax ofrtb@me statement is shown in the following table.
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All amounts in EUR thousand. GROUP COMPANY
1-Jan to 1-Jan to
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Tax for the year 40,149 28,735 - (20)
Deferred tax due to change in tax rate from 26298 7,792 - (97) -
Deferred tax (11,478) (6,237) 955 2
Total 36,463 22,498 858 (7)

Since FY 2011, Greek Sociétés Anonyme and Limitiadbility Companies whose annual financial statermené
mandatorily audited by legally appointed auditore eequired to obtain an “Annual Certificate” unditicle
82(5) of Law 2238/1994, which is issued followingga audit performed by the legally appointed aurditr audit
firm that audits the annual financial statementgoi) completion of the tax audit, the statutory sardor audit
firm issues to the company a “Tax Compliance Répamtl then the statutory auditor or audit firm sufisnit to
the Ministry of Finance electronically.

The table presenting the analysis of unauditedhiiizd years of all companies under consolidatisnstiown in
Note 41.

Tax on profit before taxes of the company is ddfdrfrom the theoretical amount that would ariseéf use the
weighted average tax rate of the country from whighcompany originates, as follows:

GROUP COMPANY

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Accounting profit / (loss) before tax (53,900) (20,777) (16,752) (8,215)
Tax calculated on profits under current tax ratgdiad in the
respective countries (13,135) (2,378) (4,858) (2,136)
Adjustments
Untaxed income (2,256) (1,126) (8,671) (2,710)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 35,884 7589, 13,543 15,324
Tax losses for which no deferred tax receivablesewe
recognised 12,123 8,019 942 -
Tax provisions 373 - - -
Taxes from previous years 244 317 - -
Use of tax losses from prior financial years (4)560 (12,090) - (10,485)
Effect of change to tax rate 7,792 - (97) -
Taxes 36,463 22,498 858 (7)

The average tax rate for the Group for the yeas26124.37% (2014: 22.07%) while the average weighax
rate is 67.65% (2014: -208.76%).

The tax corresponding to Other Comprehensive Indeme

GROUP 1-Jan to 31-Dec-15 1-Jan to 31-Dec-14
Tax Tax
Before (debit) / Before (debit) /
tax credit After tax tax credit After tax
Currency translation differences 4,710 - 4,710 5,738 - 5,738
Fair value gains/(losses) on available-for-
sale financial assets 217 (104) 113 65,846 - 65,846
Cash flow hedges 30,196 (8,721) 21,475 (65,924) 15,867 (50,057)
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1-Jan to 31-Dec-15

1-Jan to 31-Dec-14

Tax Tax
Before (debit) / Before (debit) /
tax credit After tax tax credit After tax
Effect of change to tax rate on hedging - 4,831 834, - - -
Actuarial profit/(loss) (80) 45 (35) (1,683) 438 (1,245)
Effect of tax rate change on actuarial
profits/(losses) - 91 91 - - -
Other (41) (22) (63) (2,630) 678 (1,953)
Effect of change to tax rate on Other - 80 80 - - -
Other Comprehensive Income 35,002 (3,799) 31,203 1,346 16,983 18,329
COMPANY 1-Jan to 31-Dec-15 1-Jan to 31-Dec-14
Tax Tax
Before (debit) / Before (debit) /
tax credit After tax tax credit After tax
Actuarial profit/(loss) (6) 2 4) (18) 5 (13)
Effect of tax rate change on actuarial
profits/(losses) - 1 1 - - -
Other Comprehensive Income (6) 3 3) (18) 5 (13)

Apart from the charge to Deferred tax in the Incasteement amounting to EUR 7,792 thousand, thagehan
the tax rate had a positive effect on Other Comgmelve Income /(Expenses) in the year by an amoluBtUR
5,002 thousand. Accordingly, the overall effecttbé change in the tax rate on the Group’s Congsliia
Comprehensive Income in the year amounted to adb&JR 2,790 thousand. Respectively, for the Camgpa
the effect is positive in the Income Statement byamount of EUR 97 thousand, and in Other Comprgtien
Income by EUR 1 thousand. Accordingly, the ovesdfect of the change in the tax rate on the Comjsany

Consolidated Comprehensive Income in the year ateduo a profit of EUR 98 thousand.

34 Earnings per share

Profit/(loss) attributable to the shareholdershef parent (in EUR thousand)

Weighted average of ordinary shares (in ,000)

Restated basic earnings/(losses) per share afténtBUR)

Profit/(loss) attributable to the shareholdershef parent (in EUR thousand)
Weighted average of ordinary shares (in ,000)

Basic earnings/(losses) per share after tax (in)EUR
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35 Dividends per share

The Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholdelsl on 26.06.2015 decided not to distribute diwidi for
FY 2014. Similarly, no dividend had been distrilsbfer FY 2013. Pursuant to article 16(8)(b) of Lah80/1920,
the amount of dividend attributable to treasuryrebancreases the dividend of other Shareholdéis. dividend
is subject to dividend withholding tax, in accordarwith the applicable tax legislation. The Comparmoard of
Directors will propose to the Annual Ordinary Gealévieeting of Shareholders not to distribute angddinds for
FY 2015.

36 Assumed liabilities and receivables

The following amounts represent commitments foeteperating leases by Group subsidiaries, whielleased
by third parties (the Group is the lessee).

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Up to 1 year 858 2,284
From 1-5 years 1,332 2,983
Over 5 years 194 364
Total 2,384 5,631

The total minimum guaranteed (non-cancellable) sreghtit are receivable under operating lease agrégsme
annually (the Group is the lessor) are as follows:

All amounts in EUR thousand.

GROUP
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Up to 1 year 9,067 9,680
From 1-5 years 34,930 36,977
Over 5 years 36,757 44,162
Total 80,754 90,819

37 Contingent liabilities

(a) Proceedings have been initiated against thefsiar labour accidents which occurred during tkecaition of

construction projects by companies or joint operetiin which the Group participates. Because tlmuis fully

insured against labour accidents, no substantidlloaws are expected as a result of legal proceedagginst the
Group. Other litigations or disputes referred tbitaation, as well as the pending court or arbitratrulings are
not expected to have a material effect on the fii@rposition or the operations of the Group or @@mpany,
and for this reason no relevant provisions have lieened.

(b) Since FY 2011, Greek Sociétés Anonymes and tedniLiability Companies whose annual financial
statements are mandatorily audited by legally ampdi auditors are required to obtain an “AnnualtiGeste”
under Article 82(5) of Law 2238/1994, which is isdufollowing a tax audit performed by the legalppainted
auditor or audit firm that audits the annual finahstatements. Upon completion of the tax autii¢, $tatutory
auditor or audit firm issues to the company a “Taxmpliance Report” and then the statutory auditoawdit
firm submits it to the Ministry of Finance electrcally.

Unaudited years of the consolidated Group comparieshown in Note 41. The Group’s tax liabilitfes these
years have not been finalised; therefore it is iptesshat additional charges are imposed whenéle/ant audits
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are performed by the tax authorities. The provisioacognised by the Group and the parent company fo
unaudited years stand at EUR 2,211 thousand and ElB0Rhousand respectively (Note 28). The paremtpamy
has not been audited by the Tax Authorities foafficial year 2010. It has been audited for yearsl 20012,
2013 pursuant to Law 2238/1994 and for 2014 putstmhaw 4174/2013 and has obtained a tax compdianc
certificate from PricewaterhouseCoopers\8ighout any qualification

In note 41 the Group companies bearing the markn(the column of unaudited tax years aoenpanies that are
incorporated in Greece, are subject to mandatodit day audit firmsand have received tax compliance
certificate for FY 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014.

(c) The Group has contingent liabilities in relatim banks, other guarantees, and other mattersutisa from its
normal business activity and from which no substhoharges are expected to arise.

(d) The litigation between the subsidiary REDS $Aing the general assign of LOFOS PALLINI SA and th
Municipality of Pallini before the Council of Statllowing the company’s application for annulmeagarding
the payable special contribution under Law 294712@thich the Municipality estimates at approximatelUR
750,000, is pending. The hearing in the case téaéepon 23.01.2013 and moratorium ruling No 15812®as
issued regarding the matter. Following further adjoents, the case was heard on 14.01.2015, resuii
Decision 718/2015 by the Council of State referiing case to the Administrative Court of Appealbere it is
awaiting determination of a hearing date.

38 Transactions with related parties

The aggregate amounts of sales and purchases &anstart, as well as the closing balances of vab&s and
liabilities at year end, which have resulted fraamsactions with related parties under IAS 24 aaréollows:

All amounts in EUR thousand. GROUP COMPANY
1-Janto 1-Janto
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
(@) Sales of goods and services 148,293 133,908 2,631 3,223
Sales to subsidiaries - - 2,631 3,223
Other operating income - - 2,631 3,223
Sales to associates 7,838 9,819
Sales 5,599 7,980
Other operating income 2,239 1,840
Sales to related parties 140,455 124,088
Sales 133,568 118,157
Other operating income 6,872 5,931
Finance income 15 - - -
(b) Purchases of goods and services 6,460 9,572 3,204 3,225
Purchases from subsidiaries - - 3,204 3,225
Cost of sales - - 160 160
Administrative expenses - - 38 37
Other operating expenses - - 667 794
Financial expenses - - 2,339 2,233
Purchases from associates 220 467

(107) / (127)



ELLAKTOR SA
Annual Financial statements in line with IFRS
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2015

‘ ELLAKTOR

GROUP COMPANY
1-Janto 1-Janto
31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Cost of sales 220 447 - -
Financial expenses - 20 - -
Purchases from related parties 6,239 9,105 - -
Cost of sales 6,238 9,104 - -
(c) Dividend income - - 29,899 10,424
(d) Key management compensation 7,474 7,726 910 35 9
GROUP COMPANY
Note  31.pec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
(&) Receivables 17 123,505 96,523 19,417 5,675
Receivables from subsidiaries - - 19,282 5,542
Trade - - 1,124 1,169
Other receivables - - 4,291 -
Dividends receivable - - 13,800 4,282
Short-term borrowings - - 67 92
Receivables from associates 59,049 55,839 1 1
Trade 4,484 4,386 1 1
Other receivables 7,020 6,042 - -
Short-term borrowings - 295 - -
Long-term borrowings 47,544 45,116 - -
Receivables from other related parties 64,456 40,684 133 131
Trade 35,462 13,267 - -
Other receivables 8,475 7,616 - -
Short-term borrowings 133 131 133 131
Long-term borrowings 20,387 19,669 - -
(b) Liabilities 25 9,942 9,179 47,724 45,518
Payables to subsidiaries - - 47,724 45,518
Trade payables - - 306 500
Other liabilities - - 3,568 4,518
Financing — Short-term borrowings - - - 24,400
Financing — Long-term borrowings - - 43,850 16,100
Payables to associates 242 750 - -
Trade payables 239 213 - -
Other liabilities 3 196 - -
Short-term borrowings - 342
Payables to other related parties 9,701 8,429 - -
Trade payables 4,669 2,205 - -
Other liabilities 5,032 6,224 - -
(c) Amounts payable to key management 300 - - -
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39

1.

40

1.

Other notes

The number of employees on 31.12.2015 was 18 peifeorthe Company and 5,499 persons for the Group
(excluding Joint Ventures), and the respective ren:ibn 31.12.2014 were 18 and 5,795.

The total fees payable to the Group’s legal auslitor the mandatory audit on the annual finandetiesnents
for FY 2015 stand at EUR 953 thousand (2014: EUR 8fbusand) and for other services at EUR 121
thousand (2014: EUR 97 thousand).

The works for the construction of wind farms of BHRLMOLAON LAKONIAS SA and ALPHA EOLIKI
MOLAON LAKONIAS SA were suspended following a péiit for cancellation filed by the Municipality of
Monemvasia to the Council of State (Filing No 128R/1) against Decision 133877/23.12.2010 on Apgrova
of Environmental Conditions of the Minister for tBsmvironment, the hearing of which had been seit6at
September 2015 and was adjourned to 30 March 20k5Group estimates that the final outcome of #sec
will be positive and provided that market circunmstas are mature and liquidity from banks returhs, t
works will be resumed for the construction-completof the wind parks.

Events after the reporting date

On 07.03.2016, it was announced that AKTOR SA, as$ of a joint venture with the French company
SPIECAPAG, will implement the construction of thesf section of the TAP (Trans-Adriatic Pipeline)
project in Northern Greece, for the transport aural gas from Azerbaijan to Europe. This sectibthe
project pertains to the construction of a pipelingh a diameter of 48 inches and a length of 180
kilometres, extending from the Greek-Turkish bortterKavala, including ancillary installations fas i
operation. The period until project completion stimated at approximately two years.

In the Concessions segment, the Hellenic Parlianapgroved in December 2015 the Agreement
Amending the Provisions of the Concession Contkmttveen the Ministry of Infrastructure and the
Concessionaire MOREAS S.A. The implementation datee amendment to the Concession Contract was
finally set at 23 February 2016. According to tiheeaded agreement:

e the ultimate time of completion of the project douastion is set at late October 2016;

e a provision has been made for an extra maximumadipeal grant by the Ministry of Infrastructure of
EUR 330 million (in current prices and providedttha respective deficit is recorded in the project’
income statement);

e the shareholders of the concessionaire MOREAS @Gnéertake to pay an extra amount of EUR 20
million for the additional binding investment;

e the maximum nominal return of the binding investirisrset at 5%.

e Lastly, compensation of EUR 80 million to the Caosgienaire and of EUR 50 million to the
construction consortium was paid on the implemématiate of the amendment to the contract (23
February 2016).

Since May 2016, a pre-litigation investigation aftgntial transactions relating to two contractsvafste
management projects in Cyprus has been in progiadsr which current and former HELECTOR officers
have been summoned to testify as witnesses. Aeptethe Group monitors the case and is in proogss
assessing any impact (the net book value of thec&mion Right in the works contract stood on
31.12.2015 at EUR 10.3 million).
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41  Group investments

41.aThe companies of the Group, which are consolidateter the full consolidation method, are as folow

PARENT % 2015

PARENT % 2014

SIN COMPANY RES:;‘T':TIEEED SEGMENT OF ACTIVITY DIRECT  INDIRECT TOTAL DIRECT  IND IRECT TOTAL UNAUDITED TAX YEARS

1 AIFORIKI DODEKANISOU SA GREECE ENVIRONMENT 944 94.44 94.44 94.44 2010, 2011-2014*, 2015
2 AIFORIKI KOUNOU SA GREECE ENVIRONMENT 92.42 ) 92.42 92.42 2010, 2011-2014*, 2015
3 EOLIKA PARKA MALEA SA GREECE WIND FARMS 37.12 312 37.12 37.12 2010, 2011-2013*, 2014-2015
4 AEOLIKI KANDILIOU SA GREECE WIND FARMS 64.50 680 64.50 64.50 2010, 2011-2013%, 2014-2015
5 EOLIKI KARPASTONIOU SA GREECE WIND FARMS 32.89 289 32.89 32.89 2010, 2011-2014*, 2015
6 EOLIKI MOLAON LAKONIAS SA GREECE WIND FARMS 646 64.50 64.50 64.50 2010, 2011-2013*, 2014-2015
7 EOLIKI OLYMPOU EVIAS SA GREECE WIND FARMS 64.50 64.50 64.50 64.50 2010, 2011-2013%, 2014-2015
8 EOLIKI PARNONOS SA GREECE WIND FARMS 51.60 51.60 51.60 51.60 2010, 2011-2013*, 2014-2015
9 EOLOS MAKEDONIAS SA GREECE WIND FARMS 64.50 60.5 64.50 64.50 2010, 2011-2013*, 2014-2015
10 ALPHA EOLIKI MOLAON LAKONIA SA GREECE WIND FARMS 64.50 64.50 64.50 64.50 2010, 2011-2013%, 200852
11 AKTOR SA GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 .000 100.00 2010, 2011-2014*, 2015
12 AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA GREECE CONCESSIONS 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2010, 2011-2014*, 2015
13 AKTOR CONCESSIONS SA — ARCHITECH SA GREECE CONKHONS 79.31 79.31 75.37 75.37 2010, 2011-204@15

14 AKTOR FM SA GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 2010, 2011-2014*, 2015
15 AKTOR-TOMI GP GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 2010-2015
16" gi%iﬁg ?gg?;?g’é?\i’;:fg ADF?TT\IAElngIF;) GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 99.80 99.80* - 2007-2015

17 ANDROMACHI SA GREECE REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT 100.00 100.00 1. 100.00 2010, 2011-2014*, 2015
18 ANEMOS ALKYONIS SA GREECE WIND FARMS 36.77 36.7 36.77 36.77 2010, 2011-2014*, 2015
19 STERILISATION SA GREECE ENVIRONMENT 56.67 58.6 56.67 56.67 2012-2013, 2014*, 2015
20 APOTEFROTIRAS SA GREECE ENVIRONMENT 73.46 B.4 66.11 66.11 2010, 2011-2014*, 2015
21 ATTIKA DIODIA SA GREECE CONCESSIONS 59.27 59.2 59.27 59.27 2010, 2011-2013*, 2014-2015
22 ATTIKES DIADROMES SA GREECE CONCESSIONS 47.42 47.42 47.42 47.42 2012-2014*, 2015
23 ATTIKI ODOS SA GREECE CONCESSIONS 59.25 59.25 59.25 59.25 28001-2014*, 2015
24 VEAL SA GREECE ENVIRONMENT 47.22 47.22 47.22 47.22 2001 1-2014%, 2015
25 VIOTIKOS ANEMOS SA GREECE WIND FARMS 64.50 60.5 64.50 64.50 2010, 2011-2013* 2014-2015
26 YIALOU ANAPTYXIAKI SA GREECE REAL ESTATE DEVELORIENT 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2010, 2011-202@15

27 YIALOU EMPORIKI & TOURISTIKI SA GREECE REAL ESTAE DEVELOPMENT 55.46 55.46 55.46 55.46 2010,120014*, 2015
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PARENT % 2015 PARENT % 2014

SN COMPANY REGISTERED SEGMENT OF ACTIVITY DIRECT  INDIRECT TOTAL DIRECT IND IRECT TOTAL UNAUDITED TAX YEARS

28 £RC RENEWABLES ~ ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI GREECE WIND FARMS 32.90 32.90 32.90 32.90 20111,122014%, 2015

29 DIETHNIS ALKI SA GREECE REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT 100.00 100.00 m. 100.00 2012-2014%, 2015
301 DLLITHOS SA® GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 10000 100.00* - -

31 DOAL SA GREECE ENVIRONMENT 94.44 94.44 94.44 94.44 202 1-2014%, 2015
32 EDADYM SA GREECE ENVIRONMENT 94.44 94.44 94.44 94.44 .
33 ELIANA MARITIME COMPANY GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QARRIES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2006-2015
34 HELLENIC QUARRIES SA GREECE QUARRIES 100.00 o1m 100.00 100.00  2009-2010, 2011-2014% 2015
35 GREEK NURSERIES SA GREECE OTHER 50.00 50.00 0.08 50.00 2010, 2011-2014%, 2015
36 HELLENIC ENERGY & DEVELOPMENT SA GREECE OTHER -1 0.37 96.57 96.21 0.37 96,57 2010, 2011-20181422015

37 gEk";:'fb'ﬁlngElGY & DEVELOPMENT - GREECE WIND FARMS 64.50 64.50 64.50 64.50  2010,122013* 2014-2015
38 ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ANEMOS S.A. GREECE WIND FRMS 64.50 64.50 64.50 64.50 2010, 2011-20141520
39 ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ANEMOS SA & CO GREECE WINCFARMS 63.86 63.86 63.86 63.86 2010-2015
40 ELLINIKI TECHNODOMIKI ENERGIAKI SA GREECE WIND FRMS 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2010, 2011-202G15

41 EPADYM SA GREECE CONCESSIONS & ENVIRONMENT 97,22 97,22 . 94.44 ;
42 ELEKTROERGON LTD! GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 10000  100.00" ; 2007-2015

43 HELECTOR SA GREECE ENVIRONMENT 85.00 9.44 94.44 80.00 14.44 484.  2009-2010, 2011-2014%, 2015
44 ILIOSAR SA GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 2010-2015
45 ILIOSAR ANDRAVIDAS SA GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QURRIES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2010-2015
46 ILIOSAR KRANIDIOU SA GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2010-2015
47 KANTZA SA GREECE REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT 100.00 100.00 m. 10000 2010, 2011-2013* 2014-2015
48 KANTZA EMPORIKI SA GREECE REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMEN 55.46 55.46 55.46 55.46 2010, 2011-2014*, 2015
49 KASTOR SA GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 2010, 2011-2014*, 2015
50 JN ELTECH ANEMOS SA —TH. SIETIS GREECE WIND FARSV 64.50 64.50 64.50 64.50 2010 - 2015
51 JN ELTECH ENERGIAKI - ELECTROMECH GREECE WIND RMS 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2010 - 2015
52 JN ITHAKI 1 ELTECH ANEMOS SA- ENECO LTD GREECE WIND FARMS 64.50 64.50 64.50 64.50 2010 - 2015
53 JNV ITHAKI 2 ELTECH ANEMOS SA- ENECO LTD GREECE WIND FARMS 64.50 64.50 64.50 64.50 2010 - 2015
54 JN HELECTOR - CYBARCO CYPRUS ENVIRONMENT 94.4 94.44 94.44 94.44 2007-2015
55 LAMDA TECHNIKI SA GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRE 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2010, 2011-204015

56 LMN SA GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 2010, 2011-2014*, 2015
57 MOREAS SA GREECE CONCESSIONS 71.67 71.67 71.67 71.67 2B110]-2014%, 2015
58 MOREAS SEA SA GREECE CONCESSIONS 86.67 86.67 86.67 86.67 2B110]-2014%, 2015
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PARENT % 2015 PARENT % 2014

REGISTERED

SN COMPANY pd SEGMENT OF ACTIVITY DIRECT  INDIRECT TOTAL DIRECT IND IRECT TOTAL UNAUDITED TAX YEARS
59 NEMO MARITIME COMPANY GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QURRIES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2006-2015
60 ROAD TELECOMMUNICATIONS SA GREECE CONCESSIONS 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2010, 2011-2014*, 2015
61 OLKAS SA GREECE CONCESSIONS 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 012:2014*, 2015
62 P&P PARKING SA GREECE CONCESSIONS 100.00 100.00 100.00 10000  010,2011-2014% 2015
63 PANTECHNIKI SA (formerly EFA TECHNIKI SA) GREECE OTHER 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2010, 2014202015
64 ﬁﬁg;ﬁiﬂ“'“ SA ~LAMDA TECHNIKI SA — GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 2010-2015
65 PLO—KAT SA GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 2010, 2011-2014*, 2015
66 STATHMOI PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE CONCESSIONS 100 100.00 100.00 100.00 2010, 2011-2014%, 2015
67 TOMI SA GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00  2008-2010, 2011-2014%, 2015
68 AECO HOLDING LTD CYPRUS OTHER 100.00 10000 01D 100.00 2008-2015
69 AKTOR AFRICA LTD CYPRUS CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARREE 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2011-2015
70* ?gz\gﬁ\‘ G&ANADL Cgﬁﬁi C?%ZERACT'NG FOR QATAR CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00* ; ;
71 AKTOR BULGARIA SA BULGARIA CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARFES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2009-2015
72 AKTOR CONCESSIONS (CYPRUS) LTD CYPRUS CONCESSEN 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2011-2015
73 AKTOR CONSTRUCTION INTERNATIONAL LTD CYPRUS OTHE 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2003-2015
74 AKTOR CONTRACTORS LTD CYPRUS CONSTRUCTIONS & @HRIES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2009-2015
75 AKTOR D.0.0. BEOGRAD SERBIA CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 -
76 AKTOR D.0.0. SARAJEVO AN CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 -
77 AKTOR ENTERPRISES LTD CYPRUS CONSTRUCTIONS & BRRIES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2008-2015
78 AKTOR KUWAIT WLL KUWAIT CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2008-2015
79 AKTOR QATAR WLL QATAR CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2011-2015
80 AKTOR TECHNICAL CONSTRUCTION LLC UAE CONSTRUCTIS & QUARRIES 70.00 70.00 70.00 70.00 ;
81 AL AHMADIAH AKTOR LLC UAE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 ;
82 BAQTOR MINING CO LTD SUDAN CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARES 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 -
83 BIOSAR AMERICA INC USA CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 -
ge®  DIOSAR AMERICA LLC (formerly GREENWOOD UsA CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00° - -
BIOSAR LLC)
85 g:ggﬁg Cﬂfl_'EESpi?A (formerly  GREENWOOD CHILE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 1am 100.00 ;
86 BIOSAR ENERGY (UK) LTD NGB CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 100.00 0.00 ;
87 BIOSAR HOLDINGS LTD CYPRUS CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2011-2015
88 BIOSAR PANAMA Inc (formerly GREENWOOD o\ ama CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 oo 100.00 ;

PANAMA Inc)
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PARENT % 2015 PARENT % 2014

SN COMPANY REGISTERED SEGMENT OF ACTIVITY DIRECT  INDIRECT TOTAL DIRECT IND IRECT TOTAL UNAUDITED TAX YEARS

8P BIOSAR-PV PROJECT MANAGEMENT LT CYPRUS CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES - 100.00 100.0¢ 2014-2015

90 BURG MACHINERY BULGARIA CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2008-2015
91 CAISSON SA GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 85.00 85.00 85.0 85.00 2010, 2011-2014* 2015
92 COPRI-AKTOR ALBANIA CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 00.00 100.00 2014-2015
932 CORREA HOLDING LTD? CYPRUS REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT . 55.46 55.462 2007-2015
94 DUBAI FUJAIRAH FREEWAY JV UAE CONSTRUCTIONS & QRRRIES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 -
95 ELLAKTOR VENTURES LTD CYPRUS CONCESSIONS 98.61 98.61 98.61 98.61 2011-2015
9 GENERAL GULF SPC BAHRAIN CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRE 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2006-2015
97 HELECTOR BULGARIA LTD BULGARIA ENVIRONMENT 94.4¢ 94.4¢ 94.4¢ 94.4¢ 201¢-201¢

98 HELECTOR CYPRUS LTD CYPRUS ENVIRONMENT 94.44 4.84 94.44 94.44 2005-2015
99 HELECTOR GERMANY GMBH GERMANY ENVIRONMENT 944 94.44 94.44 94.44 2007-2015
100 HERHOF GMBH GERMANY ENVIRONMENT 94.44 94.44 94.44 94.44 208615
101 HERHOF RECYCLING CENTER OSNABRUCK  germany ENVIRONMENT 94.44 94.44 94.44 94.44 202615
102 HERHOF-VERWALTUNGS GERMANY ENVIRONMENT 94.44 94.44 94.44 94.44 2006-2015
103 INSCUT BUCURESTI SA ROMANIA CONSTRUCTIONS & QURRIES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 1997-2015
104 IOANNA PROPERTIES SRE ROMANIA CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 - - 2007-2015
105  JEBEL ALI SEWAGE TREATMENT PLANT JV UAE CONSTRITIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 -
1062 KARTEREDA HOLDING LTD 2 CYPRUS REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT - 55.46 55.46°2 2006-2015
107 K.G.E GREEN ENERGY LTD CYPRUS ENVIRONMENT g4, 94.44 94.44 94.44 2011-2015
1081 LASTIS ENERGY INVESTMENTS LTC! CYPRUS WIND FARMS 64.50 64.50" - - -
100 TYASHOVO WASTE MANAGEMENT PROJECT  pussia CONCESSIONS 98.61 98.61 98.61 98.61 .
110 MILLERNIUM CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT & UAE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 1a0.0 100.00 -
111 NEASACO ENTERPRISELTD CYPRUS ENVIRONMENT 94.4¢ 94.4¢ 94.4¢ 94.4¢ 2012-201¢
112 PMS PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES SA GREECE REBSTATE DEVELOPMENT 55.46 55.46 55.46 5546  20A011-2013%, 2014-2015
113 PROFIT CONSTRUCT SRL ROMANIA REAL ESTATE DEVEEMENT 55.46 55.46 55.46 55.46 2006-2015
114  REDS REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT SA GREECE REAL ESTE DEVELOPMENT 55.46 55.46 55.46 55.46 20101 P@014*, 2015
1152 SC AKTOROM SRI2 ROMANIA CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES ; ; 100.00 100.002 2002-2014
1161 SAREO ENTERPRISES LTD CYPRUS CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00* ; ;
117 SCCLH ESTATE SRL ROMANIA REAL ESTATE DEVELOPME 55.46 55.46 55.46 55.46 2006-2015
118 SOLAR OLIVE SA GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 2010, 2011-2014%, 2015
11¢  STARTMART LTD? CYPRUS OTHER - - 100.00 100.0¢ 2006-2015
120 YLECTOR DOOEL SKOPJE FYROM ENVIRONMENT 94.44 94.44 94.44 94.44 2010-2015

* The fiscal years for whicthe Group companies that are mandatorily audited byt éinths have obtained a tax compliance certificate marked with an asterisk (*).
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'New companies

While incorporated in the consolidated financialtsiments for 31.12.2015, the following companiesew®t incorporated in the consolidated financiatesnents

for 31.12.2014

A. The following companies were formed:

» AKTOR & AL ABJAR CONTRACTING FOR TRADING AND CONTRATING, with registered office in Qatar (1st condalion in the interim summary
financial report as of 30.09.2015)

> LASTIS ENERGY INVESTMENTS LTD, with registered off in Cyprus (1st consolidation in the interim suanyrfinancial report as of 30.09.2015)

» DH-LITHOS SA with registered office in Greece (tshsolidation in the interim summary financial retqas of 30.06.2015)

B. The following companies were acquired:

» TSOGKAS ANASTASIOS- THEODORAKIS GEORGIOS & SIA (GENRAL PARTNERSHIP) with registered office in Greefkst consolidation in the
interim summary financial report as of 30.09.2015)

» ELEKTROERGON LTD with registered office in Greedss{ consolidation in the interim summary financggort as of 30.09.2015)

» SAREO ENTERPRISES LTD, with registered office ing@ys (1st consolidation in the interim summary fiicial report as of 30.09.2015)

» IOANNA PROPERTIES SRL, with registered office infRania (1st consolidation in the consolidated finalrstatements as of 31.12.2015)

“Companies that are no longer consolidated:

The following companies are no longer consolidatettie consolidated financial statements as of 32014

> BIOSAR-PV PROJECT MANAGEMENT LTD, because it wasatbed by its parent company, BIOSAR HOLDINGS LTte second quarter of 2015.
» SC AKTOROM SRL, since it was dissolved in the figstarter of 2015, resulting in losses of EUR 28fuand for the Group

» CORREA HOLDING LTD, as it was dissolved in the figgiarter of 2015 with no effect on the Group

» KARTEREDA HOLDING LTD, as it was dissolved in thiest quarter of 2015 with no effect on the Group

» STARTMART LTD, as it was dissolved in the fourthagter of 2015 with no significant effect on the Gypo

*Change in the consolidation method
With relation to the consolidated financial stateseof 31.12.2014, a change in the method of catetdn was made for the company BIOSAR AMERICA LLC
(formerly GREENWOOD BIOSAR LLC) from the equity nhwid to that of full consolidation because the alibsy BIOSAR AMERICA LLC acquired 100% of

the share capital.

Please note that, for the subsidiaries in the Tablehich the Group’s consolidation rate showndssl than 50%, the direct participation of the glibges
participating in their share capital exceeds 50%.
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41.b The companies of the Group, which are consolidateter the equity method, are as follows:

PARENT % 2015

PARENT % 2014

SN COMPANY REC ere? SEGMENT OF ACTIVITY DIRECT  INDIRECT TOTAL DIRECT  IND IRECT TOTAL UNAUDITED TAX YEARS
Associates

1 ATHENS CAR PARK SA GREECE CONCESSIONS 21.76 21.76 21.31 21.31 2005
21 ANEMODOMIKI SA ! GREECE WIND FARMS - 32.25! 2010-2015

3 AEGEAN MOTORWAY S.A. GREECE CONCESSIONS 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 2012+, 2015

4 BEPE KERATEAS SA GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 35.00 35.00 85.0 35.00 2010-2015
5  GEFYRASA GREECE CONCESSIONS 22.02 22.02 22.02 2202 2008, 2011- 2014* 2015
6  GEFYRALITOURGIA SA GREECE CONCESSIONS 23.12 23.12 23.12 23.12 2B0D]-2014%, 2015
7 Eiggﬁgggm’;‘/“"“c CONSTRUCTION & CO UNLIMITED GREECE ENVIRONMENT 30.52 30.52 30.52 30.52 20005

8 ELLINIKES ANAPLASEIS SA GREECE OTHER 40.00 40.0 40.00 40.00 2010-2015
9 ENERMEL SA GREECE ENVIRONMENT 46.45 46.45 46.45 46.45 202 1-2014%, 2015
10 TOMIEDL ENTERPRISES LTD GREECE ENVIRONMENT a 47.22 47.22 47.22 2010-2015
11 PEIRASA GREECE REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 2010-2015
12 POUNENTIS ENERGY S.* GREECE WIND FARMS - 32.2¢1 201(-201¢

13 CHELIDONA SA GREECE REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT 50.00 50.00 5000  50.00 1998-2015
14 AKTOR ASPHALTIC LTD CYPRUS QUARRIES 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 20125201
15 ATHENS RESORT CASINO S.A. GREECE OTHER 30.00 0.08 30.00 30.00 2010, 2011-2014%, 2015
16!  ELPEDISON ENERGY SA GREECE OTHER ; 21.95! 2009-2010, 2011-2014*, 2015
17 ELPEDISON POWER S GREECE OTHER 21.0t 2198 21.0t 2198 20062010, 201-2012, 201E
181  GREENWOOD BIOSAR LLC UsA CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES - 50.00* -

16 METROPOLITAN ATHENS PARK GREECE CONCESSION: 22.91 22.91 22.91 22.91 201¢-201¢
20 POLISPARK SA GREECE CONCESSIONS 28.76 28.76 28.76 28.76 2016
21 SALONICA PARK SA GREECE CONCESSIONS 24.70 24.70 24.70 24.70 2016
22 SMYRNIPARK SA GREECE CONCESSIONS 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 2016
23 VISTRADA COBRA SA ROMANIA CONCESSIONS 24.99 24.99 24.99 24.99 .
Joint Ventures

24 HELECTOR SA - ENVITEC SA Partnership GREECE ERGNMENT 70.83 70.83 47.22 47.22 2010-2015
25 THERMAIKI ODOS S.A. GREECE CONCESSIONS 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 2010, 2011-2014%, 2015
26 THERMAIKES DIADROMES SA GREECE CONCESSIONS @D 50.00 50.00 50.00 2010, 2011-2014%, 2015
27 STRAKTOR SA GREECE CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 2010-2015
28 3GSA GREECE REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 2010, 2011-2014%, 2015
29 AECO DEVELOPMENT LLC OMAN CONSTRUCTIONS & QUARRIES 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 2009-2015

* The fiscal years for whicthe Group companies that are mandatorily audited byt éinths have obtained a tax compliance certificate marked with an asterisk (*).
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'Companies that are no longer consolidated:
The following companies are no longer consolidatettie consolidated financial statements as of 32014

» ELPEDISON ENERGY SA, as it was acquired by ELPEDNSEA in the 3rd quarter of 2015
» POUNENTIS SA and ANEMODOMIKI SA, as they were tréarsed to third parties in the second quarter df2@ith no significant effect on the Group
» BIOSAR AMERICA LLC (former GREENWOOD BIOSAR LLC) vibh became a subsidiary during the third quartezQdf5.

The Share of profit/(loss) from participations tha¢ accounted for by using the equity method pteslein the Income Statement, amounts to loss&Jet 7,131
thousand for the 12-month period of 2015 and maaniges from losses of ELPEDISON POWER SA. ForXBenonth period of 2014, the respective amount
stands at EUR 434 thousand, resulting primarilynfzrofits of ELPEDISON SA, GEFYRA SA and ATHENS REBRT CASINO.

41.cThe joint operations the assets, liabilities, ras and expenses of which the Group accountsagmdoon its share, appear in the following detaabte. The
parent company only holds an indirect stake in gait ventures via its subsidiaries.

In the table below, 1 under the column “First tidensolidation” indicates those Joint Operationssotidated for the first time in the current year reeswly
established, and not incorporated in the immedigbe¢vious year, i.e. 30.09.2015 (index IPP) nothia respective period of the previous year, i13.2014
(index RPY).

REGISTERED PARTICIPATION % UNAUDITED TAX FIRST TIME
S/N JOINT OPERATION OFFICE 2015 YEARS CONSOLIDATION
(1/0) (IPP/RPY)
1 JIV AKTOR SA - IMPREGILO SPA GREECE 60.00 2010-2015 0 0
2 JNTEO SA—AKTOR SA GREECE 49.00 2010-2015 0 0
3 JIV AKTOR SA - IMPREGILO SPA GREECE 99.90 2010-2015 0 0
4 “JV AKTOR SA — TERNA SA- BIOTER SA” — TERNA SABIOTER SA-AKTOR SA GREECE 33.33 2010-2015 0 0
5 JIV AKTOR SA — PANTECHNIKI SA - J & P AVAX SA GREECE 75.00 2010-2015 0 0
6 JIV AKTOR SA - J & P AVAX SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 65.78 2010-2015 0 0
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0,
(1/0) (IPP/IRPY)

7 JIV AKTOR SA — MICHANIKI SA -MOCHLOS SA -ALTE SA AEGEK GREECE 45.12 2010-2015 0 0
8 J/IV AKTOR SA -CH.l. KALOGRITSAS SA GREECE 49.42 2010-2015 0 0
9 JIV AKTOR SA -CH.l. KALOGRITSAS SA GREECE 47.50 2010-2015 0 0
10 JIV AKTOR SA - J & P AVAX SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 65.78 2010-2015 0 0
11 JIV ATTIKI ODOS — CONSTRUCTION OF ELEFSINA-STAVBS-SPATA ROAD & W.IMITOS RINGROAD GREECE 59.27 202045 0 0
12 JIV ATTIKAT SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 30.00 2010-2015 0 0
13 J/V TOMI SA — AKTOR (APOSELEMI DAM)1 GREECE 100.00* 2010-2015 0 0
14 JIVTEO SA —AKTOR SA GREECE 49.00 2010-2015 0 0
15 JIV SIEMENS AG — AKTOR SA — TERNA SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
161 JIV AKTOR SA — PANTECHNIKI SA' GREECE 100.00* 2010-2015 0 0
17 JIV AKTOR SA — SIEMENS SA - VINCI CONSTRUCTIONSRANDS PROJETS GREECE 70.00 2010-2015 0 0
18 JIV AKTOR SA —-AEGEK - J & P AVAX-SELI GREECE 30.00 2010-2015 0 0
19 JIV TERNA SA -MOCHLOS SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 35.00 2008-2015 0 0
20 JIV ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 30.00 2010-2015 0 0
21 JIV AKTOR SA — TERNA SA - J&P AVAX SA GREECE 11.11 2010-2015 0 0
22 JIV J&P-AVAX —TERNA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 33.33 2010-2015 0 0
23 JIV AKTOR SA -LOBBE TZILALIS EUROKAT GREECE 33.34 2010-2015 0 0
24 JIV AKTOR —TOMI- ATOMO GREECE 51.00 2010-2015 0 0
25 JIV AKTOR SA -JP AVAX SA-PANTECHNIKI SA-ATTIKATSA GREECE 59.27 2010-2015 0 0
26 JIVTEO SA —AKTOR SA GREECE 49.00 2010-2015 0 0
27 JIV AKTOR SA -TERNA SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
28 JIV ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 30.00 2010-2015 0 0
29 JIV KASTOR — AKTOR MESOGEIOS GREECE 53.35 2010-2015 0 0
30 J/IV (CARS) LARISAS (EXECUTOR) GREECE 81.70 2010-2015 0 0
31 J/V AKTOR-AEGEK-EKTER-TERNA (CONSTR. OF OA HANGR) EXECUTOR GREECE 52.00 2010-2015 0 0
32! J/IV ANAPLASI ANO LIOSION (AKTOR — TOMI) EXECUTOR GREECE 100.00* 2010-2015 0 0
33 JIV TERNA-AKTOR-J&P-AVAX (COMPLETION OF MEGARONMUSIC HALL PHASE B — E/M) GREECE 62.00 2010-2015 0 0
34 JIV TERNA-AKTOR-J&P-AVAX (COMPLETION OF MEGARONMUSIC HALL PHASE B- CONSTR.) GREECE 30.00 2010-2015 0 0
35 JIV AKTOR SA - ALTE SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
36 JIV ATHENA SA — THEMELIODOMI SA — AKTOR SA- KONBANTINIDIS SA — TECHNERG SA.- TSAMPRAS SA GREECE B 2010-2015 0 0
37 JIV AKTOR SA - ALTE SA -EMPEDOS SA GREECE 66.67 2010-2015 0 0
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REGISTERED PARTICIPATION % UNAUDITED TAX FIRST TIME
S/N JOINT OPERATION OFFICE 2015 YEARS CONSOLIDATION
(10) (IPPIRPY)
38 JV AKTOR SA— ATHENA SA — EMPEDOS SA GREECE 74.00 2010-2015 0 0
30 JVGEFYRA GREECE 20.32 2008-2015 0 0
40 IV AEGEK — BIOTER SA— AKTOR SA — EKTER SA GREECE 40.00 2000-2015 0 0
41 IV AKTOR SA -ATHENA SA-THEMELIODOMI SA GREECE 71.00 2010-2015 0 0
42 IV AKTOR SA - J&P — AVAX SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
43 IV AKTOR SA - THEMELIODOMI SA — ATHENA SA GREECE 33.33 2010-2015 0 0
IV AKTOR-TOMI-ALTE-EMPEDOS
44 (OLYMPIC VILLAGE LANDSCAPING) GREECE 45.33 2010-2015 0 0
45 IV AKTOR SA-SOCIETE FRANCAISE EQUIPEMENT HOSPILIER SA GREECE 65.00 2010-2015 0 0
JNV THEMELIODOMI — AKTOR SA- ATHENA SA &TE - PASSAVANT MASCHINENTECHNIK GmbH -
46 GIOVANNI PUTIGNANO & FIGLI Sl GREECE 53.33 2010-2015 0 0
47 3V AKTOR SA — DOMOTECHNIKI SA — THEMELIODOMI SA- TERNA SA — ETETH SA GREECE 25.00 2010-2015 0 0
48 3V ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
49 IV AKTOR SA -ERGOSYN SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
50  JV AKTOR COPRI KUWAIT 50.00 ; 0 0
51  JVOQATAR QATAR 40.00 ; 0 0
521 JV AKTOR SA - AKTOR BULGARIA SAL BULGARIA 100.00 2010-2015 0 0
531 CONSORTIUM BIOSAR ENERGY - AKTOR BULGARIA 100.00 2010-2015 0 0
541 JV TOMI SA— HLEKTOR SA (ANO LIOSIA LANDFILL - SEETION 1) * GREECE 100.00 2010-2015 0 0
55 J/V TOMI— MARAGAKIS ANDR. (2005) GREECE 65.00 2010-2015 0 0
56 J/VTOMISA— ELTER SA GREECE 50.00 2000-2015 0 0
571 JV TOMI SA— AKTOR SA GREECE 100.00 2010-2015 0 0
581 JV KASTOR SA - TOMI SA GREECE 100.00 2010-2015 0 0
50  JVKASTOR SA - ELTER SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
60  JVERGO SA—TOMISA GREECE 15.00 2010-2015 0 0
61  JV TOMI SA- ATOMON SA (CORFU PORT) GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
62 JVHELECTOR — TECHNIKI PROSTASIAS PERIVALONDOS GREECE 60.00 2010-2015 0 0
63 JV TAGARADES LANDFILL GREECE 30.00 2006-2015 0 0
64  JVHELECTOR SA-BILFINGER BERGER (CYPRUS- PAPHOS NBFILL) * CYPRUS 100.00 2006-2015 0 0
65  JV DETEALA- HELECTOR-EDL LTD GREECE 30.00 2010-2015 0 0
66  JVHELECTOR SA - MESOGEIOS SA (FYLIS LANDFILL) GREECE 99.00 2010-2015 0 0
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(1/0) (IPPIRPY)

67 JV HELECTOR SA — MESOGEIOS SA (MAVRORACHI LANDEHL) GREECE 65.00 2010-2015 0 0
68t JV HELECTOR SA-BILFINGER BERGER (MARATHOUNTA LANDHIL & ACCESS WAY) CYPRUS 100.00* 2006-2015 0 0

69 JIV HELECTOR- ARSI GREECE 80.00 2010-2015 0 0
70 JV LAMDA — ITHAKI & HELECTOR GREECE 30.00 2007-2015 0 0
71 JIV HELECTOR- ERGOSYN SA GREECE 70.00 2010-2015 0 0
72 JIV BILFIGER BERGER - MESOGEIOS- HELECTOR GREECE 29.00 2010-2015 0 0
73t JIV TOMI SA ~-HELEKTOR SA GREECE 100.00* 2007-2015 0 0

74 JIV KASTOR - P&C DEVELOPMENT GREECE 70.00 2010-2015 0 0
75 J/IV AKTOR SA ARCHIRODON-BOSKALIS (THERMAIKI ODOB GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
76 JIV AKTOR SA —ATHENA GREECE 50.00 2009-2015 0 0
77 JIV AKTOR —INTRAKAT - J & P AVAX GREECE 71.67 2007-2015 0 0
78 JIV HOCHTIEF-AKTOR-J&P-VINCI-AEGEK-ATHENA GREECE 19.30 2010-2015 0 0
79 JIV VINCI-J&P AVAX-AKTOR-HOCHTIEF-ATHENA GREECE 17.00 2009-2015 0 0
80 JIV PANTECHNIKI SA ~ARCHITECH SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
81 JIV ATTIKAT SA- PANTECHNIKI SA —-J&P AVAX SA — EMPEDOS SA-PANTECHNIKI SA-AEGEK SA-ALTE SA GREECE 55 R 2009-2015 0 0

82 JIV ETETH SA-J&P-AVAX SA-TERNA SA- PANTECHNIKI & GREECE 18.00 2009-2015 0 0
83 JIV PANTECHNIKI SA- J&P AVAX SA- BIOTER SA GREECE 39.32 2007-2015 0 0
84 JIV PANTECHNIKI SA - EMPEDOS SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
85 JIV PANTECHNIKI SA — GANTZOULAS SA GREECE 50.00 2005-2015 0 0
86 JIV ETETH SA-J&P-AVAX SA-TERNA SA- PANTECHNIKI & GREECE 18.00 2007-2015 0 0
87 JIV “PANTECHNIKI-ALTE-TODINI -ITINERA"-PANTECHNIKI-ALTE GREECE 29.70 2010-2015 0 0
88 JIV TERNA SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 16.50 2004-2015 0 0
89 JIV PANTECHNIKI SA — ARCHITECH SA- OTO PARKINGAS GREECE 45.00 2003-2015 0 0
90 JIV AKTOR SA — XANTHAKIS SA GREECE 55.00 2010-2015 0 0
91 JIV PROET SA -PANTECHNIKI SA- BIOTER SA GREECE 39.32 2010-2015 0 0
92 JIV KASTOR — ERGOSYN SA GREECE 70.00 2010-2015 0 0
93 JIV AKTOR SA — ERGO SA GREECE 65.00 2010-2015 0 0
94 JIV AKTOR SA -PANTRAK GREECE 80.00 2010-2015 0 0
95t JIV AKTOR SA - PANTECHNIKI GREECE 100.00* 2009-2015 0 0

96 JIV AKTOR SA - TERNA - J&P GREECE 33.33 2010-2015 0 0
97 J/V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA A435) GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
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98 JIVELTER SA-KASTOR SA GREECE 15.00 2010-2015 0 0

99 JIV TERNA- AKTOR GREECE 50.00 2009-2015 0 0
100 J/V AKTOR - HOCHTIEF GREECE 33.00 2009-2015 0 0
101 JV AKTOR - POLYECO GREECE 52.00 2010-2015 0 0
102 J/V AKTOR - MOCHLOS GREECE 70.00 2010-2015 0 0
103 J/V AKTOR SA- STRABAG AG GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
104  J/V EDISON — AKTOR SA GREECE 35.00 2009-2015 0 0
105  J/V LMN SA — OKTANA SA (ASTYPALEA LANDFILL) GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
106 J/V LMN SA — OKTANA SA (ASTYPALEA WASTE) GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
107 J/V LMN SA — OKTANA SA (TINOS ABATTOIR) GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
108 J/V AKTOR — TOXOTIS GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
109 IV IV TOMI - HELECTOR” — KONSTANTINIDIS GREECE 70.00 2008-2015 0 0
110 J/V TOMI SA - AKTOR FACILITY MANAGEMENT * GREECE 100.00! 2010-2015 0 0
111 JV AKTOR — TOXOTIS “ANTHOUPOLI METRO" GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
112 JV AKTOR SA - ATHENA SA —~GOLIOPOULOS SA GREECE 48.00 2010-2015 0 0
113 J/V AKTOR SA — IMEK HELLAS SA GREECE 75.00 2010-2015 0 0
114 J/V AKTOR SA - TERNA SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
115  J/V ATOMON SA — TOMI SA GREECE 50.00 2009-2015 0 0
116 J/V AKTOR SA — TOXOTIS SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
117 JV AKTOR SA - ELTER SA GREECE 70.00 2009-2015 0 0
118  JV ERGOTEM -KASTOR- ETETH GREECE 15.00 2010-2015 0 0
119 JV LAMDA SA -N&K GOLIOPOULOS SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
120 J/V HELECTOR- ENVITEC GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
121 J/VLMN SA — KARALIS K. - TOMI SA GREECE 98.00 2010-2015 0 0
122 J/V CONSTRUTEC SA —-KASTOR SA GREECE 30.00 2009-2015 0 0
123 J/V AKTOR SA - | PAPAILIOPOULOS SA - DEGREMONIA-DEGREMONT SPA GREECE 30.00 2010-2015 0 0
124 J/V AKTOR SA - J&P AVAX SA - NGA NETWORK DEVELORENT GREECE 50.00 2010-2015 0 0
125  JV TOMI SA — MEXIS L-TATSIS K. PARTNERSHIP [/TOMI SA- TOPIODOMI PARTNERSHIP) GREECE 50.00 202015 0 0
126 JV HELECTOR SA —TH.G.LOLOS- CH.TSOBANIDIS- ARSA GREECE 70.00 2011-2015 0 0
127 JV HELECTOR SA —TH.G.LOLOS- CH.TSOBANIDIS- ARSA- ENVITEC SA GREECE 49.85 2011-2015 0 0
128 J/V HELECTOR SA - ZIORIS SA GREECE 51.00 2011-2015 0 0
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(1/0) (IPPIRPY)

129 J/VHELECTOR SA — EPANA SA GREECE 50.00 2011-2015 0 0
130 J/V LAMDA SA -GOLIOPOULOS SA GREECE 50.00 2011-2015 0 0
131 J/V TOMI SA — ARSI SA MARAGAKIS GREEN WORKS SA GREECE 65.00 2011-2015 0 0
132 JIV ELKAT SA— LAMDA SA GREECE 30.00 2011-2015 0 0
133 JV HELECTOR- LANTEC - ENVIMEC - ENVIROPLAN GREECE 32.00 2010-2015 0 0
134 JIV AKTOR SA - J&P (KOROMILIA KRYSTALLOPIGI) GREECE 60.00 2012-2015 0 0
135 J/V J&P AVAX-AKTOR SA (ATTICA NATURAL GAS NETWORKS) GREECE 50.00 2012-2015 0 0
136 J/V J&P AVAX SA-AKTOR SA (DEPA TECHNICAL SUPPOR GREECE 50.00 2012-2015 0 0
137  AKTOR SA-ERETVO SA (CONSTRUCTION OF MODERN ARMUSEUM) GREECE 50.00 2012-2015 0 0
138 J/V KONSTANTINIDIS -HELECTOR GREECE 49.00 2012-2015 0 0
139 JIV IV MIVA SA—AAGIS SA” ~MESOGEIOS SA-KASTR SA GREECE 15.00 2012-2015 0 0
140  JV AKTOR ARHEOGAZ TURKEY 51.00 - 0 0

141 JIV AKTOR SA-J&P AVAX SA (MAINTENANCE OF NATURA GAS NATIONAL TRANSMISSION SYSTEM) GREECE 50.00 20-2015 0 0

142 JIV AKTOR SA — M.SAVVIDES & SONS LIMASSOL LTD CYPRUS 80.00 - 0 0

143 JIV AKTOR - TERNA (STYLIDA JUNCTION) GREECE 50.00 2012-2015 0 0
144 JIV AKTOR-PORTO CARRAS-INTRACAT (ESCHATIA RIVER/V) GREECE 50.00 2012-2015 0 0
145  JIV AKTOR-TERNA (NEW PATRAS PORT) GREECE 30.00 2012-2015 0 0
146 JIV AIAS SA -KASTOR SA /WESTERN LARISSA BYPASS GREECE 50.00 2012-2015 0 0
147 JIV AIAS SA-KASTOR SA/RACHOULA ZARKOS GREECE 50.00 2012-2015 0 0
148 J/V AKTOR SA— IMEK HELLAS SA GREECE 75.00 2013-2015 0 0
149"  J)V HELECTOR S.A. - KASTOR S.A. (EGNATIA HIGH FENNG PROJECT} GREECE 100.00" 2013-2015 0 0

150 J/V TOMI SA - LAMDA TECHNIKI SA* GREECE 100.00* 2013-2015 0 0

151 JIV TRIKAT SA - TOMI SA GREECE 30.00 2013-2015 0 0
152 JIV AKTOR SA-J & P AVAX SA GREECE 65.78 2013-2015 0 0
153 J/V AKTOR SA - TERNA SA GREECE 50.00 2014-2015 0 0
1541 J)V KASTOR S.A. - HELECTOR S.A. (Biological treaémt plant in Chani) GREECE 100.00" 2014-2015 0 0

155  J/V KASTOR SA - CONSTRUTEC SA GREECE 50.00 2013-2015 0 0
156  L.S.F. (AKTOR-AL JABER J.V.) QATAR 50.00 - 0 0

157  JV AKTOR SA - J&P ABAX SA INTRAKAT GREECE 42,50 2014-2015 0 0
158 3\4 gﬁgﬁp SA - D.MASTORIS-A MITROGIANNIS & ASSOCIAES LP - M. STROGIANNOS & ASSOCIATES LP GREECE 25.00 2014-2015 0 0
159  JV LAMDA TECHNIKI SA-EPINEAS SA-ERGOROI SA GREECE 35.00 2014-2015 0 0
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160 JV LAMDA TECHNIKI SA-KARALIS KONSTANTINOS GREECE 94.63 2014-2015 0 0
161 JIV AKTOR S.A. - ALSTOM TRANSPORT SA GREECE 65.00 2014-2015 0 0
162 JIV AKTOR SA —-TERNA SA GREECE 50.00 2014-2015 0 0
163 JIV AKTOR SA - J&P AVAX SA GREECE 44.35 2014-2015 0 0
164 J/V TRIEDRON SA — LAMDA TECHNIKI SA GREECE 30.00 2014-2015 0 0
165 JIV AKTOR SA - INTRAKAT GREECE 50.00 2014-2015 0 0
166 JIV AKTOR SA - TERNA SA - PORTO KARRAS SA GREECE 33.33 2014-2015 0 0
167 J/IV ENIPEAS SA - KASTOR SA - KAPPA TECHNIKI SA GREECE 33.34 2014-2015 0 0
168 JV HELECTOR SA-LANDTEK LTD GREECE 75.00 2014-2015 0 0
169 JIV AKTOR SA - J&P AVAX SA - TERNA SA GREECE 33.33 2014-2015 0 0
170 JIV AKTOR SA - J&P AVAX SA - TERNA SA GREECE 24.44 2014-2015 0 0
171 ALYSJ JV-GOLD LINE UNDERGROUND-DOHA QATAR 32.00 - 0 0
172t JIV AKTOR SA - HELECTOR SA BULGARIA 100.00* 2014-2015 0 0
173 J/V IONIOS SA - AKTOR SA (SERRES - PROMACHONAS) GREECE 50.00 2014-2015 0 0
174 JIV J&P AVAX SA - AKTOR SA (MANDRA-HELPE HIGH RESSURE NATURAL GAS NETWORK) GREECE 50.00 2014-2015 O 0
175 JIV J&P AVAX SA-AKTOR SA (DEPA SYSTEM SUPPORT) GREECE 50.00 2014-2015 0 0
176 JIV AKTOR SA - ATHENA SA (OPERATION & MAINTENANE OF PSITALIA TREATMENT PLANT) GREECE 70.00 201915 0 0
177 J/V IONIOS SA - AKTOR SA (MANDRA-PSATHADES) GREECE 50.00 2014-2015 0 0
178 J/V IONIOS SA - AKTOR SA (AKTIO) GREECE 50.00 2014-2015 0 0
179 J/V IONIOS SA - AKTOR SA (DRYMOS 2) GREECE 50.00 2014-2015 0 0
180 J/V IONIOS SA - AKTOR SA (KIATO-RODODAFNI) GREECE 50.00 2014-2015 0 0
181 J/V IONIOS SA - AKTOR SA (ARDANIO-MANDRA) GREECE 50.00 2014-2015 0 0
182 J/V ERGO SA - ERGODOMI SA - KASTOR SA (J/V OHBMEZI PROJECT) GREECE 30.00 2014-2015 0 0
183 J/V IONIOS SA - TOMI SA (DRYMOS 1) GREECE 50.00 2014-2015 0 0
184 J/V IONIOS SA - AKTOR SA (J/V KATOUNA) GREECE 50.00 2014-2015 0 0
185 J/V IONIOS SA - AKTOR SA (J/V KATOUNA) (ASOPOBAM) GREECE 30.00 2014-2015 0 0
186 J/V IONIOS SA - AKTOR SA (NESTORIO DAM) GREECE 30.00 2014-2015 0 0
187 JIV J&P AVAX SA - AKTOR SA (WHITE AREA NETWORKS) GREECE 50.00 2014-2015 0 0
188 J/IV AKTOR SA-J&P AVAX SA (MAINTENANCE OF NATURA GAS SYSTEM) GREECE 50.00 2014-2015 0 0
189 iJN/\LTAEIfQT'?SE;?M;Eﬁ:ELiTNT? KONSTANTINIDIS TECHNICALSA (OPERATION OF THE THESSALONIKI GREECE 50.00 2014-2015 0 0
190 JIV TOMI SA-ALSTOM TRANSPORT SA (J/V ERGOSE) GREECE 75.00 2014-2015 0 0
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191 J/IV AKTOR SA - PANAGIOTIS GIANNAROS GREECE 75.00 2015 1 RPY
192 JIV AKTOR SA — ATHENA SA GREECE 70.00 2015 1 RPY
193 JIV AKTOR SA - TERNA SA GREECE 50.00 2015 1 RPY
194 J/IV TOMI SA - NATOURA SA - BIOLIAP SA GREECE 33.33 2015 1 RPY
195 AKTOR S.A. - ATHENA S.A. GREECE 70.00 2015 1 IPP
196 AKTOR S.A. - TERNA S.A. GREECE 50.00 2015 1 IPP

30int operations in which the Group holds a 100#i@pating interest via its subsidiaries.

The following joint ventures are no longer consal&tl in the financial statements of 31.12.2014nathé fiscal year 2015 they were dissolved throtigh

competent Tax Offices:

» JIV KASTOR SA —ERTEKA SA

» JIV AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA A438)

> JIV AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA TREATMENT PLANT 1)

» JIV LMN SA -KARALIS

> JIV TOMI SA — ETHRA CONSTRUCTION SA

» JIV TECHNIKI ARISTARCHOS SA —LMN SA

> JIV AKTOR SA - ALPINE MAYREDER BAU GmbH

> JIV AKTOR SA - TODINI CONSTRUZIONI GENERALI S.P.A.

» JIV AKTOR SA — ERGO SA (EPA ATTICA NATURAL GAS SURF PIPELINES)

> JIV AKTOR SA — ERGO SA (NATURAL GAS PIPELINES FORCEOOLS-WESTERN-CENTRAL AREA)
» JIV AKTOR SA — ERGO SA (NATURAL GAS NETWORK FOR B2BUSTOMERS-CENTRAL AREA)

> JIV TOMI SA — ERGO SA — LAMDA TECHNIKI SA
> JIV TERNA SA — PANTECHNIKI SA

41.d The following companies are not consolidated amel reason for this is presented in the followinglda Said participations are shown in the financial

statements at the acquisition cost less accumuilatgairment.

SIN CORPORATE NAME REGISTERED OFFICE DIRECT

INDIRECT

PARTICIPATION %

TOTAL
PARTICIPATION %

REASONS FOR NON-CONSOLIDATION

PARTICIPATION %
1 TECHNOVAX SA GREECE 26.87
2 TECHNOLIT SA GREECE 33.33
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,A" ELLAKTOR

ELLAKTOR SA

General Registry of Commerce No.: 251501000 (SA. Reg. No 874/06/B/86/16 )

25 ERMOU STR. -

145 64 KIFISSIA

FIGURES AND INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR FROM 1 JANUARY 2015 TO 31 DECEMBER 2015
(published in accordance with Article 135 of Law 2190 on businesses preparing their annual financial statements, consolidated or otherwise, according to IAS/IFRS)

The following details and information, as these arise from the financial statements, aim at providing general information about the financial position and results of ELLAKTOR SA and the ELLAKTOR Group of companies. Therefore, we recommend that before proceeding to any investment or other
transaction with the issuer, readers should visit the issuer's website where the financial statements and the certified auditor-accountant report are posted as necessary.

COMPANY DETAILS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (amounts in ,000 EUR)

Company's Registered Office: 25 Ermou St, 13km of the Athens-Lamia National Road, 145 64 Kifissia

Societes Anonyme Reg.No.: 874/06/B/86/16 GROUP COMPANY
Ministry of Economy, Development & Tourism, Secretariat-General for
Competent Authority: Commerce & Consumer Protection, Directorate-General for Market, 01/01- 01/01- 01/01- 01/01-
Directorate for Companies & General Electronic Commercial Registry 31/12/2015 31/12/2014 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Date of approval of the annual financial statements (from which Operating activities
summary information was drawn): 29 March 2016 Profit/ (loss) before tax (53.900) (10.777) (16.752) (8.215)
Certified auditor: Dimitris Sourbis (Institute of CPA (SOEL) Reg. No. 16891) Adjustments for:
Audit firm: PriceWaterhouseCoopers SA Depreciation and amortisation 125.717 105.690 814 825
" . . - Impairment of PPE, investment property, associates, joint ventures & available-
Type of audit report: Unqualified opinion for-sale financial assets 20.823 337 20.566 -
Company's website: www.ellaktor.com Impairment of investment in mining companies 37.174 54.158 - -
BoD composition: Provisions 16.259 2.584 28 22
Anastasios Kallitsantsis, Chairman of the BoD (executive member) Edouardos Sarantopoulos, Director (executive member) Currency translation differences 3.356 3.803 . _
imitri ice-chai i i iveli i - i Profit/(loss) from investing activities
Dimitrios Koutras, Vice-chairman of the BoD (executive member) loannis Tzivelis, Director (non-executive member) (loss) g (10.119) (19.384) (29.903) (10.448)
Dimitrios Kallitsantsis, Vice-chairman of the BoD (executive membe lordanis Aivazis, Director (non-executive member Interest and related expenses 85.000 85.104 15.119 16.356
Leonidas Bobolas, CEO (executive member) Theodoros Pantalakis, Director (independent, non-executive member) Impairment provisions and write-offs 3.127 2.685 - -
Maria Bobola, Director (non-executive member) Dimitrios Grigorioadis, Director (independent, non-executive member) Plus/ less working capital adjustments or related to operating activities:
Aggelos Giokaris, Director (executive member) Decrease/ (increase) in inventories (9.286) 3.371 - -
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (amounts in EUR thousand) Decrease/ (increase) in receivables (79.598) (159.210) 44 1.049
GROUP COMPANY (Decrease)/ increase in liabilities (except borrowings) 10.702 89.441 (933) 733
31/12/2015 31/12/2014 31/12/2015 31/12/2014 Less:
ASSETS Interest and related expenses paid (62.642) (62.571) (17.133) (7.637)
Property, plant and equipment 508.414 470.450 1.669 2.429 Income taxes paid (62.079) (73.464) (2.735) (72)
Investment property 130.589 137.187 29.312 41.182 Net Cash flows from Operating Activities (a) 33.534 21.768 (21.885) (7.387)
Intangible assets 68.883 70.176 - -
Concession right 884.979 935.051 - - Investing activities
(Acquisition)/ disposal of subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and
Other non-current assets 512.935 581.720 956.422 974.956 other investments (91.435) 3.223 (11) ©7)
Inventories 44.818 34.853 - - (Placements)/ collections of time deposits over 3 months (5) 43.394 - -
Trade receivables 763.774 685.329 1.260 1.515 Purchase of PPE, intangible assets & investment property (112.711) (104.003) 1) (40)
Other current assets 1.107.515 1.254.756 20.964 9.527 Income from sale of PPE and intangible assets
TOTAL ASSETS 4.021.905 4.169.522 1.009.627 1.029.608 and investment property 3.330 8.690 - -
Interest received 6.603 19.107 4 13
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Loans granted to related parties (1.236) (22.658) 2 3)
Share capital 182.311 182.311 182.311 182.311 Dividends received 684 1.799 16.099 10.424
Other equity 615.996 698.997 546.743 564.356 Restricted cash reduction 16.943 4.222 - -
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent (a) 798.307 881.308 729.054 746.667 Net Cash flows from investing activities (b) (177.827) (46.227) 16.089 10.298
Non controlling interests (b) 232.922 234.920 - -
Total equity () = (a) + (b) 1.031.229 1.116.228 729.054 746.667 Financing activities
(Acquisition)/Disposal of interest held in subsidiaries from/to non controlling R (@315 R R
Long-term borrowings 1.169.826 1.275.351 268.338 240.692 interests )
Provisions/ Other long-term liabilities 505.507 542.611 3.877 1.831 Proceeds from issued/utilised loans and debt issuance costs 300.546 197.073 55.295 (1.729)
Short-term borrowings 322.348 275.316 - 24.400 Repayment of borrowings (366.082) (296.991) (52.400) -
Other current liabilities 992.996 960.016 8.358 16.017 Payments of leases (amortization) (894) (932) - -
Total liabilities (d) 2.990.677 3.053.294 280.573 282.941 Dividends paid (26.661) (44.476) (23) (40)
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (c) + (d) 4.021.905 4.169.522 1.009.627 1.029.608 Tax paid on dividends (660) (1.916) - -
Grants returned - (1.918) - -
Third-party participation in the share capital increase of ELTECH
ANEMOS SA and other subsidiaries - 35.156 - -
Expenses for share capital increase of ELTECH ANEMOS SA - (2.601) - -
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (amounts in ,000 EUR) Return of subsidiaries’ share capital to third parties (78) (89) N N
Restricted cash reduction 5.635 6.868 - -
GROUP COMPANY Net Cash flows from financing activities (c) (88.194) (112.140) 2.872 (1.769)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents for the
01/01-31/12/2015 01/01-31/12/2014  01/01-31/12/2015 01/01-31/12/2014 period (a) + (b) + (c) (232.486) (136.599) (2.924) 1.141
Revenue 1.533.083 1.544.504 146 182 Cash and cash equivalents at year start 679.918 814.901 3.959 2.818
Gross profit/ (loss) 132.066 145.221 (14) 22 Exchange differences in cash and cash equivalents 2.946 1.616 - -
Profit/ (loss) before tax, financing and
investing results 28.831 56.877 (31.536) (2.297) Cash and cash equivalents at year end 450.378 679.918 1.035 3.959
Profit/ (loss) before tax (53.900) (10.777) (16.752) (8.215)
Less: Income tax (36.463) (22.498) (858) 7 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (amounts in ,000 EUR)
Net Profit/ (loss) (A) (90.363) (33.275) (17.610) (8.208)
Owners of the Parent (106.071) (51.618) (17.610) (8.208) GROUP COMPANY
Non controlling interests 15.708 18.342 - - 31/12/2015 31/12/2014 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) (net of tax) (B) 31.203 18.329 3) (13) Total equity at year start (1/1/2015 and 1/1/2014, respectively) 1.116.228 1.150.376 746.667 754.889
Total hensive i / (I 59.160, 14.946 17.613 8.221]
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) (A)+(B) (59.160) (14.946) (17.613) (8.221) otal comprehensive income/ (loss) ( ) ( ) ( ) ¢ )
Effect of change in the % interest held in a sub-group of ELTECH ANEMOS due 35134
Owners of the parent (82.391) (18.341) (17.613) (8.221) to listing on ATHEX - . -
Non controlling interests 23.231 3.395 - - Effect of change in interests held in other subsidiaries (942) (1.598) - -
N . . " Dividends distributed & transfer from/to reserves (24.898) (52.737) - -
Net profit/ (loss) per share-basic and adjusted (in EUR) (0,6152) (0,2994) (0,1021) (0,0476)
Profit/ (loss) bef.ore.tax, financing and investing results Total equity at year end (31/12/2015 and 31/12/2014 respectively)
and total amortisation 154.548 162.568 (30.722) (1.472) 1.031.229 1.116.228 729.054 746.667

Proposed dividend per share - (in EUR) - - - -

ADDITIONAL FIGUR

ES AND INFORMATION

1. The main accounting policies as at 31.12.2014 have been obsened.

2. The unaudited tax years of Group companies are detailed in Note 41 to the annual financial statements as of 31.12.2015. Parent company
ELLAKTOR has not been audited by tax authorities for financial year 2010. It has been audited, pursuant to Law 2238/1994, for years 2011, 2012,
2013 and, pursuant to Law 4174/2013, for the year 2014 and has obtained a tax compliance certificate from PricewaterhouseCoopers SA without
any qualification (see Note 37b to the annual financial statements of 31.12.2015).

3. There are no liens on the fixed assets of the Group and the Company except for mortgages on a parent company property as loan collateral
and on subsidiary company properties (see note 6 and 8 to the annual financial statements of 31.12.2015).

4. Litigations or disputes referred to arbitration, as well as pending court or arbitration rulings, are not expected to have a material effect on the
financial position or the operations of the Group or the Company, and, for this reason, no relevant provisions hawe been formed.

5. Provisions formed in relation to the unaudited tax years stand at EUR 2,211 thousand for the Group, and at EUR 180 thousand for the
Company. The provision for heavy maintenance stands at EUR 122,063 thousand for the Group. Other provisions (non-current and current) for
the Group stand at EUR 28,871 thousand and EUR O for the Company (see note 28 to the annual financial statements as of 31.12.2015).

6. The number of employees on 31.12.2015 was 18 persons for the Company and 5,499 persons for the Group (excluding Joint Ventures), and
the respective numbers on 31.12.2014 were 18 and 5,795.

7. All manner of transactions (inflows and outflows) from year start (01.01.2015), as well as receivables and liabilities balances for the Group and
the parent Company at period end (31.12.2015), as these arise from transactions with related parties, within the meaning of IAS 24, are as
follows:

Amounts in ,000 EUR Group Company
a) Income 148.293 2.631
b) Expenses 6.460 3.204
c) Income from dividends - 29.899
d) Receivables 123.505 19.417
e) Liabilities 9.942 47.724
f) Keymanagement compensation 7.474 910
g) Obligations to directors 300 -

8. Eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit which is attributable to parent company shareholders by the weighted awerage of
ordinary shares over the period, excluding treasury shares.

9. The figures posted in the accounts which affected “Other comprehensive income after tax” for the Group and the Company, are for the Group:
income of EUR 4,710 thousand from currency translation differences, income of EUR 113 thousand from Change in the value of available-for-
sale assets, income of EUR 26,307 thousand from Cash flow hedge, income of EUR 56 thousand from Actuarial profit, and EUR 17 thousand
from other income, and for the Company expenses of EUR 3 thousand from Actuarial loss.

10. Group companies and joint venture schemes, together with the country of establishment, their business sector, the parent Company's
percentage of direct or indirect participation in their share capital, and their consolidation method are detailed in note 41 to the annual financial
statements as of 31.12.2015 and are available on the Group's website www.ellaktor.com. The parent Company only holds an indirect stake in the
consolidated joint ventures via its subsidiaries. Figures and information about non-consolidated companies and joint ventures are set out in note
41d to the annual financial statements as of 31.12.2015.

11. The following subsidiaries were included for the first time in the consolidated financial statements of 31.12.2015, and not in those of
31.12.2014: AKTOR & AL ABJAR CONTRACTING FOR TRADING AND CONTRACTING (incorporation), LASTIS ENERGY INVESTMENTS LTD
(incorporation), DI-LITHOS S.A. (incorporation, TSIOGKAS ANASTASIOS - THEODORAKIS GEORGIOS & SIA OE (acquisition)
ILEKTROERGON Ltd. (acquisition), SAREO ENTERPRISES LTD (acquisition) and IDANNA PROPERTIES SRL (acquisition). Apart from the
above companies, the financial statements for the previous year, i.e. as of 31.12.2014, did not include the following subsidiaries: BIOSAR-PV
PROJECT MANAGEMENT LTD, since it was acquired by its parent company BIOSAR HOLDINGS LTD, SC AKTOROM SRL, CORREA
HOLDING LTD, KARTEREDA HOLDING LTD and STARTMART LTD, since they were wound up, as well as the associates ELPEDISON
ENERGY SA, since it was acquired by its parent company ELPEDISON SA, POUNENTIS S.A. and ANEMODOMIKI SA, since they were
transferred to third parties. The consolidation method of BIOSAR AMERICA LLC changed from the equity method to the full consolidation method
on 31.12.2014.

12. The prolonged decrease in the fair value of the Group’s investment in mining companies, included in available-for-sale financial assets,
constituted an objective indication that this financial asset has been impaired. For this reason, Group results were charged in the 12-month period
of 2015 with the amount of EUR 37,174 thousand, as compared to a charge of EUR 54,158 thousand in the 12-month period of 2014 (an amount
of EUR 45,575 thousand was reclassified from the Available-for-Sale Reserves in the Income Statement and the amount of EUR 8,583 thousand
involves an impairment directly charged to the Income Statement, see notes 22 and 30 to the annual financial statements of 31.12.2015).

13. The change in the tax rate from 26% to 29% was charged to deferred income tax in the Income statement in the amount of EUR 7,792
thousand for the 2015 12-month period at Group level. The overall effect of the change on the Group’s Consolidated Comprehensive Income in
the period amounted to a loss of EUR 2,790 thousand. The corresponding effect for the Company is a positive sum in the Income Statement
amounting to EUR 97 thousand. The overall effect of the change in the tax rate on the Company’s Consolidated Comprehensive Income in the
period amounted to a profit of EUR 98 thousand (see note 33 to the annual financial statements of 31.12.2015).

14. Where necessary, the comparative figures have been reclassified to agree with the changes made to the presentation of figures for the current
year (see note 2.30 to the annual financial statements as of 31.12.2015).

15. Since May 2016, a pre-litigation investigation of potential transactions relating to two contracts of waste management projects in Cyprus has
been in progress, under which current and former HELECTOR officers have been summoned to testify as witnesses. At present, the Group
monitors the case and is in process of assessing any impact (the net book value of the Concession Right in the works contract stood on
31.12.2015 at EUR 10.3 million) (see note 40 to the annual financial statements of 31.12.2015).

%g.lél'he Company’s Board of Directors will propose to the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders not to distribute any dividends for FY

Kifissia, 29 March 2016

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

ANASTASIOS P. KALLITSANTSIS
ID Card No. = 434814

LEONIDAS G. BOBOLAS
ID Card No. Z 237945

THE FINANCIAL MANAGER THE HEAD OF ACCOUNTING DEPT.

ALEXANDROS K. SPILIOTOPOULOS
ID Card No. X 666412

EVANGELOS N. PANOPOULOS
ID Card No. AB 342796
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F. Information under article 10 of Law 3401/2005

During 2015, and in 2016 until 29.03.2016, the Camppublished the following press releases-annauaoés
to the information of investors.

DATE - TIME

SUBJECT

27/03/2015 18:14

ANNOUNCEMENT TO PROVIDE INFORMATION ON A LISTED
COMPANY TO ANALYSERS

27/03/2015 17:35

ANNOUNCEMENT OF FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2015

30/03/2015 20:36

Financial Statement figures ia liith IAS

30/03/2015 20:37

Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

30/03/2015 20:48

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

30/03/2015 20:50

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

30/03/2015 19:37

ANNOUNCEMENT ON COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
PRESS RELEASE

31/03/2015 09:39

Presentation of Group Financial Results for FY Z08#houncement

31/03/2015 15:07

PRESS RELEASE

07/04/2015 13:19

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

07/04/2015 13:21

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

22/04/2015 18:19

ANNOUNCEMENT

08/05/2015 10:36

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

08/05/2015 10:43

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS

08/05/2015 10:47

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW
3556/2007: Disclosure of transactions

14/05/2015 17:28

ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENT

28/05/2015 16:26

Conference Call Invitation

29/05/2015 18:43

Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

29/05/2015 18:45

Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

29/05/2015 18:55

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

29/05/2015 18:50

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

29/05/2015 19:12

PRESENTATION OF Q1-2015 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS/ Annocement

29/05/2015 17:30

PRESS RELEASE - RESULTS Q1- 2015 /Group Finandiglifes - Q1 2015

04/06/2015 13:58

ANNOUNCEMENT ON THE NOTICE TO GM

05/06/2015 16:15

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAENGLISH

05/06/2015 16:17

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT/ENGLISH
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09/06/2015 17:00

ANNOUNCEMENT OF REGULATED INFORMATION UNDER LAW
3556/2007: Disclosure of shareholder percentagagehat a voting rights level
Announcement of regulated information under Law&2807

09/06/2015 13:14

Announcement

11/06/2015 18:23

ANNOUNCEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT EVENT

12/06/2015 12:48

Announcement

26/06/2015 15:47

PRESS RELEASE OF GENERAL MEETING Z8.06.2015

29/06/2015 12:34

ANNOUNCEMENT ON THE DECISIONS OF THE GENERAL MEETIBI

29/06/2015 11:33

PRESS RELEASE FOR GENERAL SHAREBEBRS' MEETING

01/07/2015 12:08

TEST SUBMISSION OF CORPORATE ANNOUNCEMENT

27/08/2015 17:37

Conference Call Invitation

30/08/2015 16:39

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

30/08/2015 16:36

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

30/08/2015 16:17

Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

30/08/2015 16:16

Financial Statement figures ia lirith IAS

31/08/2015 09:10

ANNOUNCEMENT ON COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1H
2015

28/08/2015 19:16

ANNOUNCEMENT ON COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
PRESS RELEASE

31/08/2015 12:19

PRESS RELEASE - GROUP FINANCIAL RESULTS 1H 2015

04/09/2015 14:24

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMABENGLISH

04/09/2015 15:19

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT/ENGLISH

07/09/2015 12:18

TEST SUBMISSION OF CORPORATE ANNGTZEMENT

07/09/2015 12:26

TEST SUBMISSION OF CORPORATE ANNOUNCEMENT

07/09/2015 12:28

TEST SUBMISSION OF CORPORATE ANNGTZEMENT

10/09/2015 10:10

PRESENTATION OF ELLAKTOR GROUP 10-11 SEPTEMBER LONN/
ANNOUNCEMENT

02/10/2015 13:09

Announcement - Reply to quenhefGEMC

02/10/2015 10:03

Announcement — Reply to query of the CMC

27/11/2015 13:32

CONFERENCE CALL INVITATION - RESULTS OF 9-MONTH PERD
2015

27/11/2015 19:19

PRESS RELEASE - GROUP FINANCIAL FIGURES OF 9-MONP@A15

28/11/2015 13:10

Financial Statement figures ia lirith IAS

28/11/2015 13:14

Financial Statement figures in line with IAS

28/11/2015 13:19

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

28/11/2015 13:23

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT

01/12/2015 10:00

PRESS RELEASE - GROUP FINANCIALRETS OF 9-MONTH 2015
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30/11/2015 10:06 GROUP PRESENTATION - RESULTS OF 9-MONTH 2015
07/12/2015 09:48 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAENGLISH
07/12/2015 09:52 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PDF FORMAT/ENGLISH
10/12/2015 11:05 LAPSE OF THE RIGHT TO THE DIVIDENEDR FY 2009
07/03/2016 17:22 ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
08/03/2016 12:24 ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS /ENGLISH
29/03/2016 12:09 ANNOUNCEMENT OF FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2016

. ANNOUNCEMENT TO PROVIDE INFORMATION ON A LISTED
29/03/2016 13:02 COMPANY TO ANALYSERS / Invitation to teleconference

All the aforementioned documents (Press Releasasodncements) and all other announcements madkeby t
company are available at www.ellaktor.com, sectidmouncements” and “Press Releases” under “News”.

Also, the Annual Financial Statements, the Cedifiguditor-Accountant certificates, and the reparfsthe
Members of the Board of Directors of the comparmie®rporated in the Consolidated Financial Stateémen
ELLAKTOR SA, are available in sections “Financialigres” and in the sub-section “Financial
Statements/Subsidiaries”.

G. Website where the Company and Consolidated Finamal Statements and Subsidiary
Financial Statements are posted

The Company’s annual financial statements on a alml@ed and individual basis, the Certified Audito
Accountant Report, and the reports of the MembétheBoard of Directors are availablevatvw.ellaktor.com
in the section “Financial Figures”, sub-sectionri#icial Statements/Group”.

The financial statements of consolidated compamies posted online atvww.ellaktor.com in the section
“Financial Figures”, sub-section “Financial StatenséSubsidiaries”.
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